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CORPORATE INFORMATION ASI&#

Place of Incorporation

Hong Kong

Registered Office

21 Dai Fu Street, Tai Po Industrial Estate,
Tai Po, New Territories, Hong Kong

Share Registrar and Transfer Office

Hongkong Managers and Secretaries Limited
Units 1607-8, 16th Floor, Citicorp Centre,
18 Whitfield Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

Internet Websites

Lam Soon Hong Kong Group
http://www.lamsoon.com

Haomama.com Club

http://www.haomama.com

Detergent Business
http://www.love2clean.com

Edible Oil Business

http://www.lamsoonoil.com

Flour Business
http://www.hkflourmills.com

Lam Soon e-Bidding
http://ebidding.lamsoon.com

Hong Leong Group
http://www.hongleong.com
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS Bt #5##%

Turnover (HK$ million) Profit/(loss) Attributable to Shareholders (HK$ million)
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS M#H§E

Consolidated Results

FEEE
Year ended 30 June
BEEAA=+HLEEE

(HK$ million) 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
(B¥EET) =l —ER-—f 2% ZE-EF ZETHE
Turnover e 3,618 2,889 2,510 2,193 2,072
GP% EF=E 16% 13% 18% 20% 20%
Profit/(loss) before taxation — BRHBATEF,/ (FE) 166 @7) 113 143 97
Taxation charges IR (35) ) 22) (21) (18)
Profit/(loss) for the year REERF(F8E) 131 (36) 91 122 79
Non-controlling interests FIER S - _ _ _ _
Profit/(loss) attributable A2

to shareholders of the BRI,

Company (EB518) 131 (36) 91 122 79
Consolidated Assets and Liabilities
SEEERERE

At 30 June
RRA=t+E

(HK$ miliion) 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
(B¥EET) = el —R-—f 2§ ZE-Ef ZETHEF
Total assets WEE 2,258 2,146 2,082 1,812 1,682
Total liabilities HERE (712) (728) (597) (413) (375)
Non-controlling FEIER RS

interests (11) (11) (11) (11) (11)
Equity attributable to FATIREEG

shareholders of the W

Company 1,535 1,407 1,474 1,388 1,296
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS B35 =

Key Financial Indicators

FEMBIER

Year ended 30 June

BEAAZ=THLERE

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
= Db —E-—F -2 CZE-2F CZ2TNE

Earnings/(loss) per share SREF /(&)

(HK$) (B7) 0.55 (0.15) 0.38 0.50 0.32
Dividend per share (HK$) SRBRE(ET) 0.18 0.08 0.16 0.16 0.15
Equity-debt ratio BEXRBEthE 100:0 100:0 96:4 100:0 100:0

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited
Annual Report 2013



CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT EE &I [EiR&E

| am pleased to present herewith our annual report for the
financial year ended 30 June 2013.

The Group has turned around to profitability from its previous
dismal year of loss after taking timely rightsizing measures and
strategic remedial actions to align its businesses to the changing
market.

Our Food Segment rebounded with stronger distribution giving
Flour business deeper and wider penetration into various markets
nationwide while Edible Oil business expanded similarly in
Guangdong Province. Detergent Segment delivered solid results
with encouraging growth in revenue, gross profit, and market

coverage.

Overview

During the year the global economy continued to face
uncertainties and market conditions in most sectors remained
relatively weak as consumer confidence waned. China’s
economic growth slowed down and business conditions were
tough as raw material prices were volatile and labour cost was on
the rise. Continued price-cutting by competitors seeking bigger
market share squeezed margins lower. We had to address these
external market factors with a prudent and nimble procurement
strategy together with staff-cost productivity improvement to stay

competitive.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT EEES X ER&EE

Overview (Continued)

Qur investments in production infrastructure in well-placed
locations and distribution network expansion in China over recent
years had positioned us for a more flexible growth path. We
were able to optimize utilization of our increased flour production
capacity by developing the mid-range and commodity flour
segments and bringing forth new innovative products to reduce
production cost and increase productivity. Our high product/
service quality and safety standards differentiated us from the
competition at different price-segments of all our businesses.
This enabled us to show a strong turnaround and produce
creditable results despite difficult market conditions.

Financial Results

Turnover was HK$3,618 million, representing 25% growth versus
last year. Gross profit at 15.9% of turnover increased to HK$576
million compared to HK$390 million reported for the previous
year and Group profit after-tax was HK$131 million compared
to a net loss of HK$36 million in the previous year. This profit
includes a one-off gain of HK$28.6 million from disposal of an
industrial property to an independent third party.

The Directors are recommending a final dividend of HK$0.12 per
share at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. Coupled with
the interim dividend of HK$0.06 per share paid earlier this year
(2012: interim dividend of HK$Nil and final dividend of HK$0.08
per share), gives a total dividend of HK$0.18 per share for the

year.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT EES X FEiREE

Financial Results continued)

With improved business results and ongoing strict financial
discipline in inventory management and capital expenditure, the
Group recorded a net cash position of HK$221 million at 30
June 2013 as compared to HK$104 million last year.

Business Review

In spite of difficult external factors, the Group managed to
achieve double-digit revenue growth in both our Food and
Detergent Segments. Our core brands, Flour’'s Golden Statue
and American Roses, Edible Oil’s Knife, and Detergent’'s AXE
and Labour, all registered healthy growth in both revenue and

profit margin.

Construction of our new flour mill in Qionglai in Sichuan was
delayed due to the recent earthquake and flood in the area. By
the time of its projected completion at the end of September
2013, we will have four flour production centres strategically
located in each of China’s important regions. While our main
focus will continue to be the premium-priced segment to ensure
profitable growth, we will tactically work on the mid-range and
commodity flour products to take advantage of our increased
production capacity. We are progressing towards having a new
business-to-consumer model for our Flour business using various

distribution channels to boost revenue and profit.

MIFE¥EE a

MEEXERE NLEGEEBERELRH
THRFEH#ESTEEETRYN R=-2F
—=ZFERNRA=ZTH AEEZREFE
A 78 #0221,000,000tc MAF A BB
104,000,000 7T °

FEF5 R

BEMIAEARF  AEERANBFZARD
BB EDEZESELEFHER - RM&L
Mg £ B [EXEEED - [TE e A
o URI7EIRME T EEZAmE KSR
MEEESSREER -

BRI A E R KK - SRR B
AN BER TIRHRLER - A TRERY
REZZ-=FNAE%K Bl RFAKHES
MEEMEESR D ERBHBHBELEPEZE
EEHE - BRERMSLESTIEEHRBE
SEERSIUBRARBANER  Ef8xDF
REAENER  ERELBEPERTMLE
MEM - BMAEBHFATEDHERESEY
EBRBRREEFNEREHEEES  BUER
EZ W RIEF o

mIBE(EE)BRAF
TE-ZFFER



10

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT EEES X ER&EE

Outlook

China’s projected GDP growth rate of 7.5% in 2013 though
much lower than experienced in the last five years still provides
reasonable growth opportunities for our products in our Food
and Detergent segments. We can benefit from the continued rise
of consumption power and standard of living associated with
increase in household income and personal wealth. We carry
with pride our over 50 years’ heritage and reputation for our
higher grade staple products with premium brand names and a
stellar safety record. This puts us in a good position to meet the
growing demand for quality and trustworthy products.

Volatile material costs will continue to put pressure on profit
margin and haunt most industries in an inflationary environment.
We are addressing these challenges with ongoing initiatives
in cost rationalisation, organization rightsizing, improved
productivity, inventory/spend management, operational efficiency,

and product improvements through R&D.

We have invested in our human resources and will continue
to invest more in staff development to have quality people
producing quality products and offering best services. We are
improving further our channel and distribution networks and our

product portfolio to enhance our competitive advantage.

With these operating parameters entrenched in our policy and
management we are more able to adapt to an overhang of

uncertain global macroeconomic factors and slower growth in

RRE
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT EES X FEiREE

Outlook (Continued)

China. | am cautiously optimistic that as we are prepared to work
harder and smarter we could look forward to another rewarding
year ahead striving towards sustainable growth.

Appreciation

Mr. Lo Kwong Chi, Clement who has served as an independent
non-executive director of the Company since 1993, has informed
the Board that he would like to retire and will not be offering
himself for re-election at the coming Annual General Meeting.
The Board and | would like to express our appreciation for the
invaluable contributions he has made to the Group over the

years.

| would like to thank our customers, business partners, bankers
and stakeholders for their support, and the Board of directors
for their wise counsel during the year to effect a swift and strong
rebound to profitability. | recognise with great appreciation for
our management and staff who through their dedication, hard
work, efficient planning and execution of our revamped business
plan has brought about a new beginning for the next phase
of growth for our Group. We remain faithful to our mission to
provide high quality and safe products for a healthier and more
delightful life for our customers.

KWEK Leng Hai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 August 2013
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CORPORATE HIGHLIGHTS £ E 4=

Participated in the meal box home delivery service to the elderly organised by People's
Food Bank, St. James' Settlement - June 2013

LHEDHR B EHSENBIELRIRRT - 2013F6 A

(OWLOON wesT o,

Knife - Sponsor of Hong Kong Cycling Association - June 2013
T - HEBEEKZEER - 201356 A

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited
Annual Report 2013



CORPORATE HIGHLIGHTS £ E 4=

Sponsor Knife oil products for The 20th Hong Kong Primary School Mathematical Olympiad
- June 2013

NBEHEEHRARCERZREIME_TEEENEHBAMNERLLE)- 201356 A

.FI..IHII

“The Knife Champion - Yahoo Kiddy Chef” Program - June 2013
(T EEEE) - Yahoo! /MNEF#)RE R KXE - 2013F6 A
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CORPORATE HIGHLIGHTS £ E 4=

The 16th International Trade Fair for the Baking and Confectionary Industry in China -
May 2013

FETARETEEREEREE - 2013%F5H

at b 4 | \'
aﬁmi:ﬁmt&%&ﬂﬂtlﬂ&fmﬂﬁﬁﬁ :
mvinmﬁilﬂmlﬂlvﬂﬁl!ﬂ

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited
Annual Report 2013



CORPORATE HIGHLIGHTS &£ B4 =

Hong Kong Brands and Products Expo 2012 - December 2012
2012 FEFEEATIRE - 20125 12A°

BIE(ES)BRAT
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CORPORATE HIGHLIGHTS &£ B4 =

“2012 China Bakery Chains Conference (Fujian)” - November 2012
[2012 PEIHIE S ERIES (82)1- 2012F11 A8

“The 12th China International Exhibition for the Grain & Oil Products, Equipment and
Technology” (Jinan) - October 2012

[F12EPEREEHERRRERNREE |(E/M) - 2012104

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited
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CORPORATE HIGHLIGHTS £ E 4=

“Kids Farm Experience Day Camp” organised by haomama.com - October 2012

IS E R NERPHERSEB | - 20125104

17

“2012 The Second China's Catering Industry Joint Purchase Conference” - September 2012
(20125 2@ PRI B EBEIRBXE | - 20125F9A4
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CORPORATE HIGHLIGHTS £ E 4=

QHEE’TB’EHH?

Knife - In recognition of commitment to quality and
certification under the Hong Kong Q-Mark Product
Scheme by Hong Kong Industries
JEEEBEQERBREBQEREEMRERS

Knife - 13th Wellcome ‘Favourite Brands’ Awards

— Qutstanding Category Performances Award —

Staples
T - BEESEIT KRBT B BEHERER
-EHAER

Golden Statue Flour was honored as Golden Award by The 12th China
International Exhibition for the Grain and Oil Products, Equipment and
Technology Organizing Committee
EEBNERETHEBREBHIERRRERNTRESHZTSRBE 12EPEE
HRSREE

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited
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CORPORATE HIGHLIGHTS £E4E

Guangzhou Lam Soon Homecare Products Limited
was presented Green Medal of “Pearl River Delta

Environmental Awards” by Federation of Hong Kong

Industries and Hang Seng Bank

BENREIEEZARERABDEETEIXASRELER

THEERR=ARRAR [ZRBRE

N

Fi

“Caring Company Award 2007-2012” by The Hong Kong Council of Social

Service
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Larmeoon Homecare Products Lo
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"Web Care Award" 2011-2012 by Internet
Professional Association - Jade Award
DMRASEHEREE ARERERERMLE ]

2011-2012 - FE2#

- www.lamsoon.com

- www.love2clean.com
- www.hkflourmills.com
- www.haomama.com
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS %55 E1EA

Operations Review

Throughout FY12/13, wheat, soybean, and crude oil prices
remained volatile amid a slow global economic recovery. This
fluctuation of material costs is expected to linger on. The Group
will take a prudent approach in its procurement process just like
the retailers and distributors who are also expected to take a
cautious approach in their purchasing and inventory management
in a volatile environment.

Food Segment

Food Segment consists of our Edible Oil and Flour businesses.
Versus last year, the Segment achieved 26% revenue growth to
HK$3,156 million, with the operating result changed from a loss
of HK$9 million to a profit of HK$135 million.

Despite the fluctuating material cost trend and business partners’
conservative buying patterns in FY12/13, our Edible QOil business
achieved modest growth in value and volume, mainly driven by
the PRC market. Our ongoing endorsement from Hong Kong
College Cardiology as Recommended Healthy Oil of World
Heart Day and Hong Kong Cycling Team helped to reinforce
our product quality and safety among consumers, especially
during a year when the gutter oil scares of China had extended
to Hong Kong. We will continue to develop regions outside of
our traditional strong foothold South China while growing further
our existing markets by widening and deepening our distribution
as well as introducing new products to gain new customers and
consumers.

E¥HmER
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS %55 E1EA

Operations Review (continueq)
Food Segment (continued)

Flour business, on the other hand, consolidated its position
as the premium flour supplier in China by focusing on its core
brands in Golden Statue and American Roses in FY12/13.
Simultaneously, together with the push for higher market share in
the mid-range and commodity flour segments in order to increase
factory utilization and hence lower conversion cost, the Flour
business had a notable increase in sales and volume in FY12/13.
The new non-institutional premix products were launched in
the beginning of 2013 in Hong Kong where we partnered with
a reputable branded bread maker with encouraging results. We
will develop further this premium series of products in Hong
Kong and introduce them into the PRC market using various
distribution channels.

Turnover - Food Segment (HK$ million)

BEE - AROMOERGET)
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Profit/(loss) from operations - Food Segment (HK$ million)
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS %55 E1EA

Operations Review (continueq)
Detergent Segment

Versus last year, Detergent Segment achieved 21% revenue
growth from HK$376 million to HK$456 million and showed
an increase in operating profit from HK$31 million to HK$70
million. These growth rates are particularly encouraging when
considering the intense competitive nature of the detergent
category amid rising material, marketing/promotional, and labour
costs.

During the financial year, our core brand, AXE, continued to
grow with new product introductions such as the colour-locked
liquid laundry detergent product which has gradually gained
consumer acceptance both in the Hong Kong/Macau and China
markets. We will continue to introduce new products and grow
our already strong South China business by intensifying the
outlet penetration in the second and third tier cities. At the same
time, we will increase our effort in developing regions outside of
the South China with both our AXE and Labour brands.

For both the Food and Detergent Segments, the Group plans to
expand further its distribution network and channels by exploring
joint-venture/strategic alliance opportunities and developing
e-commerce channels in all the markets where we operate.

Turnover - Detergent Segment (HK$ million)
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Financial Review
Group Results

For the year ended 30 June 2013, the Group’s turnover
increased by HK$729 million or 25% to HK$3,618 million. Riding
on the sales volume growth, plant utilization was increased and
our gross margins increased from 13% to 16%.

Selling and distribution expenses grew 4% to HK$309 million,
which is substantially lower than the sales growth of 25%.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

At 30 June 2013, the Group had a net cash balance of HK$221
million (2012: HK$104 million). This was mainly attributable to the
sales growth and decrease in inventory level.

At 30 June 2013, the Group had a cash balance of HK$490
million (2012: HK$451 million). About 95% of these funds were
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”), 4% in Hong Kong dollars
(“HK$”"), and 1% in United States dollars (“USD”) and Macau
Pataca (“MOP”).

At 30 June 2013, the Group had HK$569 million committed bank
facilities (2012: HK$625 million) of which HK$269 million (2012:
HK$347 million) was utilised. All bank borrowings carried interest
at floating rates and were repayable within 1 year.

The Group centralises all the financing and treasury activities at
corporate level. There are stringent controls over the application
of financial and hedging instruments which can only be employed
to manage and mitigate the price risk of commodities for trade

purposes.
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Financial Review (continued)
Liquidity and Financial Resources (continued)

At 30 June 2013, the inventory turnover days were 72 days
(2012: 86 days). Lower raw material level was kept to ensure
faster turns in the volatile commodity market. The trade
receivable turnover days remained at a healthy level of 25 days
(2012: 28 days).

In view of the strong liquidity and financial position, management
believes the Group will have sufficient resources to fund its daily
operations and capital expenditure commitments.

Foreign Currency Exposure

The Group has operations in Mainland China, Hong Kong and
Macau. Local costs and revenue are primarily denominated
in RMB, HK$, and MOP. All the Group’s borrowings were
denominated in HKS.

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through sales,
purchases and deposits that are denominated in currencies other
than the functional currency of the entity to which they relate.
Details of the foreign currency exposure of the Group are set out
in note 5(d) to the financial statements.

Net exchange gain for the year is set out in note 8 to the
financial statements.

Capital Expenditure
During the year, the Group invested a total sum of HK$59 million
on acquisition of plant equipment and construction of new

factory building.

Details of the capital expenditure commitments are set out in
note 34(a) to the financial statements.
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Financial Review (continued)
Human Resources and Training

As at 30 June 2013, there were approximately 1,485 employees
in the Group. Annual increment and year-end performance bonus
mechanism were incorporated in the Group’s remuneration policy
to retain, reward and motivate individuals for their contributions
to the Group. Share options are granted to eligible employees to
reward their contribution and foster loyalty towards the Group.

Relation with Shareholders and Investors

The Company encourages two-way communication with its
stakeholders. Extensive information about the Group’s activities
is provided in the Annual and Interim Reports, which are sent to
shareholders. The Group also maintains a number of websites
to provide a wide range of information on the Group and its
businesses.

Relation with Community

During the year, the Group continued to support a wide spectrum
of community services targeting the needy in Hong Kong, the
Mainland China and beyond. The Group had supported the
activities organised by St. James’s Settlement under the charity
project including donation of cooking oil to People’s Food
Bank and the meal box home delivery service to the elderly. In
Mainland China, the Group made a donation of flour to Qionglai
Government for the Sichuan earthquake disaster occurred in
April 2013.
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DIRECTORS’ PROFILE EEf4Y

Kwek Leng Hai

Aged 60, is the Chairman of the Company since October
2006 and has been a Non-Executive Director of the Company
since appointment to the Board in 1997. Mr. Kwek is also the
Chairman of Board Nomination Committee and a member of
Board Remuneration Committee of the Company.

Mr. Kwek is a director and shareholder of Hong Leong Company
(Malaysia) Berhad (“HLCM”), the ultimate holding company of
the Company. He is the President, CEO of Guoco Group Limited
(“GGL”"), a Hong Kong listed subsidiary of HLCM. He also holds
directorships in key listed subsidiaries and associated companies
of GGL including GuocolLand Limited and Guocoleisure Limited,
both listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading
Limited, and Hong Leong Bank Berhad listed on Bursa Malaysia.
He is also a director of Bank of Chengdu Co., Ltd.

Mr. Kwek qualified as a chartered accountant of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. He is the brother-
in-law of Dr. Whang Sun Tze, a Non-Executive Director of the
Company.

Joseph Leung

Aged 52, Group Managing Director and Executive Director of the
Company since appointment to the Board in May 2012.

Mr. Leung holds a bachelor degree in Economics and a master
degree in Business Administration (Marketing) from Virginia
Polytechnic Institute and State University, USA. He has over 25
years of experience in the food and consumer products sectors.
Prior to joining the Company, he had worked in Hong Kong and
United States of America with companies including Sara Lee
Corporation, Heinz USA and R. J. Reynolds Tobacco Company
USA.
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Whang Sun Tze
Ph.D.

Aged 69, Non-Executive Director of the Company since
appointment to the Board in 1984,

Dr. Whang holds a Doctorate Degree in Chemical Engineering.
He is the brother-in-law of Mr. Kwek Leng Hai.

Lo Kwong Chi, Clement

Aged 68, Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company
since 1993 and Non-Executive Director of the Company since
appointment to the Board in 1975. He is the Chairman of the
Board Audit Committee and the Board Remuneration Committee
of the Company.

Mr. Lo is a solicitor by profession and was admitted to practice
both in Hong Kong and England in 1970.

Tan Lim Heng

Aged 65, Non-Executive Director of the Company since
appointment to the Board in 1997.

Mr. Tan is an executive director of GGL and is the managing
director of GuocoCapital Limited and GuocoCommodities
Limited, wholly-owned subsidiaries of GGL. Mr. Tan holds a
Bachelor of Science first class honours degree in engineering
from University of Surrey and a Master of Science degree in
management from Massachusetts Institute of Technology.
He had previously worked in Geneva in 1974 with the United
Nations Conference on Trade and Development. He had also
served in the Singapore Civil Service as a Colombo Plan Scholar
1975-1978 before coming to work in Hong Kong with a financial
services company and a major U.S. bank. Mr. Tan has extensive
experience in property investment, financial and investment

management services.
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Tsang Cho Tai

Aged 63, Non-Executive Director of the Company since
appointment to the Board in 1997. Mr. Tsang is also a member
of Board Audit Committee of the Company.

Mr. Tsang was re-designated as Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company in 1999 and as Non-Executive Director
in 2004.

Mr. Tsang is the General Manager of Business Planning of Guoco
Management Company Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
GGL. Prior to that, he was the chief financial officer of GGL.
He is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) as well as an associate member of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales.

Lo Kai Yiu, Anthony

Aged 64, Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company
since appointment to the Board in December 2008. He is
a member of the Board Audit Committee and the Board
Nomination Committee of the Company.

Mr. Lo is qualified as a chartered accountant with the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of Ontario, Canada and a member of
the HKICPA. Mr. Lo has over 30 years of experience in banking,
finance and investments. He worked for a number of well-known
financial institutions as managing director.

Mr. Lo is an independent non-executive director and members
of the audit and nomination committees of the Taiwan Fund Inc,
which is listed on the New York Stock Exchange. Mr. Lo is also
an independent non-executive director and chairman of the audit
committee of Mecox Lane Limited, a company listed on Nasdaq
in the USA.

He also holds other directorships in a number of listed
companies in Hong Kong including independent non-executive
director and the audit committee chairman of IDT International
Limited; independent non-executive director, the audit committee
chairman and members of the compensation and nomination
committees of Playmates Holdings Limited; independent non-
executive director, audit committee chairman and member of
the remuneration committee of Tristate Holdings Limited; and
independent non-executive director and members of the audit
and nomination committees of Convenient Retail Asia Limited.
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Au Chee Ming [& Y&k BA

Aged 62, Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company BEX+TIE B-ESAENBRBREEERD
since appointment to the Board in August 2009. He is a FABIYFHITES - HAXLANESSTMHE
member of the Board Remuneration Committee and the Board EEREESREEESTZHE -

Nomination Committee of the Company.

Mr. Au holds a Bachelor Degree in Commerce and Finance from EEEFENEAFHEMNEREHER SRS
The University of Calgary, Canada. Mr. Au has over 30 years T8y BAEERTREMAEEA=1T5F
of experience in banking and finance sectors. He worked for a 25 HERZEBERRTRESREETIE -
number of world-wide banks and financial institutions.
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Corporate Governance Practices

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) has
adopted a Code of Corporate Governance Practices (the
“CGP Code”), which is based on the Corporate Governance
Code (the “HKEx Code”) set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). Continuous efforts are
made to review and enhance the Group’s internal controls and
procedures in light of changes in regulations and developments
in best practices.

The Board is pleased to report compliance with the HKEx Code
for the year ended 30 June 2013, except where otherwise
stated.

Every director is subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years pursuant to the Articles of Association of the
Company and the CGP Code.

Despite non-executive directors were not appointed for a specific
term, they are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
at the annual general meetings of the Company, as stipulated
by the HKEx Code. As such, the Company considers that
such provisions are sufficient to meet the intent of the relevant
provisions of the HKEx Code.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company had adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as the code
of conduct governing directors’ securities transactions.

All directors of the Company during the year, following specific
enquiry by the Company, have confirmed that they have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
throughout the year.
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Board of Directors
Composition of the Board

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
hereof are set out in the Directors’ Report on page 53.

Board Meetings, General Meeting and Attendance

During the year, four board meetings and two general meetings
were held. Details of individual attendance of directors at the

EEE
EERAR

REAFERAREIAREEAY  AR2FZE
EENBEEEHNEEESEREER

ESTEER  REXERUEFEZE

REAFER  HBTORXESEEER-ARR
RAE - ERESRAFEALFESEER

board meetings and general meetings during the year are set out EREARS2HEBIHNTER
in the table below:
Board General
Meeting Meeting
Number of Number of
Attendance/ Attendance/
Number of Number of
Meeting Held Meeting Held
ESEER BREXE
HERE HERS
Name of Director EENA BITERARE BITERAY
Chairman: x5
Mr. KWEK Leng Hai ELEEE 4/4 2/2
Group Managing Director: SEESEEE .
Mr. Joseph LEUNG RZBEE 4/4 2/2
Non-Executive Directors: FEHITES :
Dr. WHANG Sun Tze FErEEt 4/4 1/2
Mr. TAN Lim Heng PR K B S 4 4/4 2/2
Mr. TSANG Cho Tai BHEHRLEE 4/4 2/2
Mr. DING Wai Chuen (Note) TEREE (B 1/1 1/1
Independent Non-Executive Directors: BiIFEHITESE :
Mr. LO Kwong Chi, Clement BELSEE 4/4 2/2
Mr. LO Kai Yiu, Anthony ERUBRSLE 4/4 1/2
Mr. AU Chee Ming BB A& 4/4 2/2
Note: et -

Mr. DING Wai Chuen resigned as Non-executive Director after the
conclusion of 2012 annual general meeting on 20 November 2012.
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Board of Directors (continueq)
Operations of the Board

The Board determines the corporate mission and broad
strategies, monitors and controls operating and financial
performance and sets appropriate policies to manage risks in
pursuit of the Group’s strategic objectives. Decisions involving
financial statements, dividend policy, material contracts and
major investments and divestments are reviewed and subject
to approval by the Board. Other main roles of the Board are
to review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance and to ensure that adequate internal control systems
and management information systems are in place, including
being in compliance with every aspect of the provisions of
applicable laws, regulations, rules, directives and guidelines to
create value for its shareholders and to ensure that the Company
has adequate management to achieve the Company’s strategic
objectives.

The Board has delegated the day-to-day management and
operation of the Group’s businesses to management of the
Company and its subsidiaries.

Where appropriate, decisions are also taken by way of circulated
resolutions.

Board papers are circulated prior to board meetings on a timely
manner, which include, among others, financial and corporate
information, significant operational and corporate issues and
business performance of the Group as well as management
proposals which require the approval of the Board.

All directors have access to the advice and services of the
company secretary and internal auditors, and upon reasonable
request, independent professional advice in appropriate

circumstances at the Company’s expense, if any.
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Board of Directors (continued)

Independence of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors

The Company received confirmation of independence from each
of the independent non-executive directors (“INEDs”) for the
year pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Up to and as at
the date of this report, the Company considers that the INEDs
continue to be independent.

Relationship among the Members of the Board

The family relationships among the members of the Board are
disclosed under “Directors’ Profile” on pages 32 to 35 of this

annual report.

Directors’ Continuous Training and Development
Programme

Pursuant to the HKEx Code which took effect on 1 April 2012,
all directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
This is to ensure that their contribution to the board remains
informed and relevant.

The Company has put in place a training and development
programme for directors which includes (i) induction/
familiarisation programme for newly appointed directors; and (i)
on-going training and professional development programme for
directors.

During the year ended 30 June 2013, all directors of the
Company namely, Messrs. KWEK Leng Hai, Joseph LEUNG,
WHANG Sun Tze, LO Kwong Chi, Clement, TAN Lim Heng,
TSANG Cho Tai, LO Kai Yiu, Anthony and AU Chee Ming
received regular briefings and updates on the Group’s business,
operations, risk management and corporate governance matters.
Materials on new or changes to salient laws and regulations
applicable to the Group were provided to the directors. They also
attended regulatory update sessions and seminars on relevant
topics. All directors are requested to provide the Company with
their respective training record pursuant to the CGP Code.
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Chairman and Group Managing
Director

The roles of Chairman and Group Managing Director (“GMD”) are
segregated and are not held by the same person. Currently Mr.
KWEK Leng Hai is the Chairman and Mr. Joseph LEUNG is the
GMD of the Company.

The primary responsibility of the Chairman is to ensure effective
functioning of the Board, which focuses on the Group’s broad
strategic direction and macro oversight of the management.
The GMD is responsible for the management of the Company
in accordance with the strategies approved by the Board of
Directors.

Non-Executive Directors

The non-executive directors were not appointed for a specific
term. However, they are subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the annual general meeting pursuant to the articles of
association of the Company and the CGP Code.

Board Committees

During the year, three board committees, namely, the Board
Remuneration Committee, the Board Audit Committee and
the Board Nomination Committee were in place for overseeing
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs pursuant to the
Listing Rules and the CGP Code.

The three board committees of the Company are established
with defined written terms of reference, approved by the
Board, which set out the Committees’” major duties. The terms
of reference now being posted on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company, are available to shareholders.

The majority of the members of each board committee are
INEDs. The list of the chairman and members of each board
committee is set out in the following board committee section.

The board committees are provided with sufficient resources
to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are
able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expense.
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Board Committees (continueq)

Board Remuneration Committee (“BRC”)

The Company established the BRC on 1 July 2005 with specific
written terms of reference in accordance with the requirements
of the Stock Exchange which deal clearly with its authority and
duties.

The principal role and functions of the BRC is to make
recommendations to the Board on its policy and structure
for the remuneration of directors and senior management, as
well as to determine the specific remuneration packages of all
executive directors and senior management, including benefits
in kind, pension rights and compensation payments, including
any compensation payable for loss or termination of their office
or appointment. Detailed terms of reference of the BRC is
accessible on the Company’s website.

The BRC has adopted the approach under code provision
B.1.2(c)(i) of the HKEx Code to determine, with delegated
responsibility and authorisation by the Board, the remuneration
packages of individual executive directors and senior
management.

For the year, the BRC comprised Messrs. LO Kwong Chi,
Clement (Chairman of the BRC), KWEK Leng Hai and AU Chee
Ming. Mr. LO Kwong Chi, Clement and Mr. AU Chee Ming
are INEDs of the Company whilst Mr. KWEK Leng Hai is the
Chairman of the Company.

During the year, two BRC meetings were held. The individual
attendance of each member was as follows:
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Number of

Attendance/

Number of

Meeting Held

HERE

Name of Director ESiA BITERAH
Mr. LO Kwong Chi, Clement (Chairman) BEEEE(FE) 2/2
Mr. KWEK Leng Hai L/ ELE 2/2
Mr. AU Chee Ming B . 2/2
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Board Committees (continueq)

Board Remuneration Committee (“BRC”) (continued)

Work done during the year

— reviewed its terms of reference and the remuneration
policy for directors and senior management;

- recommended to the Board the executive directors’
fees for the year ended 30 June 2013 for proposing to
shareholders for approval;

— approved the discretionary bonuses for executive directors
and senior management for the year ended 30 June 2013;

— reviewed the remuneration packages of executive
directors and senior management for the year 2013; and

— reviewed the Employee’s Share Option Scheme.
Level and Make-up of Remuneration

The Group’s remuneration scheme for executive directors and
senior management is linked to performance, service seniority,
experience and scope of responsibility and is based on the
provisions in the Group’s Human Resources Manual, which
are reviewed from time to time to align with market/industry

practices.

The level of remuneration of non-executive directors reflects the
level of responsibilities undertaken by them.

The fees of directors, including non-executive directors, are
recommended and endorsed by the Board for shareholders’
approval at the Company’s annual general meeting.

Details of the remuneration of the directors for the year ended 30
June 2013 are provided in note 11 to the Financial Statements in
this annual report.
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Board Committees (continueq)
Board Nomination Committee (“BNC”)

The Company established the BNC on 1 April 2012 with specific
written terms of reference in accordance with the requirement
of the Stock Exchange which deal clearly with its authority and
duties.

The principal role and function of the BNC is to make
recommendations to the Board on the structure, size and
composition of the Board, and to review the independence of
independent non-executive directors, the suitability of directors
who will stand for re-election and directors’ continuous training
and development programme. Detailed terms of reference of the
BNC is accessible on the Company’s website.

The BNC comprised Messrs. KWEK Leng Hai (Chairman of the
BNC), LO Kai Yu, Anthony and AU Chee Ming. Mr. LO Kai Yiu,
Anthony and Mr. AU Chee Ming are INEDs of the Company
whilst Mr. KWEK Leng Hai is the Chairman of the Company.

During the year, one BNC meeting was held. The BNC had also
met after the financial year end to discuss/review the Company’s
matters for the year ended 30 June 2013. The individual
attendance of each member is as follows:
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Number of
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Number of
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HERE,

Name of Director EEHE BITERAY
Mr. KWEK Leng Hai (Chairman) /AL (EE) 11
Mr. LO Kai Yu, Anthony ERUBSLE 11
Mr. AU Chee Ming B A e 11
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Board Committees (continueq)

Board Nomination Committee (“BNC”) (continueq)

Work done during the year

— reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board
(including the mix of skills, knowledge, experience and
competences of directors, and the balance between
executive, non-executive and independent non-executive
directors) and is of the view that there is an appropriate
and diverse mix of skills and experience;

— reviewed the independence of independent non-
executive directors of the Company and confirmed that
all independent non-executive directors are considered
independent;

— reviewed the profile and participation in the Company’s
affairs of directors who will stand for re-election at 2013
annual general meeting and confirmed that all those
directors are suitable to stand for re-election; and

— reviewed the continuous training and development
programs undertaken by directors and confirmed that an
appropriate program is in place.

Board Audit Committee (“BAC”)

The Company established the BAC on 29 December 1998
with specific written terms of reference in accordance with the
requirement of the Stock Exchange which deal clearly with its
authority and duties.

The BAC oversees the financial reporting process and assesses
the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s system of
internal control. The BAC meets with the Company’s external
and internal auditors, and reviews their audit plans, the internal
audit programmes, the results of their examinations as well as
their evaluations of the system of internal control. It also reviews
directors’ interests in contracts and connected transactions.
The BAC reviews the Group’s and the Company’s financial
statements and the auditors’ report thereon and submits its
views to the Board. Detailed terms of reference of the BAC is
accessible on the Company’s website.
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Board Committees (continueq)

Board Audit Committee (“BAC”) (continued)

For the year, the BAC comprised Messrs. LO Kwong Chi,
Clement (Chairman of the BAC), TSANG Cho Tai and LO Kai
Yiu, Anthony. Mr. LO Kwong Chi, Clement and Mr. LO Kai Yiu,
Anthony are INEDs of the Company whilst Mr. TSANG Cho Tai is

the non-executive director of the Company.

During the year, four BAC meetings were held. The individual

BEEXET o
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REEER  BRESRAERS AL (BRE
SEEE)  RERLARBERELEAR B
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attendance of each member was as follows: BIREHFEZEREINNOT :
Number of
Attendance/
Number of
Meeting Held
HERe
Name of Director EEnE BITERAY
Mr. LO Kwong Chi, Clement (Chairman) BEXLEE(FE) 4/4
Mr. TSANG Cho Tai BHEREE 4/4
Mr. LO Kai Yiu, Anthony ERUBEE 4/4

The following is a summary of the work performed by the BAC

during the year:

— reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of the

Group’s systems of internal control and enterprise risk

management;

— reviewed the consolidated financial statements and results

of the Group;

— reviewed the external auditors’ report thereon;

— reviewed the appropriateness of the Group’s accounting

policies;

— reviewed at various times the potential impact of the

generally accepted accounting principles in Hong Kong on

the Company’s accounts;
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Board Committees (continueq)

Board Audit Committee (“BAC”) (continued)

— reviewed the nature and scope of external audit and

approved the external audit fee;

— reviewed adequacy of resources, qualifications and
experiences of staff of the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting function, and their training programmes;
and

— reviewed connected transactions entered into by the

Group or subsisting during the year.

Directors’ Responsibilities for
Preparing the Financial Statements

The directors of the Company have acknowledged their
responsibility for preparing the financial statements for the
year. There are no material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s

ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set
out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 74 to 75 of
this annual report.

Auditors’ Remuneration

For the year, the external auditors of the Group charged
approximately HK$1.7 million for annual audit service and
approximately HK$0.8 million for tax and other services.
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Internal Control

The internal control system is designed to facilitate the
effectiveness and efficiency of operations, safeguard assets
against unauthorised use and disposition, ensure the
maintenance of proper accounting records and the truth and
fairness of the financial statements, and ensure compliance with
relevant legislation and regulations. It provides reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss
and manages rather than eliminates risks associated with its
business activities.

The Board, recognising its responsibilities in ensuring sound
internal controls, has developed a risk management framework
for the Group to assist in:

— identifying the significant risks faced by the Group in the
operating environment as well as evaluating the impact of
such risks identified;

— developing the necessary measures for managing these
risks; and

— monitoring and reviewing the effectiveness and adequacy
of such measures.

The Board has entrusted the BAC with the responsibility to
oversee the implementation of the risk management framework
of the Group. In discharging this responsibility, the BAC, assisted
by the Group Internal Audit Department:

— ensures that new and emerging risks relevant to the
Group are promptly identified by management;

— assesses the adequacy of action plans and control
systems developed to manage these risks; and

— monitors the implementation of the action plans and the
effectiveness and adequacy of the control systems.
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Internal Control (continueq)

These on-going processes have been in place, and reviewed
periodically by the BAC.

The controls built into the risk management framework are
intended to manage and not expected to eliminate all risks of
failure to achieve business objectives. These controls provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement of management and financial information or against
financial losses and fraud.

In the jointly controlled companies, the Board nominates
representatives to sit as directors and take a proactive stance
in assessing the performance of the entity with the goal of
safeguarding the investment of the Group. Where practical, the
Group may request functional, financial and operating information
as well as assurance that such information have been prepared
in accordance with reporting standards and have been derived
from control environments acceptable to the Group.

The Board, through the BAC, has conducted an annual review
on the Group’s internal control system and considers that it is
adequate and effective. The Board is satisfied that the Group has
fully complied with the provisions on internal controls as set out
in the CGP Code.
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Shareholders’ Rights

The Company has only one class of shares, all shares have the

same voting rights and are entitled to the dividends declared.

The Articles of Association set out the rights of our shareholders.

(a)

Rights and procedures for shareholders to
convene extraordinary general meetings
(“EGM”)

The Directors shall on the requisition of shareholders
holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition not
less than one-twentieth of such of the paid-up capital
of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company, forthwith proceed duly to
convene an EGM of the Company.

The requisition must state the objects of the meeting, and
must be signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the
Company’s registered office at 3/F., Lam Soon Building,
21 Dai Fu Street, Tai Po Industrial Estate, Tai Po, New
Territories, Hong Kong (the “Company’s Registered
Office”) and may consist of several documents in like form
each signed by one or more requisitionists.

The request will be verified with Hongkong Managers and
Secretaries Limited, the Company’s share registrar, at
Units 1607-8, 16th Floor, Citicorp Centre, 18 Whitfield
Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong (the “Company’s Share
Registrar”) and upon their confirmation that the request
is proper and in order, the Company Secretary will ask
the Board to include the resolution in the agenda for the
EGM.

If Directors do not within 21 days from the date of the
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene an
EGM for a day not more than 28 days after the date
on which the notice convening the EGM is given, the
requisitionists, or any of them representing more than
one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may
themselves convene an EGM, but any EGM so convened
shall not be held after the expiration of 3 months from the
said date.
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Shareholders’ Rights (continueq)

(b) Rights and procedures for shareholders to
make proposals at general meetings

(i)

(i)

Rights and procedures for a shareholder to
propose a person for election as a director are as
follows:

Pursuant to Article 80 of the Company’s Articles
of Association, shareholder(s) may send a notice
in writing of the intention to propose a person for
election as a director and notice in writing by that
person of his willingness to be elected shall have
been delivered to the Company’s Registered Office
provided that the minimum length of the period
during which such notices are given, shall be at
least seven days and that the period for lodgment
of the notices shall commence no earlier than the
day after the despatch of the notice of the meeting
appointed for such election and end no later than
seven days prior to the date of such meeting.

Rights and procedures for proposing resolution to
be put forward at a general meeting

Shareholder(s) can submit a written requisition to
move a resolution at an annual general meeting
(*“AGM”) if they —

— represent not less than one-fortieth of the
total voting rights of all shareholders having
at the date of the requisition a right to vote
at the AGM; or

— are no less than 50 shareholders holding the
Company’s shares on which there has been
paid up an average sum, per shareholder, of
not less than HK$2,000.
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Shareholders’ Rights (continueq)

(b) Rights and procedures for shareholders to
make proposals at general meetings (continued)

The written requisition must:

- state the resolution, accompanied by a statement
of not more than 1,000 words with respect to the
matter referred to in the proposed resolution or the
business to be dealt with at the AGM,;

— contain the signatures of all the requisitionists
(which may be contained in one document or in
several documents in like form);

— be deposited at the Company’s Registered Office
for the attention of the Company Secretary not
less than 6 weeks before the AGM in the case of a
requisition requiring notice of a resolution and not
less than 1 week before the AGM in the case of
any other requisition; and

- be accompanied by a sum of money reasonably
sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses in
serving the notice of the resolution and circulating
the statement given by the requisitionists to all
shareholders in accordance with the requirements
under the applicable laws and rules.

Communication with Shareholders

The Company uses a range of communication tools to ensure its
shareholders are kept well informed of key business imperatives.
These include annual general meeting, annual report, interim

report, various notices, announcements and circulars.
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Communication with Shareholders

(continued)

The Company shall communicate other information to
Shareholders on a need basis by way of announcement which
will be posted on the websites of Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited and the Company. Other than AGM, EGM shall
be held pursuant to relevant rules and regulations if required.
Shareholders shall receive explanatory circulars and proxy
forms relating to the EGMs. Proxy arrangements for the general
meetings are in place for shareholders who are unable to attend
the meetings in person.

Shareholders and the investment community shall be provided
with designated contacts, email addresses and enquiry lines
of the Company, which are available on the Company website,
in order to enable them to make any query in respect of the
Company or to make a request for the Company’s information to
the extent such information is publicly available.

Shareholders’ questions about their shareholdings should be
directed to the Company’s Share Registrar, Hongkong Managers
and Secretaries Limited at Units 1607-8, 16th Floor, Citicorp
Centre, 18 Whitfield Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong.

A dedicated Investor Relations section is available on the
Company website www.lamsoon.com. Information on the
Company website is updated on a regular basis.

Investor Relations

In order to enhance communication between the Company
and investors/analysts, senior management members will hold
meetings with investors/analysts upon request as and when the
need arises.

Investors are welcome to send email directly to the Company
Secretary’s email at comsec@lamsoon.com or browse
the Company’s website for the latest release and financial
information.
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The directors submit their annual report together with the
audited financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively, “Group”) for the year ended 30 June 2013.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company and the
principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out on pages 185 to
187.

Subsidiaries

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out on pages 185
to 187.

Financial Statements

The profit of the Group for the year, the state of affairs of the
Company and of the Group as at 30 June 2013 and the Group’s
cash flows and statement of changes in equity for the year
ended are set out in the financial statements on pages 76 to
184.

Dividends

The Directors are recommending to the shareholders for
approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting to be held
on Wednesday, 20 November 2013 a final dividend of HK$0.12
per share. This, together with the interim dividend of HK$0.06
per share paid on Tuesday, 26 March 2013, will amount to
a total dividend of HK$0.18 per share for the year (2012: no
interim dividend, final dividend of HK$0.08 per share). Subject
to shareholders’ approval, the final dividend will be payable
on Wednesday, 4 December 2013 to the shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members on Wednesday, 27
November 2013.
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Closure of

Register of Members

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed from

Monday, 18 Novem

ber 2013 to Wednesday, 20 November 2013

(both days inclusive) during which period no transfer of shares

will be registered.
to attend and vote

In order for the shareholders to be eligible
at the forthcoming annual general meeting

of the Company, all transfer documents accompanied by the

relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s

Share Registrars and Transfer Office - Hongkong Managers
and Secretaries Limited (“HKMS”) at Units 1607-8, 16th Floor,

Citicorp Centre, 18

Whitfield Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong,

not later than 4:00 p.m. on Friday, 15 November 2013 for

registration.

The Register of Members of the Company will also be closed

from Tuesday, 26 November 2013 to Wednesday, 27 November

2013 (both days inclusive) during which period no transfer of

shares will be regist
all transfer docum
certificates must be

ered. In order to qualify for the final dividend,
ents accompanied by the relevant share
lodged with HKMS, not later than 4:00 p.m.

on Monday, 25 November 2013 for registration.

Charitable

Donations

Charitable donations made by the Group amounted to Nil during
the year (2012: HK$NIl).

Share Capi

tal

As set out in Note 31 to the financial statements, there were no

movements in share capital during the year.

Reserves

Movements in reser

ves of the Group during the year are set out

in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Movements in reserves of the Company during the year are set

out in Note 33 to the financial statements.
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Fixed Assets

Movements in fixed assets during the year are set out in Note 17
to the financial statements.

Directors

The directors during the year and up to the date of this report
are:

KWEK Leng Hai, Chairman*
LEUNG Joseph, Group Managing Director**
WHANG Sun Tze*
LO Kwong Chi, Clement*
TAN Lim Heng*
TSANG Cho Tai*
DING Wai Chuen*
— resigned as Non-executive Director after the conclusion of
2012 annual general meeting on 20 November 2012
LO Kai Yiu, Anthony”
AU Chee Ming"

Non-executive director

*k

Executive director
Independent non-executive director

In accordance with Article 78 of the Company’s articles
of association and Code A.4.2 of the Code of Corporate
Governance Practices of the Company, Messrs. KWEK Leng Hai,
LO Kwong Chi, Clement and LO Kai Yiu, Anthony will retire from
office by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
Messrs. KWEK Leng Hai and LO Kai Yiu Anthony, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting. Mr. LO Kwong Chi, Clement has indicated his intention
not to offer himself for re-election as he has reached retirement
age.

Directors’ Service Contracts

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company or any
of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Company
or any of its subsidiaries, within one year without payment of

compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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Directors’ Interests in Contracts

No contract of significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries, holding company
or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest subsisted at the end of the year
or at any time during the year.

Connected Transactions
Master Services Agreement

A master services agreement (the “Master Services Agreement”)
was entered into by the Company (together with its subsidiaries,
the “Group”) with Guoline Group Management Co. Limited
("“GGMC”) and GOMC Limited (“GOMC”) on 30 June 2011 for
provision of services by GGMC or GOMC (the “Service Provider”)
to the Company and/or its subsidiaries, which include, among
other things, overview of businesses and operations, investment
management and financial management disciplines, treasury
and risk management, key managerial recruitment and retention,
productivity and quality programmes and other operating
practices and procedures as well as planning and development
of management information systems (the “Services”).

The Master Services Agreement is for a term of three financial
years from 1 July 2011 to 30 June 2014.

The fees payable under the Master Services Agreement comprise
a monthly fee (the “Monthly Fee”) of HK$50,000 (or such amount
as agreed from time to time between the Service Providers and
the Company) and an annual fee (the “Annual Fee”) equal to 3
percent of the annual profits before tax of the Company and the
subsidiaries as shown in the audited profit and loss accounts for
the relevant financial year, subject to appropriate adjustments.
The total fee, being the sum of the Monthly Fee, the Annual Fee
and the total amount of any fees paid or payable by the Group to
any Hong Leong Group Company for Services of a similar nature
as the services are subject to an annual cap of HK$22 milliion
(the “Annual Cap”) for each of the three financial years ending 30
June 2014.
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Connected Transactions (continued)

Master Services Agreement (continued)

GGMC and GOMC are indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of
Hong Leong Company (Malaysia) Berhad (“HLCM”), the ultimate
holding company of the Company, and thus they are associates
of a connected person of the Company under the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). HLCM is deemed to be
invested in shareholding in the Company. The transactions under
the Master Services Agreement constitute continuing connected
transactions for the Company under the Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company had
reviewed the transactions under the Master Services Agreement
during the year and confirmed that:

(1) the transactions under the Master Services Agreement for
the year were entered into:

- in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

— on terms no less favourable to the Group than the
respective terms available from independent third
parties; and

— in accordance with the relevant agreement
governing them and on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders
of the Company as a whole;

2) the aggregate service fees paid and payable by the
Group under the Master Services Agreement for the year
amounted to approximately HK$5,570,000 which did not
exceed the Annual Cap of HK$22 million as disclosed in
the announcement of the Company dated 4 July 2011.
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Connected Transactions (continued)
Share Option Schemes

The share option scheme of the Company adopted on 23 May
2003 as amended and approved by the shareholders on 18 April
2006 (“2003 Share Option Scheme”) expired on 23 May 2013.
A new Executive Share Option Scheme (“ESOS 2013”) was
approved by the shareholders on 23 April 2013 and took effect
from 25 April 2013. The ESOS 2013 provides for the satisfaction
of the exercise of options through issue of new shares of the
Company and/or the transfer of existing issued shares of the
Company (“Existing Shares”) or a combination of both.

A trust for the 2003 Share Option Scheme (the “Trust”) has
been established in July 2006 pursuant to a trust deed (the
“Trust Deed”) between the Company and a trustee of the
Trust (the “Trustee”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group,
for the purpose of acquiring and disposing of shares or other
securities or financial instruments in relation to the shares in
order to discharge the Trustee’s obligation in respect of the
Trust. The Trustee, will at the direction of the Board from time
to time, transfer shares to option holders to satisfy the exercise
of options. The Group had provided and will provide finances to
the Trust from time to time to enable the Trust to acquire such
shares.

The Trust Deed for the 2003 Share Option Scheme was then
amended such that the Trustee may hold the shares of the
Company for the purpose of both the 2003 Share Option
Scheme and the ESOS 2013 (the “Schemes”). The Trust, whose
beneficiaries include eligible participants of the Schemes who
may be directors and chief executive of the Group, is deemed to
be a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.

The grant of options to the directors and chief executive of the
Group (who are connected person of the Company under the
Listing Rules) pursuant to the 2003 Share Option Scheme and
the provision of finances to the Trust from time to time constitute
continuing connected transactions for the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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Connected Transactions (continued)
Share Option Schemes (continued)

The independent non-executive directors of the Company had
reviewed such continuing connected transactions during the year
and confirmed that:

(1) no option was granted under the 2003 Share Option
Scheme for the year; and

2) during the year, the maximum subsisting amount of
the finances provided by the Group for the purchase
of Existing Shares was approximately HK$22,382,000
which did not exceed the cap amount of HK$90 million as
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 10
March 2006. The provisions of such finances were made:

— in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

— on normal commercial terms or on terms no
less favourable than terms available to or from
independent third parties; and

- in accordance with the relevant agreement
governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders
of the Company as a whole.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the Company’s
auditors were engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions regarding the master services
agreement and provision of finances to the Trust mentioned
above in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits
or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditors
have issued an unqualified letter containing their findings and
conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed above in accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the Listing
Rules. A copy of the auditors’ letter has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange.
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Connected Transactions (continued)
Grant of Share Options — ESOS 2013

On 28 June 2013, the Company granted options in respect of
up to 9,200,000 shares to the Group Managing Director and
directors of certain subsidiaries of the Company (the “Grantees”)
pursuant to the ESOS 2013.

The Grantees are deemed connected persons of the Company
under the Listing Rules. The grant of options to the Grantees
constituted connected transactions for the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Since the applicable
percentage ratios under the Listing Rules in respect of the grant
of options to the Grantees exceed 0.1% but are less than 5%,
such grant of options is only subject to the announcement
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The purpose of granting options to the Grantees pursuant to the
Schemes include aligning their long-term interests with those of
the Company’s shareholders, and encouraging and motivating
them to assume greater responsibility for the performance of the
businesses they manage.

Transactions with a jointly controlled entity and an associated
corporation disclosed as related party transactions in the note
35 to the financial statements do not fall under the definition of
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions or
was below the de minimis thresholds under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules and thus are not disclosed above.

Save as disclosed above, there are no other transactions of
the Company which require disclosure in the annual report in
accordance with the Listing Rules.

Management Contracts

Except for the Master Services Agreement disclosed in the
section of “Connected Transactions” above, no contract
concerning the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of the business of the Group was entered

into or subsisted during the year.
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Directors’ Interests in Competing
Business

None of the directors is interested in any business apart from the
Group’s business, which is likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group.

Directors’ Interests in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures

As at 30 June 2013, the directors of the Company have the
following interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO or
as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the

EFENGPER 2 ER

BEEENEFAEEEBFEEIEERTH
BRHFEAREBER D EE MRS -

¢,

EERRG - ARG RE
F2tEm

RZE-—ZFEXRA=1+H FEBREAQ23H
HEMEELIE(EERESRBEKR(ES
REE®RE DEXVE)EEBREZSRAE
RBIFE 2R EMB 2B AMP IR 2R
7 BERATZXRBRD - HEARGORES
ZHEERRELTRAZETATESETE
ERXSZNEEFA(ZEESFA D EMNGERRQT
REBBERGMERLR(BRM]) 2#R
mF :

Listing Rules:
(A) The Company (A) FAF
Approximate
percentage of
Number of total issued
shares/ share capital
underlying of the Company
Nature of shares held EF AT
Name of director interest BERB Note Total ERTRABE
Exfz EnnE RS E i3 @t ZWHESt
KWEK Leng Hai Personal 2,300,000 2,300,000 0.95%
LIy fEA
Joseph LEUNG Personal 5,000,000 Note (a) 5,000,000 2.05%
2% A Hiit(a)
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Directors’ Interests in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures

(continued)

(A)

(B)

The Company (continued)

Notes:

(@)

The interests of Mr. Joseph LEUNG represent the
interests in 5,000,000 underlying shares in respect of
the share options granted by the Company exercisable
within an exercise period of up to 30 months following
the notification of entitlement to confirm the vesting
and the number of options exercisable in accordance
with the terms of grants. The granting of options for
2,570,000 shares is conditional and upon the approval
of shareholders of the Company in general meeting
as required under the Listing Rules and the terms of
Executive Share Option Scheme 2013.

The interests disclosed represent the corporate
interests of Dr. WHANG Sun Tze in 18,457 ordinary
shares and 869 ordinary shares in the Company
held by SGR Investment Company, Limited (“SGR”)
and T.C. Whang & Company (Private) Limited
(“T.C. & Co.”) respectively. Dr. WHANG Sun Tze holds
95.41% and 59.52% interests in SGR and T.C. & Co.
respectively.

Associated corporations
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SGR Investment Company, Limited
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(B) HEEHEE

Approximate
percentage
of total issued

Number of share capital
shares/ of associated
Name of underlying corporation
associated Nature of shares held {EHEBEEIE 3
corporation Name of director interest #aEkD, Total fTRAGHZE
BB 2R EEzE e S @t HER
Hong Leong Company KWEK Leng Hai Personal 420,500 420,500 2.61%
(Malaysia) Berhad EIEY ! PN
Guoco Group Limited KWEK Leng Hai Personal 3,800,775 3,800,775 1.16%
B EEERAA B A
TAN Lim Heng Personal 566,230 566,230 0.17%
BRAhE A
TSANG Cho Tai Personal 1,000 1,000 0.00%
g% 5PN
Guocoland Limited KWEK Leng Hai Personal 35,290,914 35,290,914 2.98%
EEEHERRAR By A
WHANG Sun Tze Family 66,600 66,600 0.01%
ErE Rk
TAN Lim Heng Personal 1,337,777 1,337,777 0.11%
B A
TSANG Cho Tai Personal 357,333 357,333 0.03%
BH% EUN

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited
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Directors’ Interests in Shares, EERKkG - HERKRD RE
Underlying Shares and Debentures  #Z##s«)

(continued)
(B) Associated corporations (continued) (B) #HHEEE (&)
Approximate
percentage
of total issued
Number of share capital
shares/ of associated
Name of underlying corporation
associated Nature of shares held {EHEBEEIC 3
corporation Name of director interest #aEkG,/ Total {TRRAMIE 2R
HEEEEE ExzE e HERGEE @t HERLL
Hong Leong Bank Berhad KWEK Leng Hai Personal 4,750,000 4,750,000 0.26%
BB A
WHANG Sun Tze Family 129,000 129,000 0.01%
EHE Rk
Hong Leong Financial Group ~ KWEK Leng Hai Personal 2,316,800 2,316,800 0.22%
Berhad B! A
WHANG Sun Tze Family 534,092 534,092 0.05%
EE E 3
TAN Lim Heng Personal 245,700 245,700 0.02%
B L A
Hong Leong Industries Berhad  KWEK Leng Hai Personal 190,000 190,000 0.06%
#28 EPN
WHANG Sun Tze Family 105,600 105,600 0.05%
ErE E
GuocoLand (Malaysia) Berhad ~ KWEK Leng Hai Personal 226,800 226,800 0.03%
#28 (EPN
TAN Lim Heng Personal 326,010 326,010 0.05%
Rk & EPN
Hume Industries (Malaysia) WHANG Sun Tze Family 12,667 12,667 0.01%
Sdn Bhd ELE Rk
Guocoleisure Limited TAN Lim Heng Personal 1,100,000 1,100,000 0.08%
B L A
Malaysian Pacific Industries KWEK Leng Hai Personal 71,250 71,250 0.04%
Berhad o A

MIE(EE)BR AT
TE-=FFER
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Directors’ Interests in Shares, EENRY - HERED RE
Underlying Shares and Debentures % 2Z2##% @)

(continued)

(B) Associated corporations (continued) (B) #iHEHER (&)

64

(A)

All the interests disclosed in sections (A) and (B) above
were long positions in the ordinary shares of the Company
or its associated corporations.

Save as disclosed herein, none of the directors of the
Company had any interests or short positions in any
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required
to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

Share Options

2003 Share Option Scheme

The 2003 Share Option Scheme was adopted by
the shareholders on 23 May 2003 and amended and
approved by the shareholders at the extraordinary
general meeting on 18 April 2006 (“Date of Approval”).
The amendment to the rules of the 2003 Share Option
Scheme on the Date of Approval by the shareholders
was to, among other, allow grant of options over newly
issued shares and/or transfer of existing shares by the
Trust of the Company. During the year, the 2003 Share
Option Scheme expired on 23 May 2013 and a new
Executive Share Option Scheme 2013 (the “ESOS 2013”)
was approved by the shareholders of the Company at the
extraordinary general meeting held on 23 April 2013 and
took effect on 25 April 2013. Upon expiration of the 2003
Share Option Scheme, no further option can be granted
under 2003 Share Option Scheme, but all options granted
thereunder will remain exercisable in accordance with
the terms of the 2003 Share Option Scheme. Summary
of details of the 2003 Share Option Scheme is set out
below:

FrER Ll (A) R (B)RRATIR B < 25 B
ABEALARAEEREIE R ER
B D ©

BRAXFIREEN  BEETARQAE
ERARQFHEEMEBEE(REE
ZRHERAEXVEBZER) EEER
BESRBERAEI2IFREMR 2
BELaMAmEzRG  BERATZ
KRR - HERDRESZRBERE
STRIRHEA QB KRR A2 o

Rz i 52 ARtE

(A)

2003 :2HEHERT 21

2003 BHEFEN_-_ZZT=FHA
“t=HERREARR_-_ZZEAFN
BHNB(HEBBHDRBERSR X
SEERRAEMBET - RLERE - &
2003RBRTERAZZEBITCE
BRZHE (HAPEE)EFREESIR
RABDHBRITRORHEBHAKAF
EREREREROZABE NAFE
A 2003 RBREFENER=Z—=

EA-+=HE®R T —=FTK
AERODRBETE([2013 RMDRIERE
FENDER-Z—=FTUA=-t+=H%
BRE#ME TR-_FB—=ZFNA=-1+H
BAEM - 2003 R BRI ENE MR
TEHREZEE  ERZFEATREZ
FrERBEKTRIE2003ZBETE
RBEITE - 2003 BB T B 2 F 1B
mF :
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Share O ptl ONS (continued)

(A)

2003 Share Option Scheme (continued)

The purpose of the 2003 Share Option Scheme is to
motivate the employees and directors of the Group
and the employees of associated companies (“Eligible
Employee”) and to allow them to participate in the growth
of the Company.

The total number of shares which may be issued and/or
transferred by the Trust upon exercise of all options to be
granted under the 2003 Share Option Scheme shall not
in aggregate exceed 10% of the issued share capital of
the Company at the Date of Approval of the 2003 Share
Option Scheme. The maximum entitlement for any Eligible
Employee in respect of the total number of shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of options granted and to
be granted in any 12 months period does not exceed 1%
of the shares in issue.

The option price per share upon exercise of any share
option will be determined by the directors upon the grant
of share option. It will not be less than the greatest of (a)
the average closing price of a share as stated in the daily
quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the
five business days immediately preceding the day of offer
of such a share option; (b) the closing price of a share as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on
the day of offer of such a share option, which must be a
business day; and (c) the nominal value of a share.

A nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable on
acceptance of the share option within 21 days inclusive
of, and from the date of making such offer.

The 2003 Share Option Scheme expired on 23 May 2013.

As at 1 July 2012, there were 10,150,000 outstanding
options pursuant to the 2003 Share Option Scheme.

B 19 R BEHE )

(A)

2003 :RRBHEST &l (&)

2003RBETEAECTHREERNZES
MESURABEIEZRE(EERE
8] ERETSREAQFZERE -

RIFE2003RBEAE T TREZAE
RBEETER - JRITR/REBH
EREBECRNEH  SHFBEEL
2003 REBRERT BN E H A QBRI C #1T
IRADBEZ10% ° RME[+ =@ A HE
EFMEEREERTEESRERE TR
HeRBEZCRITRETRITIRG 2
BY BRSTHEBBCBITRNDZ1%

RITEEMREE  SRKRORBER
EETENREKER  BREFIR
(UBBERE) (o RERHZABEZ
AR A EAEXABI Mz ARERR
BRzBRBROFHUTE S (o) REZ
RBEREERA(REAREXR BXzE
AREXRMBET ZERRODWTER ()
BREE -

MREBPET =T —BA ERRED
RBEAZNRERE 1T -

2003RBRETEEN=-2—=F0A8
Zt=RE" -

RZE—-—ZFE+t A —H  R1#E2003
REETE HARTEZ2RBES
10,150,000 °

BIE(ES)BRAT
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AR EREEIE =)

2003 :RRBHEST &l (&)

Share Options (continued)
(A) 2003 Share Option Scheme (continued) (A)

ZRORBEFFEOT

Details of the said share options are as follows:

Number of share options

RSB
Lapsed Exercise price
Date of grant Grantees As at during As at per share
FHEH EREA 1 July 2012 the year 30 June 2013 BRITEE
R-%-ZF RZB-=% HK$
+tHA-H REERKY ~A=+H B
26 August 2010 Employees of the Group 10,150,000 3,700,000 6,450,000 6.86 Note
“Z-ZENAZ+~AE &£EEE ik
Note: M -

The vesting of the options is subject to fulfilment of certain
prescribed performance targets and contribution criteria being
met by the grantees during the performance periods for the
financial years 2010/2011 to 2013/2014. At the end of the
relevant performance period, the Board Remuneration Committee
of the Company shall determine at its discretion, the extent of
achievement of the performance targets and contribution criteria
set out for that period, and decide on the vesting of the options
and the number of shares comprised in the vested options.
Thereafter, the grantees shall be notified of the vesting of the
options (“Date of Notification”) and shall have an exercise period
of up to 30 months following the Date of Notification to exercise
the vested options in accordance with the terms of the grant.

During the year, no options were granted pursuant to
2003 Share Option Scheme and 3,700,000 options
granted to employees were lapsed. Save as disclosed
herein, no other options were vested, exercised or
cancelled during the year. Accordingly, the number of
outstanding options was 6,450,000 at 30 June 2013.

FEABEDRBEE-_Z-ZT /—_ZT——F
EoE-Z /R -NEHREEZRREY
BRERAZRE THEHRNREBERER
AEE - NEBRRBBERE  ESEH
HWEEEKERZMBAMTR 2EERR
BEREH REXBEZEBERCEBR
BELSZROBE - ERAKEBH(H
SHHEBERBECER  XARBAS
FEHMBH=+TERANTEHRR  RERTZ
TRFRAT B 1G 2 PRI HE -

MAEER  RIE2003FBEFT 8
BIREAEE ®RFEEMS3,700,000
IRDIBRED KW o BRAFTIHESE I -
REAFERTEHEMABREEIS
B TEREUE - Bt R=ZF—=F
ARA=TH MRITEZRBEEEE A
6,450,000 °

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited
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Share O ptl ONS (continued)

(B)

ESOS 2013

ESOS 2013 was approved by the shareholders of the
Company at the extraordinary general meeting held on 23
April 2013 and took effect on 25 April 2013 (“Adoption
Date”). Summary of details of the ESOS 2013 is set out
below:

The purpose of the ESOS 2013 is as follows:

(i) to align the long term interests of any executive or
director of the Group, who is eligible to participate
in the ESOS 2013 (“Eligible Executives”) with
those of the Shareholders and encourage Eligible
Executives to assume greater responsibility for the
performance of the business that they manage;

(if) to motivate Eligible Executives towards strategic
business objectives;

(ifi) to reward Eligible Executives with an equity stake
in the success of the Group; and

(iv) to make the total compensation package more
competitive in order to attract, retain and motivate

high caliber executives.

To be eligible for participation in the ESOS 2013, a person
who must be at least eighteen (18) years of age and:

(i) be an executive of a member of the Group and has
been confirmed in service; or

(if) be a director of member of the Group.

The Board may at its absolute discretion select and
identify suitable Eligible Executives to be offered options.

AR EREEIE =)

(B)

2013 iz =2 A HERT 8l

013 ABRIFEINR-Z—=4N
BZ+T=HRARRFI ARG LERFRH
B WRZE—=FMOA=THA(E
MBER AR o 2013 RN DI EI >
R

2013 M-RIBERT RN E M T -

(i) EEBAFTEERSE2013K
NRBEFEZITHRAERES
(EERITBRAEDHRER D
HRR -3 YRBEERITH
ABHREMERE 2EBHRE
AEEREE

(ii) EEEERITHRAEERREE
HEE;

(i)  URAERZEEEENAINME
HERZEERITHAE K

vy HERBTFMSBERS LB
B HEREDSEENITEHA

8o

HEBRBE0IRNIDBEENZ
ATHEFRTN(18)REK !

(i) AEERERAZITHRAEBLE
WEANEERY =

(ii) AEEREATRZES

ExeURHEEHNREERERERE
BREERITRAERTRERE -
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AR EREEIE =)

Share O ptl ONS (continued)

(B)

ESOS 2013 (continued)

The total number of shares which may be issued and/or
transferred by the Trust upon exercise of all options to be
granted under the ESOS 2013 and any other share option
scheme shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the issued
share capital of the Company at the Adoption Date of the
ESOS 2018.

The maximum entitlement for any eligible executive in
respect of the total number of shares issued and to
be issued upon exercise of options granted and to be
granted in any 12 months period does not exceed 1% of
the Company'’s total number of shares in issue.

The Board may at its discretion determine the exercise
price of an option under the ESOS 2013 provided that the
exercise price so fixed shall not be less than the greatest
of (a) the average closing price of a share as stated in the
daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for
the five business days immediately preceding the day of
offer of such option; (b) the closing price of a share as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on
the day of offer of such option, which must be a business
day; and (c) the nominal value of a share.
A nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable on
acceptance of the share option within 30 days (or such
longer period of time as may be permitted by the Board at
its discretion) from the date of making such offer.

The ESOS 2013 will remain in force for a period of 10
years commencing on 25 April 2013.

(B)

2013 i 1R RBHERT &I (&)

RIE2013 R0 R B R BN E MR
REEETTRE AR BRERET
R AIRTR/SEBHERERES
B A SHASEBERMABEEALD
AIEBRITROBEZ10% °

REM+ZEAHE - EHESERTHR
ABRTHESEHE R 2R BER
ERITREBITROAE  HZTER
BERTROBEZ1% °

EEEURARNBERESRN2013
B RBESE TR ZRBREZITE
B HERUBEENTEERZEL AT
MRSE: QZzRBERLAHNE
184 3£ B A B AR FT B 3R R AT B A0 P 19 1
mE RO EERBEXTER (LA
REXER)RBAEHBRAEHW D
B HoRHzZHE -

RELBHEAN=ZTERN(BRES
EREPBEATN -—ERRHE) -
EWABEASNREBS 1T -

2013 R ABRET B2 BMHRA—F
—=FfNA-thHHEBHTHF-
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Share O ptl ONS (continued)

(B)

ESOS 2013 (continued)

During the year, 14,600,000 options were granted
pursuant to the ESOS 2013 to the Group Managing
Director and other Eligible Executives of the Group.

Details of the share options as at 30 June 2013 under
ESOS 2013 are as follows:

granted during the year

B 19 R BEHE )

(B) 2013 xi#y=REEHESTEI (&)

RAREER  RIBE2013KRHREE
BRANREEESAKEREIMEE
BITBAERHEAH 14,600,000 8% R4
ZRABE -NR-T—=F<A=+8"
2013 MM RBRE B ZFBAOT -

No. of options

Exercise price

Date of grant Grantees NEERERTFZ per share Notes
BHEH EEA RRBHERIE BRITEE M
HK$
B
28 June 2013 LEUNG Joseph (Group 5,000,000 462 182
—EB-=F Managing Director)
AA=Z+N\H RELEEE  EEEFHLKHE
28 June 2013 Other Eligible Executives 9,600,000 4.62 1

Total #2%: 14,600,000

—E-=fF HthEERITHAER
AAZ+N\H
Notes:

The vesting of the options is subject to the achievement
of the prescribed financial and performance targets and
the contribution criteria to be met by the grantees for
the financial periods from 1 July 2012 to 30 June 2014
and from 1 July 2014 to 30 June 2017. At the end of the
relevant performance period, the Board Remuneration
Committee of the Company shall determine, at its
discretion, the extent of achievement of the financial and
performance targets and contribution criteria set out for
that period, and decide on the vesting of the options and
the number of shares comprised in the vested options.
Thereafter, the grantees shall be notified of the vesting
of the options and shall be able to exercise the vested
options within an exercise period of up to 30 months
following the vesting of the options.

Options for 5,000,000 shares were granted pursuant
to the ESOS 2013 to Mr. LEUNG Joseph on 28 June
2013. The granting of options for 2,570,000 shares is
conditional and upon the approval of shareholders of the
Company in general meeting as required under the Listing
Rules and the terms of ESOS 20183.

1.

BEABEDREH-"Z--FtA
—HEZZE-NEAA=THRZ=
E-MELA-—HEZZ—tHXA
STRMBEFEZRBHBAERA
HEREHERNTERRERREERE
BRRE - RERRBBERE
ExEFNEESRERZBBANR
TRZEBEVHMRREERER -
RERABEZEBRCEBEIABER
EXBRHBE - BERAMEBNEER
REECHE  UAERABRESEE
BEF=TEARTEECHEBNIE
E o

RZEBE—Z=ZFXA=Z+NRH - RE
2013 MR ERETE AR ELEE
% th 5,000,000 B% BR 19 = SR BB #E - 1R
#EHRAIR 2013 R BB EE
ZIERFRE » 2,570,000 R IR 15 =
REBEDERGEL  AERQATAR
HRREADHE - HEEES -
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Share O ptl ONS (continued)

Save as disclosed herein, no other options were vested,
exercised, lapsed or cancelled under the ESOS 2013 during
the year. Accordingly, the number of outstanding options was
14,600,000 at 30 June 2018.

Save for above, certain other subsidiaries of Hong Leong
Company (Malaysia) Berhad maintain share option schemes
or plans which subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year, under which eligible directors of the Company
may be granted share options for acquisition of shares of
respective companies concerned. No person, being a director of
the Company during the year, held shares acquired in pursuance
of certain aforesaid share option schemes or plans.

Apart from above, at no time during the year was the Company,
its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party
to any arrangements to enable the directors of the Company
to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

AR EREEIE =)

MRAXFTIEEEN  RAFEER 2013 RHR
BREGTEATEEAMIBREERIRE - 17F
ARBZEBHE Bt R=ZFB—=ZFXA=1
B ERITEZREESE % 14,600,000 °

B b X Fr ot & b Hong Leong Company
(Malaysia) Berhad & FHMMBATEHRIR
HEARFEERNEMEFRGRERN R D RE
EFEIRAR Bl ARAFAEERKESIE
RRABEEARARDZBRDREE - REAFE
A BEFARQATDESIATIFERES T
LR HRBRETGTESSFRBEAZRS

BrEXCPRES  RAFER  ADE - HiE
BT - B RHERME AR EEMER
BEXBENZHZTNE  UBARAFTES
ARBBARQAREAEMEE 2 RO HES
BB -
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Substantial Shareholders’ and
Other Persons’ Interests in Shares

As at 30 June 2013, the following shareholders (other than
directors of the Company whose interests or short positions in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company as disclosed
above) had interests or short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register

FERRZFFiRiEn

REZZB-—Z=Z5XA=1tH REBSRPEMK
PIEIB6IRMEMR 2B AMPAE » T3
AT (RRRESHBEARAZROREBER
Kz KB ROFARBRD BRI FER
RARDREBEBERAFT 2R ERDHAAER S

required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of 2R
the SFO:
Approximate
Number of percentage
shares held Note of interest
RAEZRHHE Mt BmZ2BHE R
Hong Leong Company (Malaysia) Berhad (“HLCM”) 154,327,659 (A) 63.42%
QUEK Leng Chan 154,327,659 A) 63.42%
LISy
HL Holdings Sdn Bhd (“HLH”) 154,327,659 (A) 63.42%
Hong Leong Investment Holdings Pte Limited (“HLIH”) 154,327,659 (A) 63.42%
Davos Investment Holdings Private Limited (“Davos”) 154,327,659 (A) 63.42%
KWEK Leng Kee 154,327,659 (A) 63.42%

MIE(EE)BR AT
TE-=FFER
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Substantial Shareholders’ and
Other Persons’ Interests in Shares

(continued)

Note:

A)

The interests comprised (i) 140,008,659 ordinary shares in
the Company held by GuoLine International Limited (“GIL"); (ii)
4,994,000 ordinary shares in the Company held by Richly Choice
Development (PTC) Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company; and (i) 9,325,000 underlying shares of the Company
of other unlisted derivatives held by Oceanease Limited.

GIL was a wholly-owned subsidiary of GuolLine Capital Assets
Limited (“GCA”) which in turn was a wholly-owned subsidiary of
HLCM. Oceanease Limited was a wholly-owned subsidiary of
GuocoEquity Assets Limited which in turn was a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Guoco Group Limited which in turn was 74.10%
owned by GuoLine Overseas Limited (“GOL”). GOL was a wholly-
owned subsidiary of GCA. By virtue of Section 316(2) of the
SFO, HLCM was 49.27% owned by Mr. QUEK Leng Chan as
to 2.424% under his personal name, 46.534% via HLH which
was wholly owned by him and 0.311% via Newton (L) Limited.
Newton (L) Limited was wholly-owned by Newton Capital Group
Limited which was 2.424% owned by Mr. QUEK Leng Chan and
46.534% owned by HLH. HLCM was held as to 34.69% by HLIH.
Mr. KWEK Leng Kee held 41.92% interest in Davos which in turn
held 33.59% interest in HLIH.

All the interests disclosed under this section were long positions

in the ordinary shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed herein, no other person (other than directors

of the Company) has an interest or a short position in the shares

and underlying shares as recorded in the register required to be

kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of
the Company’s Listed Shares

During the year, the Company had not redeemed, and neither

the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased or sold any of

the Company’s listed shares.

FERRZFKER =)

Bzt -

ZHEFBFE () Guoline International Limited
(TGILD &8 R A 2 5 140,008,659 & & &8
B2ER () AARZZEMBAF Richly
Choice Development (PTC) Limited 48R
RRATE 4,994,000 E B 2 R i)
Oceanease Limited AR A B E I E w4
T H9,325,000 R AHEA IR 17 2 AR ©

GIL & GuolLine Capital Assets Limited
([GCADZZEM B LR %%EKBHLCM
22 &K B QA o Oceanease Limited B E
ERAEEERAAZZENRBLAR &
EABREEBERATAZZENB AT
I B GuoLine Overseas Limited ((GOLJ) # &
7410% > GOLA GCAZZEMB LT - RiE
EHERBEKRHESI6Q KRBT  HLCM Z
A02T%ERABLIBEREEUBABREE
2.424% ~ B2 EWA 2 HLHIFH 46.534%
R4 Newton (L) Limited 4 0.311% ° Newton
(L) Limited # Newton Capital Group Limited
ZEEWBAT  #EABLBEEEURA
BEIFH2.424% REHLHIE B 46.534% o
HLIH#F BHLCM 34.69% 2 # # ° KWEK
Leng Kee &4 35E Davos 41.92% 2 BREETM
Davos B3F8 HLIH 33.59% 2 B&#& °

BB EEEERBEALAFRE
BRRAD ©

MAXFIIEEEN REBSRPEMRHE
336 IR EMR 2 ECMATLEE  WEHE A
T(RRATRESHRINBFEERRATARDREBER
KRz RKBRDEERG 2 -
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Major Customers and Suppliers

Total sales to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for
less than 30% of the Group’s turnover for the year.

Total purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s purchases for the
year.

Sufficiency of Public Float

At all times during the year, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float under the Listing Rules, based on the
information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the directors.

Auditors

KPMG were first appointed as auditors of the Company in 2012
upon the retirement of PKF.

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as
auditors of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming

annual general meeting.

By Order of the Board
KWEK Leng Hai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 August 2013
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
SHAREHOLDERS OF LAM SOON (HONG KONG) LIMITED
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited (“the company”) and its
subsidiaries (together “the group”) set out on pages 76 to 184,
which comprise the consolidated and company statements of
financial position as at 30 June 2013, the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 141 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

BB EER
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT B #ZEEMiR &=

Auditor’s Responsibility (continueq)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the
group as at 30 June 2013 and of the group’s profit and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Charter Road
Central, Hong Kong

30 August 2013

BEEENEE =

B RATRFUENEBRS WBRKRR
HEBERBEENNETRE - MEENEF
BUR AR BIAM B9 HV B - B 55T (4 B N EKEF S
RMERFSUNBRREFEENERRMNE
b o EREZSERE  ZBMEZEEZAF
RREBEMAANGREWHERREEN AT
B AREHEENESREF  BENLEFSY
DNERRBEFHNERMRRER - B TFEHE
FEEEFRASHBRRNSEMERFAELE
FHERTNEEMY  URFEREMBRRNE
BH/LR -

BFERGE HFAMESHNEZREERZZNE
EMRRMNNEATEREHER -

=
=

BMRE  ZESRSHBBRRECRBE(EBUK
HELBNEEMA MR BQFAR B
BRZZ—=FA=+tHWHHERRIE =B
SEEZEZALFENRZARESRE 1B
RBEB(AAGRINZAER

EER B SR
BIFEE A

HFEHPIR
EITE 1055
KT¥KRESE

—E-—=F/7\A=tH

mIE(FES)BRAA
TE—=FFER

T4



76

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT &S8R

For the year ended 30 June 2013

BiZ 201346 A 30 H1LFE
2013 2012
—F—-=% —E-—F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
et BEFor BT
Turnover B 7 3,617,563 2,888,657
Cost of sales SHE RN (3,041,447) (2,499,073)
Gross profit EF 576,116 389,584
Other revenue and other net Hag A & 2T U E
income 8 57,770 17,553
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHER (308,927) (297,273)
Administrative expenses THEHR (144,500) (132,415)
Other operating expenses HihigeEH (93) (993)
Operating profit/(loss) R (EE) 180,366 (23,544)
Finance costs FE R AR 9 (5,550) (3,650)
Share of (loss)/profit of a jointly EEEEZESEESN
controlled entity (E18),w Rl 21 (9,158) 571
Profit/(loss) before taxation BB ATRF (B518) 10 165,658 (26,623)
Taxation BE 12(b) (34,543) (9,405)
Profit/(loss) for the year REEEFN,(FE) 131,115 (36,028)
Attributable to: BER
Equity shareholders of the RATRER
Company 14 131,115 (36,028)
Non-controlling interests FEERER - —
Profit/(loss) for the year REERRN(FE) 131,115 (36,028)
Earnings/(loss) per share (HK$) BREFN(&EE) CE%T)
Basic and diluted EARREE 16 0.55 (0.15)

The notes on pages 84 to 184 form part of these financial

statements. Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders

of the Company attributable to the profit/(loss) for the year are

set out in note 15.

FJIREBAZ 184 A BEEMERAMBHRER 2
— 840 c FAENAARRRRE 2FHBIIR

FsE 15 o

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Z& 2R

For the year ended 30 June 2013

BiZ 20134 6 530 AL FE
2013 2012
—E—=% —E—-F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BEF T
Profit/(loss) for the year ZIS‘EEE,E?FIJ/(JEEE) 777777777777777777777777 131,115 (36,028)
Other comprehensive income for the ~ AFEEHME2EWE @ BFHE :
year, net of nil tax:
ltems that may be reclassified HEUEH > EEHEHE2ER
subsequently to profit or loss:
Change in fair value of available-for- AMEHENMKEEEARER
sale financial assets ZEE - 17)
Exchange differences on translation FEIGIIMEBNTBRKRMELE
of financial statements of foreign ZE N ERE
operations 30,691 10,277
Other comprehensive income for the ~ AEEHMEEINE @ BFHE
yeanmetoltx 601 10,260
Total comprehensive income for AFEEZHKRREEE
the year 161,806 (25,768)
Attributable to: BEN
Equity shareholders of the Company RATRRER 161,806 (25,768)
Non-controlling interests FERER - —
Total comprehensive income for AEEZHKRREE
the year 161,806 (25,768)

The notes on pages 84 to 184 form part of these financial

statements.

FIREBLIE 184 A2 BEMERSTMBIRKR 2
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION Z& MBIk AR

At 30 June 2013
R2013F6 H30H
2012
—E-—fF
Note HK$’000
g BEFT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS EREBEE
Fixed assets BEEE 17(a) 691,880 658,122
Leasehold land HELTH 18 89,357 89,281
Intangible assets | EE 19 2,995 3,345
Interest in a jointly controlled entity ~ H[E#EH{EERE S 21 43,510 52,668
Available-for-sale financial assets AHHENTKERE 22 193 523
Deferred tax assets EEREBEE 13(a) 50 346
Prepayments of fixed assets BEEEEAR - 15,127
827,985 819,412
CURRENT ASSETS nEEE
Inventories FE 23(a) 558,053 584,521
Debtors, deposits and R « e KB
prepayments 24 378,915 287,651
Derivative financial instruments TEEHMIA 25 - 93
Tax recoverable PEU B R 12(e) 3,098 3,098
Cash and cash equivalents ReRhBeEH 26 490,217 451,117
1,430,283 1,326,480
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEARE
Bank loans RITER 27 269,000 347,000
Creditors, deposits received R EWiRER
and accruals EtER 28 377,398 331,303
Amount due to a jointly FE{S H R EHIE B T IE
controlled entity 21 42,771 37,659
Tax payable FEASBE R 12(e) 23,188 11,409
Other current liabilities Hitm@ 8 E 29 154 256
e nesm o Tereer
NET CURRENT ASSETS FREEE 717,772 598,853
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT #AEERZIHAER
LIABILITIES 1,545,757 1,418,265
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBaRE
Other non-current liabilities HitEReaE 30 52 197
NET ASSETS FEE 1,545,705 1,418,068
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EERfHiE
Share capital IR 31(a) 243,354 243,354
Reserves i 1,291,500 1,163,863
Equity attributable to shareholders of 27 Bl IR RAE(L#E S
the Company 1,534,854 1,407,217
Non-controlling interests FERER 10,851 10,851
TOTAL EQUITY iR 1,545,705 1,418,068
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on KEEEER_ZE—=FNA=ZTHMEERR
30 August 2013. RETBE o

WHANG Sun Tze =E=L#
DIRECTOR EE

R
EZ

LEUNG Joseph
DIRECTOR

FIRSEB4E 184 H2 S ANBERRMBRE 2
—#45 -

The notes on pages 84 to 184 form part of these financial
statements.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION Bk R 3R

At 30 June 2013
R2013%€6 H30H
2013 2012
—E—=%5 —E—F
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
Btat BETFIT BT T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FERENEE
Fixed assets BE&EE 17(b) 1,420 1,463
Investments in subsidiaries M A B 20 1,253,796 1,254,432
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEURE B A R FRIE 20 1,283,699 1,323,383
Available-for-sale financial assets HHENTHEEE 22 16 16
2,538,931 2,579,294
CURRENT ASSETS RENEE
Debtors, deposits and FERERR ~ #e Rk
prepayments T 24 243 644
Amount due from a jointly PR [E = I E g
controlled entity FRIE 21 114 2,023
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBEEHE 26 800 522
1,157 3,189
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBERE
Creditors, deposits received and AR - BliRe
accruals . kEst&F 28 11,588 18,822
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES FREAE (10,431) (10,139)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT HE&EEREHER
LIABILITIES 2,528,500 2,569,161
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERHER
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEAT BT B A Bl FRIE 20 1,555,278 1,557,550
NET ASSETS BEE 973,222 1,011,611
CAPITAL AND RESERVES B RiEE
Share capital [ 31(a) 243,354 243,354
Reserves & 33 729,868 768,257
TOTAL EQUITY A 973,222 1,011,611

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on

30 August 2013.

LEUNG Joseph 2Zf#
DIRECTOR zFE

The notes on pages 84 to 184 form part of these financial

statements.

KHESER-_T-—=FN\A=+AHERE

RETIE -

WHANG Sun Tze #EL#H

DIRECTOR

EE

FIRESAIZE 184 B2 ZFEMF AR BHREK 2

— &3 ©

mIE(FES)BRAA
TE—=FFER



80

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY &8 #ER8 R

For the year ended 30 June 2013

EFE2013F6 30 HILFE
Attributable to the shareholders of the Company
BERFATRR
Investment Share Non-
Share Share  Surplus revaluation ESOP  option Exchange  General Revenue controlling
capital premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve Total interests
BTk
REEH AWENE ROIBRE
fife fife fif ERRE -BRE GhEG Ait HERER
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
BT ERFn E¥Tr  ERFn ERTr ERFn ERTr ERFA
At 1 July 2012 W=E-Z54A-H 43354 429428 28739 1 (22382 79 97628 50,000 584656 1407217 10,851 1,418,068
Proft for the year REEEF - - - - - - - - 315 131,115 - 13,115
Exchange differences on RERMERNEE
translaton of financiel BRMELL
statements of foreign EnZE
operations - - - - - - 30,601 - - 30,691 - 30,691
Total comprehensive income for ~ AEE2FUHAE
the year - - - - - - 30,691 - 134,115 161,806 - 161,806
Equity settled share-based RRAZENNRAAR
transactions BiRs kY - - - - - (799) - - - (798) - (799)
2011112 final dvidend approved  BERRZH
and paid E-/-ck
RERE 15(b) - - - - - - - - (19,069) (19,069 - (19,069
Curent year interim dvidend ~~ BERRRAAER
declared and paid HERE 15(a) - - - - - - - - (14302)  (142302) - (14309
At 30 June 2013 HW-Z-Z£7A=1H 43354 429428 28739 1 (22382 - 128319 50000 682400 1534854 10,851 1,545,705

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited
Annual Report 2013



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY &8 #ER8 R

For the year ended 30 June 2013

BiE2013%6 530 HILFEZE
Attributable to the shareholders of the Company
BEREATRF
Investment Share Non-
Share Share Surplus  revaluation ESOP option  Exchange  General  Revenue controlling
capital  premum  reserve  reseve  reserve  feSeve  reseve  Teserve resenve Total  interests Total
BTk
REER RWEHE ROTEE
BE BiEE RBRE i it e ENBE -BRE  GERE A FEREE A
Note  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKSO000  HKS'000  HKB000  HKS000  HKSO00  HK$000  HKS'000  AKS'000
bE  BETr EETR BRFn BEFn BETn BRTr BETn BETn BEFn BEFn BETr BETx
At duy 2011 R-2--£tB-R A3/ 4948 287 18 (6829 2568 G731 0000 G44SR 1474144 10851 1484995
Lossfor e year BEERR - - - - - - - - pey  pey - 60
Change In fai value of avalable- WK ENEBER
for-sale financial assets MEZEY = = = (17) = = = = = (1) - (1
Exchange differences on RERNEBNEE
translaton of financial FRMELL
statements of foreign ENEE
operations - - - - - - 10,217 - - 10,217 - 10217
Total comprehensive income for ~ AF2AREAH
the year = = = (17) = = 10,217 - (3602 (25769 - (25768)
Equity settled share-based RRALERNRAA
transactions EBHRS kY - - - - - (1, - - - {4 - {m
Purchase of own shares for share BERHRBERZZ
option scheme K 31l - - - - (15,599 - - - - (15,85) - (16,85)
Transfer fiom revenveresene  R-FIMBA TN
to surplus reserve by a REE\RAGE
subsidiary = = 12 = = = - - (12) - - -
2010/11 fnal dvidend approved KR ft
and paid tE-g/--f
RERE 15b) - = = = = = = - (3836  (23836) - (23830)
At 30 June 2012 Ro%-2f
AB=TA 243364 429423 23739 T (2258 79 97628 50,000 584656 1407217 10,851 1,418,068

The notes on pages 84 to 184 form part of these financial DINEBAI T 184 HE 2 R IEM T AR EHREK 2
statements. — BB o

EIE(EB)BRAT]
TE—=FFER
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS Z&8IRE&RER

For the year ended 30 June 2013

EFE2013F6 30 HILFE
2013 2012
—E—=%5 —E——F
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
Btz BETIT BT
CASH FLOWS FROM BEEBNIRERE=E
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating profit/(loss) REBRRN(BR) 180,366 (23,544)
Adjustments for: G
Depreciation and amortisation E N 10 60,461 57,690
Write-down/(back) of inventories BERE(#m) 23(b) 1,552 (6,921)
Fair value loss on derivative TESIANARE
financial instruments E518 25 93 993
Charge for doubtful debts RIFREE 10 23 236
Interest income FE U A 8 (6,467) (5,069)
Net loss on disposal of fixed assets HEREEEEFEBE 8 1,224 1,498
Net gain on disposal of available- — HE&ERtHE >
for-sale financial assets MR EEFKE 8 (3,720) -
Gain on disposal of an industrial HETXAMENS
property 8 (28,626) —
Write back of long overdue other  #i&4 B Hp FE 5k
payables 8 - (1,470)
Reversal of equity settled share- B ERR AL E AR D
based payment expenses AERNRER 10 (798) (1,770)
Net unrealised exchange gain RERIMNESE R FUINEGE (18,934) (9,703)
Change in working capital: EESSNE
Decrease in inventories FEWRD 43,992 250,328
Increase in amount due to a jointly  FE4s 1t 542 {5 B2 FRIE 4y
controlled entity bl 5,112 47,900
(Increase)/decrease in debtors, AR ~ Re RIS
deposits and prepayments (), md (56,092) 38,854
Increase/(decrease) in creditors, BARR  CliRE R EST
deposits received and accruals BRI, CRL) 34,520 (13,503)
Net cash settlement of derivative TTESMIAEZFRSE
financial instruments HLEEE - (3,397)
Cash generated from operations REEBRMEENRSE 212,706 332,122
Tax paid 2BIE
Hong Kong profits tax paid ENEBREBH (2,205) (12,744)
Tax paid outside Hong Kong BN EBIBIR (20,538) (11,470)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM {EZ£EMBIRLFHE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 189,963 307,908

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited
Annual Report 2013



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS Z&8IR&RER

For the year ended 30 June 2013

BLZ2013F 6 A30 HILEE
2013 2012
—T—=%5 —E——F
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
et BT BT T
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING #REEFFHHIRLKRE
ACTIVITIES
Interest received 2 RFE 6,467 5,069
Purchase of fixed assets and BEEEEEREE L
leasehold land (59,402) (108,517)
Purchase of intangible assets BERLEE - (950)
Net proceeds from disposal HE T E RN ET
of available-for-sale financial BEMNMESRIEFE
assets 4,050 —
Net proceeds from disposal of HEEEEENFE
fixed assets RIEFER 691 765
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING #&EFHHNFARE
ACTIVITIES B (48,194) (103,633)
CASH FLOWS FROM REETPHHRSRE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net (repayment)/draw down of IRITERMORD) /1
bank loans (78,000) 119,000
Decrease in obligations under REHEESENRD
finance leases (247) (249)
Purchase of own shares for share  ARHPABESIRES 2
option scheme gl - (15,553)
Interest paid FTHFE (5,550) (3,650)
Dividends paid FHERE (33,371) (23,836)
NET CASH (USED IN)/ MEEE(FA) FE
GENERATED FROM H&iBHE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES (117,168) 75,712
INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH & RIRS%HE/E N
EQUIVALENTS 24,601 279,987
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (#I&RIFELHEER
AT THE BEGINNING OF THE
YEAR 451,117 170,579
EFFECT OF FOREIGN ERESHHBE
EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES 14,499 551
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS £XIFE& RIS ZHEEMN
AT THE END OF THE YEAR 490,217 451,117

The notes on pages 84 to 184 form part of these financial DINESLIZ 184 HE o RIEM T BRI EIRE 2

statements. — B
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAfEsR =Mzt

For the year ended 30 June 2013

BIZ20136F30 HILFEZF
1. General Information

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited (the “Company”) is a

limited liability company incorporated in Hong Kong. The

registered office and the principal place of business of the

Company is located at 21 Dai Fu Street, Tai Po Industrial

Estate, Tai Po, New Territories, Hong Kong. During the

year, the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred

to as the “Group”) were principally engaged in the

manufacturing and sales of flour products, edible oil and

household and institutional cleaning products.

Significant Accounting Policies

(a)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which
collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”). A summary of the
significant accounting policies adopted by the
Group is set out below.

1.

— R

MIEEB)BRAACAQA DA —
BREBEMELNERQF - AAFH
NEMRBEREELEMMUNE R
MAXBABIENAREH T3
FR-ARAREWBQR(SB AE
BDNEEXBHRERDHEY |
Al RARIEREZAM -

EETEFBUR

(a)

ErEH

FMBRRERBEFTBEFOAQ
S(EBSMAE ) AEMZ
FEEREBMBHREER(E
BUMBHREER]D - KEBERE
FAEERZEREBYBREE
Bl BBEERN(EBEHE
A Kk#EE - EBEELARESR
RAIREE ARG 2K ERE
MiRE - NUBHRERIFEEB
BEXSHERDBDEFS LHHR
Al 2 BRAKER - TXIIEAE
EERAZETEZSHBEYE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAfEsR =Mzt

For the year ended 30 June 2013
EFE2013F6 30 HILFE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance (continued)

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for
early adoption for the current accounting period
of the Group and the Company. Of these, the
Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial
statements — Presentation of items of other
comprehensive income have been effective from 1
July 2012. The Amendments to HKAS 1 require an
entity to present the items of other comprehensive
income that may be reclassified to profit or loss in
the future if certain conditions are met separately
from those that would never be reclassified to
profit or loss. This change in presentation has no
effect on reported profit or loss, total income and
expenses or net assets for any period presented.

The Group has not applied any new/revised
standard and interpretation that is not yet effective
for the current accounting period (see note 3).

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 30 June 2013 comprise the Group and the
Group’s interests in a jointly controlled entity.

The measurement basis used in the preparation
of the financial statements is the historical cost
basis except that the following assets and liabilities
are stated at their fair value as explained in the
accounting policies set out below:

— Available-for-sale financial assets (see note
2(f); and

— Derivative financial instruments (see note
2(9)-

2. EEEFHERK®

(a)

(b)

ErEHE)

BBETRMASCHEME TRA
EERADDAETFEERE
2R A IE R AN B0 3 R RS ET
ZEBYBREER - Hh - &
BERTEERE 1 S RT AT B R
K225 — Htv2EWmES
ZE2VNIER=-B-Z—FtA -
REBAEN - ZIBATARE  £HE
THREFE2BERT - BEEH
feZEWERRBRUTEHRDHE
ERHCEE BAEEHIE
EEFZAEIHEY - BE=2
e SBHEMHRZIHMEZE
2HiEH BRARFEETLE

B
& o

REEIZBRAEFCHEME
fisd RAERZ 7] ~ AZEFT AV E R
RRE(RMEES) -

MBERRENEE

BE-Z-—=FxA=1HL*F
ErGAlERREENER
R & B — R [E) 2 F {E 5E = 1

32
e

AL BRRARAZTER
ERBLERAE  HUTUER
REFEZEERBERI :

- HAHEENUHEER
FEE2(7) © &
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAfEsR =Mzt

For the year ended 30 June 2013
EFE2013F6 30 HILFE

2. Significant Accounting Policies 2. EEEiEE @)

(continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial (b) BABHBTEHEE(E)
statements (continued)

The preparation of financial statements in AREFEE B BREENZ
conformity with HKFRSs requires management BEHRER  SEEAUEERR
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions ZER - EEEBERBEIIFRIE
that affect the application of policies and HHE - EETRER o BRI
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income REBE2BRDREBBELS
and expenses. The estimates and associated DURZEEERBERTHEEBES
assumptions are based on historical experience BeHMEEmMMEL  BEER
and various other factors that are believed to be 1 ATE R B 1B H iR R BN B 1
reasonable under the circumstances, the results Y115 M & = B & S IR E E AT
of which form the basis of making the judgements HHETNER  c BRFERTaE
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that WERAFRETRE o

are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are EEEETHBEBSEMTNE
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to BRFZ - MREBFHEFTWEBITR
accounting estimates are recognised in the period EYEE U HEZEER
in which the estimate is revised if the revision ZHBERNER  MRBITHER
affects only that period, or in the period of the MARBAEHEETE > AEED
revision and future periods if the revision affects 1ERT BV EAR FI R R HARE FE R o

both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the EEEEREAR MRS ER
application of HKFRSs that have significant effect A ELE U BHRREEARTE
on the financial statements and major sources of HHERETTTREEENEZR
estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 4. HE A EE 4 st o
(c) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (c) MBATIRIEEER

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. MBAT I AEFEG S
Control exists when the Group has the power to ErEEAEREEZCEZTE
govern the financial and operating policies of an RSB R UG EEE P EER
entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. 7w HRBEBEFE - REME
In assessing control, potential voting rights that HIFER > BEAFTEZBER
presently are exercisable are taken into account. EROREE o

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited
Annual Report 2013



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAfEsR =Mzt

For the year ended 30 June 2013
EFE2013F6 30 HILFE

2. Significant Accounting Policies 2. EEEiEE @)

(continued)

(c) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (c) MIBASIRIEIERHELR &)
(continued)
An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into REBLARZRERBEREZS
the consolidated financial statements from the date EEHEESHEREMBR
that control commences until the date that control o BHEZEHREELALE £
ceases. Intra-group balances and transactions BRABERZEHRERZRER
and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group BARRGMEE ZEMARER
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing mF o HRERLS S ISR RS
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised R c EELBRAEZER
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are T EERABRZAELEZRE
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains REE SREREREZFAER
but only to the extent that there is no evidence of 2T A o
impairment.
Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a FERESRIETLHFBAARATEE
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to HEEEENEGHE QT NE
the Company, and in respect of which the Group @ MAREREZEERZNE
has not agreed any additional terms with the BEEREEMEIMERMS AE
holders of those interests which would result in the EERUZSRBELENTEER
Group as a whole having a contractual obligation in BENEENENERE-

respect of those interests that meets the definition
of a financial liability.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the FEREREREVBERRERN
consolidated statement of financial position within EERA o EARQATRREGEDS
equity, separately from equity attributable to DR o FERESIEAE
the equity shareholders of the Company. Non- BEEZIEREVWRRREE
controlling interests in the results of the Group are E2EBEERA > 2HBFEREE
presented on the face of the consolidated income FREE R 2R R ARE W 2 6
statement and the consolidated statement of ZPERERRADARERE
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total & o

profit or loss and total comprehensive income for
the year between non-controlling interests and the
equity shareholders of the Company.

mIE(FES)BRAA
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAfEsR =Mzt

For the year ended 30 June 2013
EFE2013F6 30 HILFE

2. Significant Accounting Policies 2. EEEitB¥E «)

(continued)

(c) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (c) MEBASIRIEEERELF)
(continued)
Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary EXEER—MBARERZLER
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted B8 EWMAEIEFIE AU
for as equity transactions, whereby adjustments BEZXH AR MEFREEZA
are made to the amounts of controlling and non- DIAARER R R R ISR IR R AE
controlling interests within consolidated equity ENHBELARMEEESEE
to reflect the change in relative interests, but no BEHEENTERAZERERER
adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or BARWER -

loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is EAREEKE—KB AT RIEE
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in > AUEEEZIRZMB AR
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being B AR YEEBZAERIRLK
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in WERSHIB K o FK EIZEHIZA M
that former subsidiary at the date when control is BAEEHES B MRS WER
lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is BESZAUANAERR  mZEEE
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a WRBEAUAAEERINS
financial asset (see note 2(f)) or, when appropriate, MEESBEME2N X WE
the cost on initial recognition of an investment E BREAEBREIRENR—B
in a jointly controlled entity (see note 2(d)) or an + [3] 428 5 {8 88 = B A B B R AR
associate. (Z2MMKIsE2(d)) °
In the Company’s statement of financial position, RADQBZHBRRERA > R—
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less KB A B 2 RE R KA BRI
impairment losses (see note 2(k)(i)). BEEBYIR(RMEE2(K)()) °

(d) Jointly controlled entity (d) HEEGHEE
A jointly controlled entity is an entity which HEEZEFCEDARNEBEEME
operates under a contractual arrangement between BREANLRERE ¥ -5
the Group or the Company and other parties, ZENZHTHARNEBE—ZR
where the contractual arrangement establishes that DEzEMAHEEHZEEZ
the Group or the Company and one or more of the BETEE o

other parties share joint control over the economic
activity of the entity.

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAfEsR =Mzt

For the year ended 30 June 2013
EFE2013F6 30 HILFE

2. Significant Accounting Policies 2. EEEiEE @)

(continued)

(d) Jointly controlled entity (continued) (d) HEEHERE)
An investment in a jointly controlled entity is RAREHER 2 REREGSEY
accounted for in the consolidated financial BRRERERETEAR - &
statements under the equity method. Under the BEEBIEZT  RALURK
equity method, the investment is initially recorded AR RREBEEGTEWER®
at cost, adjusted for any excess of the Group’s KEETRFEEAABRBR
share of the acquisition-date fair values of the HEERAR(MB)ELFE - IE
investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost of BRAEEELBEREEZTEE
the investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment EWEENEHRBEEZREN
is adjusted for the post acquisition change in the BEEEELRAZE(ZBEHE2e)
Group’s share of the investee’s net assets and K 2(k)(i)) o BT 7E Y EE B EL ¥ X
any impairment loss relating to the investment AYNBHE - FREAEBEEN
(see notes 2(e) and 2(k)()). Any acquisition-date BREENWWNBELGRBRBEE
excess over cost, the Group’s share of the post- UREMBESEDRGSER
acquisition, post-tax results of the investees and KRER > MAKEEGERERE
any impairment losses for the year are recognised EHMEZERENWRBERRE
in the consolidated income statement, whereas BEBEDRGREEABRERARE
the Group’s share of the post-acquisition post- e

tax items of the investees’ other comprehensive
income is recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its EAREBEE/LEEEGEE 2 E
interest in the jointly controlled entity, the Group’s BEEBHEERE  AEEEGRE
interest is reduced to nil and recognition of further HZEERLEZ WAFBER
losses is discontinued except to the extent that the EINER EANEBEBITEE
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations REEERL > IRNWREQTE
or made payments on behalf of the investee. For BRI - AT S » NEE
this purpose, the Group’s interest is the carrying BiEREEZBIRBERETE
amount of the investment under the equity method ZRERAEE  UREE LEK
together with the Group’s long-term interests AEEEHEREZEFEEBREFEHE
that in substance form part of the Group’s net ZREER ©

investment in the jointly controlled entity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAfEsR =Mzt

For the year ended 30 June 2013
EFE2013F6 30 HILFE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(d)

(e)

Jointly controlled entity (continued)

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its jointly
controlled entity are eliminated to the extent
of the Group’s interest in the investee, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred, in which case
they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When the Group ceases to have joint control over
a jointly controlled entity, it is accounted for as a
disposal of the entire interest in that investee, with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or
loss. Any interest retained in that former investee
at the date when joint control is lost is recognised
at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair
value on initial recognition of a financial asset (see
note 2(f)).

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of () the aggregate
of the fair value of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree; over
(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets and liabilities measured as at the acquisition
date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a gain
on a bargain purchase.

2. EEEFHERK®

(d)

(e)

3 = @S (F)

AEBMEAAEZGEERE 22X
SR 2 REREBR  HEE
SEEGHBEZESNEREDIE
i REIBEEEZPCERE
EHBRBERS - LARRER

N
a0

BN E B T B L E I ) E I
B REHEFREREEN
> EERIER > ALEENKS
REBTEBRAER - ERAH
EEFIEE B MRS EEAHR
EENRBZRANERARLE
SHEEVRBERACREE(ZH
MIEE2(f) BEEIE A AfE ©

]

i

BMERARUATHEME(HREN
ARE - WINEENEERERS
HEREERACEEHWES
BRAEENANENERE; Bl
(IIRWBER  HKBENATE
EEREBENFAAME -

= (i) B () - 2B ERRE
BREARRS—REWRBRES -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAfEsR =Mzt

For the year ended 30 June 2013
EFE2013F6 30 HILFE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(e)

(f)

(9)

Goodwill (continued)

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a business
combination is allocated to each cash-generating
unit, or groups of cash generating units, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination and is tested annually for impairment
(see note 2(K)(ii)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during
the year, any attributable amount of purchased
goodwill is included in the calculation of the profit
or loss on disposal.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Investments in equity securities are initially stated
at fair value, which is their transaction price unless
fair value can be more reliably estimated using
valuation techniques whose variables include only
data from observable markets. Costs includes
attributable transaction costs.

At the end of each reporting period the fair value of
investment in listed equity securities classified as
available-for-sales financial assets are remeasured,
with any resultant gain or loss being recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the investment revaluation
reserve. When these investments are derecognised
or impaired (see note 2(k)(i)), the cumulative gain or
loss is reclassified from equity to profit or loss.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised
initially at fair value. At the end of each reporting
period the fair value is remeasured. The gain or
loss on remeasurement to fair value is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

2. EEEEER®

(e)

(f)

(9)

[: 1160

BEERANRETRHESES
R-EBEHELEZHEIRE
eSS ERGHZHREER
ZEREHEEENSRELEESE
LR R - 30 A FEATRE R
=2 (B RBMEE 2(k) (i) ©

REEAHENREEES MG
HEHEENREEBSTAEMT
REBNBABESE -

ot BB EE

ERZRERDABEEIX
Z B ME IR - ERAGE
Ri(A2BEEERFITHRE
WmiE 2 BIE)MEEE A EMTTH
DABERND - MABEEEE
ERZ A °

RERESHKB  HHREATMH
HENMBEENLTHEFRE
HEHTEAREE MAELE
ZEZEEEREMEEmKET
REZPZREBAHFHBEBILR
TRR - MEERERLEER
SR E R (R M E2K)() » BFF
MEREEEETHESRE

ER&EP o
THEEMTIA

TMESMIAENSRAAER
RN ESEEEHENTE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAfEsR =Mzt

For the year ended 30 June 2013
EFE2013F6 30 HILFE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(h)

Fixed assets

Fixed assets are stated in the statement of financial
position at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses (see note 2(k)(ii)). The cost
of an asset comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to
its present working condition and location for its
intended use. Expenditure incurred after a fixed
asset has been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to profit
or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situation where it can be clearly demonstrated that
the expenditure has resulted in an increase in the
future economic benefits expected to be obtained
from the use of the fixed asset, the expenditure is
capitalised as an additional cost of the fixed asset.

Construction in progress is stated at cost
less impairment losses (see note 2(k)(ii)). Cost
comprises direct costs of construction, capitalised
borrowing costs and exchange differences to
the extent that it is an adjustment to borrowing
costs during the periods of construction and
installation. Capitalisation of these costs ceases
and the construction in progress is transferred to
fixed assets when substantially all the activities
necessary to prepare the assets for their intended
use are completed. No depreciation is provided
for in respect of construction in progress until it is
completed and ready for its intended use.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
items of fixed assets, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight-line method over
their estimated useful lives as follows:

Buildings and leasehold 3-25 years
improvements
Plant, equipment, furniture and 3-20 years

motor vehicles

2. EEEEER®

(h)

BE&E

BEEEDNERARBITER
B (BB 18 51 BR (R B & 2(K) (i) °
EENBAEEEBANKE
MERZIBREEBREEFELE
REZHRERAAENRENX
NWER  EEEEERAENRF
B MEEKRRE BB
FRELEZEXHNHBERR
THIMEER - fEREBERBERE
ZEXHERMATRBRER
ZIEEEEEMEE M RRER
M AZEXHBBREZEE
EEEMNFEIRA o

2 TR KA R BRI E R 1B 5
BR(RMIEE2(Kk)(i) - RABFER
REZKPANEEEZRAA -
EERARELERE BFEER
ARERZMBENEBIERY
TERE EERAEEFEILER
£ MEZIROEREREE
EEE TERIBETILAIRE
RRABRERER  FHREM
EEME -

B EEEZHMAE T RFH
T ) BAE % 5 OB, EL RS R BR H

HETRIRE/E(MER) :
BEFERES 3-254
R -~ RE - R 3-20%
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAfEsR =Mzt

For the year ended 30 June 2013
EFE2013F6 30 HILFE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(h)

(i)

Fixed assets (continued)

Where parts of an item of fixed assets have
different useful lives, the cost of the item is
allocated on a reasonable basis between the parts
and each part is depreciated separately. Both the
useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any,

are reviewed annually.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or
disposal of an item of fixed assets are determined
as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item
and are recognised in profit or loss on the date of
retirement or disposal.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group
are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation
(where the estimated useful life is finite) and
impairment losses (see note 2(K)(ii)). Expenditure
on internally generated goodwill and brands is
recognised as an expense in the period in which it
is incurred.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful
lives is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the assets’ estimated useful lives. The
following intangible asset with finite useful life is
amortised from the date it is available for use and
its estimated useful life is as follows:

Trademark 5 years

Both the period and method of amortisation are
reviewed annually.

2. EEEFHERK®

(h)

(i)

BEE&E#)

fi —IE¥%E  BWERRMEH 2T
BMHE TR ZAERFS » &
BHEHZRAKEEMSRESS
7 MEBDRIBULTRATE -
BECIRFHARMGRIGEE
RS EFRE -
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BffEEZBERHEZRE R
SREFHEEZEERAEZE
B URHRERIHEERTRSE
MR ©
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TEBRBEBEEERRAR
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BB S 18 (R B EE 2(K)(ii) 51 BR ©
AREEHERREZZHRE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAfEsR =Mzt

For the year ended 30 June 2013
EFE2013F6 30 HILFE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(j) Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a

series
Group

of transactions, is or contains a lease if the
determines that the arrangement conveys a

right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed

period

of time in return for a payment or a series of

payments. Such a determination is made based on

an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement

and is

regardless of whether the arrangement takes

the legal form of a lease.

(i)

Classification of assets leased to the
Group

Assets that are held by Group under leases
which transfer to the Group substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership
are classified as being held under finance
leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the Group are classified
as operating leases, with the following
exception:

— Land held for own use under an
operating lease, the fair value of
which cannot be measured separately
from the fair value of a building
situated thereon at the inception of
the lease, is accounted for as being
held under a finance lease, unless the
building is also clearly held under an
operating lease. For these purposes,
the inception of the lease is the time
that the lease was first entered into
by the Group, or taken over from the

previous lessee.

2. EEEEER®

1)

HE&E

MRAEEL-EHZH(BHE -
B -—RIRZ)BERE—R
HEAEERE AN -LREER
ENEAE UBRIM-—FERNZE
% RAEBRzHERSHE -
BEREAGBENEEZHFT
AE - MAEERZHRESIR
HEAERERR -

(i) FEEHESEZHHE
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-  LeEBEHERER
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAfEsR =Mzt

For the year ended 30 June 2013
BiF 20136 530 H1LFE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

()

Leased assets (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of
assets under finance leases, the amounts
representing the fair value of the leased
asset, or, if lower, the present value of
the minimum lease payments, of such
assets are included in fixed assets and
the corresponding liabilities, net of finance
charges, are recorded as obligations under
finance leases. Depreciation is provided at
rates which write off the cost of the assets
over the term of the relevant lease or, where
it is likely the Group will obtain ownership of
the asset, the life of the asset, as set out in
note 2(h). Impairment losses are accounted
for in accordance with the accounting policy
as set out in note 2(k)(ii). Finance charges
implicit in the lease payments are charged
to profit or loss over the period of the leases
so as to produce an approximately constant
periodic rate of charge on the remaining
balance of the obligations for each
accounting period. Contingent rentals are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets
held under operating leases, payments
made under the leases are charged to
profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis
is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised
in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments made.
Contingent rentals are charged to profit or
loss in the accounting period in which they
are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an
operating lease is amortised on a straight-
line basis over the period of the lease term.

2. EEEEER®

1)

HE&EEE)

(ii)

(iii)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAfEsR =Mzt

For the year ended 30 June 2013
EFE2013F6 30 HILFE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(k) Impairment of assets

(i)

Impairment of investments in equity
securities and other receivables

Investments in equity securities and other
current and non-current receivables that
are stated at cost or amortised cost or
are classified as available-for-sale financial
assets are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period to determine whether
there is objective evidence of impairment.
Objective evidence of impairment includes
observable data that comes to the attention
of the Group about one or more of the
following loss events:

— significant financial difficulty of the
debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a
default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments;

= it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;
= significant changes in the
technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have an

adverse effect on the debtor; and

— a significant or prolonged decline in
the fair value of an investment in an

equity instrument below its cost.

2. EEEFHERK®

(k)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAfEsR =Mzt

For the year ended 30 June 2013
BiF 20136 530 H1LFE

2. Significant Accounting Policies 2. EEEitB¥E «)

(continued)
(k) Impairment of assets (continued) (k) BEREGE)
(i) Impairment of investments in equity (i) IRFEEHF IR S B A b FENS
securities and other receivables BRECHI R (E (&)
(continued)

MBEEMNEERBEE
BEEEERERSEILEN

If any such evidence exists, any impairment
loss is determined and recognised as

For investments in subsidiaries
and jointly controlled entities
(including those recognised using
the equity method (see note 2(d))),
the impairment loss is measured by
comparing the recoverable amount
of the investment with its carrying
amount in accordance with note 2(k)
(i). The impairment loss is reversed
if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount in
accordance with note 2(k)(ii).

follows: TAHRRESR :

-  HRMEBARRE
RREZEZEN
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAfEsR =Mzt

For the year ended 30 June 2013
EFE2013F6 30 HILFE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(k) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of investments in equity
securities and other receivables
(continued)
— For debtors, deposits and
prepayments and other financial
assets carried at amortised cost,
the impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e. the
effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition of these assets),
where the effect of discounting
is material. This assessment is
made collectively where these
financial assets share similar risk
characteristics, such as similar
past due status, and have not been
individually assessed as impaired.
Future cash flows for financial assets
which are assessed for impairment
collectively are based on historical
loss experience for assets with credit
risk characteristics similar to the
collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of
an impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised, the impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss. A reversal
of an impairment loss shall not result in the
asset’s carrying amount exceeding that
which would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior
years.

2. EEEEER®
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAfEsR =Mzt

For the year ended 30 June 2013
EFE2013F6 30 HILFE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(k) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of investments in equity
securities and other receivables
(continued)

— For available-for-sale equity
securities, the cumulative loss
that has been recognised in the
investment revaluation reserve is
reclassified to profit or loss. The
amount of the cumulative loss that
is recognised in profit or loss is the
difference between the acquisition
cost (net of any principal repayment
and amortisation) and current fair
value, less any impairment loss on
that asset previously recognised in
profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in
profit or loss in respect of available-
for-sale equity securities are not
reversed through profit or loss. Any
subsequent increase in the fair value
of such assets is recognised in other

comprehensive income.

2. EEEFHERK®

(k) BEREGE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAfEsR =Mzt

For the year ended 30 June 2013

B Z2013% 6530 HIFFE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(k) Impairment of assets (continued)

2. EEEEER®

(k) HEREGE)

(i) Impairment of investments in equity (i) R e 4 1B S B H (i FEWT
securities and other receivables BEStag (g (48)
(continued)

Impairment losses are written off HEERRMAEN
against the corresponding assets B e
directly, except for impairment {BEpE R BE N FTRE
losses recognised in respect of DHPHEEE 2
trade debtors, whose recovery is [B] #46 = 3 38 B AR 5R
considered doubtful but not remote. MIEWE > QIR
In this case, the impairment losses for BB A 1B A B
doubtful debts are recorded using an BEEE o f§2NEH
allowance account. When the Group A U B =
is satisfied that recovery is remote, AW EAEEE
the amount considered irrecoverable U [E] By 2k EE 12 FE Uk
is written off against trade debtors BEZh b BT EEHMAY -
directly and any amounts held in MESERBERS
the allowance account relating to mh ) ABEG =018 B F

100 that debt are reversed. Subsequent LI E o {% 2 ATET
recoveries of amounts previously ABERFHNIE
charged to the allowance account HWE - Bl #EE
are reversed against the allowance EEE S @ 8 o 13
account. Other changes in the B85 B i H fh & 8
allowance account and subsequent REZBWELHE
recoveries of amounts previously S EE - 1
written off directly are recognised in NIBZEHES o
profit or loss.

(i)  Impairment of other assets (i) BMZEHE
Internal and external sources of information NEBAEEBERERS
are reviewed at the end of each reporting PR SNIRE R BE - LU
period to identify indications that the PR TIHEEERTEER
following assets may be impaired or, except B> RZAFFEDZRE
in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss BB (EERAEBERN)
previously recognised no longer exists or ERCLABEEFEERAED
may have decreased: LD
= fixed assets; — BEEBE;
= leasehold land; — AELih:
= intangible assets; and — \EEBEE R
= goodwill. — e

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAfEsR =Mzt

For the year ended 30 June 2013
EFE2013F6 30 HILFE

2. Significant Accounting Policies 2. EEEitB¥E «)

(continued)
(k) Impairment of assets (continued) (k) BEREGE)
(i)  Impairment of other assets (continued) (i) BHEENHEE)

EREMABKETR LB
wo BEMNATWEEES
SR o LS - BNFEIL R
EBRERS BE - K

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. In
addition, for goodwill, intangible assets that
are not yet available for use and intangible

costs to sell and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax

assets that have indefinite useful lives, the ] {55 FA K2 2 BR E W] {5 A HR
recoverable amount is estimated annually RO EENIRFET
whether or not there is any indication of RERE ©
impairment.
Calculation of recoverable amount = FTE O EEE
The recoverable amount of an asset EENTKREEER
is the greater of its fair values less RELEFESE

REETHNERS
& -EBEFERE
B8 - T ARRER
TR B IERBA

discount rate that reflects current TIRERFHEITR
market assessments of time value B URBEMEHE
of money and the risks specific to R £ RNEREE
the asset. Where an asset does MZEENBER
not generate cash inflows largely B2 B FEA o i K18
independent of those from other EEMEAEZRE
assets, the recoverable amount is IR LB
determined for the smallest group of REMEENRS

assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating
unit).

o ARBYESL
BRERm&—4
EEASE—1E
RE4EEEM)R
BE W EE
@ o

HIR(EB) ERAR
—T=FEH

101



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAfEsR =Mzt

For the year ended 30 June 2013
EFE2013F6 30 HILFE

2. Significant Accounting Policies 2. EEEitB¥E «)

(continued)
(k) Impairment of assets (continued) (k) EBEREE
(i)  Impairment of other assets (continued) (i) HMEENREE)
—  Recognition of impairment losses — ERREESE
An impairment loss is recognised in FEERHEMBIR
profit or loss if the carrying amount SHEESBENVNERE
of an asset, or the cash-generating BEREETWEE
unit to which it belongs, exceeds B AREBERER
its recoverable amount. Impairment HESE - AR
losses recognised in respect of cash- SHEEBUMER
generating units are allocated first ZBEEE &8
to reduce the carrying amount of S LAMUR 2R &
any goodwill allocated to the cash- SEEN(S—4A
generating unit (or group of units) and Bu)zREaEme
then, to reduce the carrying amount ZIRHEE  ARIE
of the other assets in the unit (or b 151 53 4> B8 {3z (=
102 group of units) on a pro rata basis, —HEN) R E A
except that the carrying value of an EEZRHEE B
asset will not be reduced below its EENEREEANH
individual fair value less costs to sell, RWEERENER S
or value in use, if determinable. EREBHNAR
=5 A EE( e
H®’E) °
= Reversals of impairment losses = [E]7% 5 18 5 15
In respect of assets other than EEEmEBUININE
goodwill, an impairment loss B uRAEEE
is reversed if there has been a EEAWEEEN
favourable change in the estimates B HBEEEEE
used to determine the recoverable Wk BERE
amount. An impairment loss in EESEEE -8
respect of goodwill is not reversed. AmEZREEIEEA

TEWEE -

A reversal of impairment losses is REEE 2 B 4E
limited to the asset’s carrying amount TEBBRBRERZE
that would have been determined EXFRREZER
had no impairment loss been R EEEmMEE
recognised in prior years. Reversals ZIREE - WEE
of impairment losses are credited to B2 EBENER
profit or loss in the year in which the EEZ2EFEARATTA
reversals are recognised. EHEZ

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAfEsR =Mzt

For the year ended 30 June 2013
EFE2013F6 30 HILFE

2. Significant Accounting Policies 2. EEEiEE @)

(continued)

() Inventories n =&
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and BEDURAR JERFEZE
net realisable value. Cost is determined on a KEDIER o B ANIZ oL HIERT
first-in, first-out basis and, in the case of work E ¥ AREREORAEE
in progress and finished goods, cost comprises EEERH BEEAIREMLD
direct materials, direct labour and an attributable BHREEER °

proportion of production overheads.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in TR REEIEEE P 2 e
the ordinary course of business less the estimated EBRETRRZ ZMeTRAR
costs of completion and the estimated costs ETHEREZMETRAR -

necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount HEFER  HEEEEAREBAI

of those inventories is recognised as an expense ABRBABRR AR - EW7F

in the period in which the related revenue is ESEMRZETE2RFERTE
recognised. The amount of any write-down of THEEESR MRS EEye 103
inventories to net realisable value and all losses of EHRNEIARE c WEFEEZM
inventories are recognised as an expense in the BB EE > AIRERER

period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount HRIBERFEREER -

of any reversal of any write-down of inventories
is recognised as a reduction in the amount of
inventories recognised as an expense in the period
in which the reversal occurs.

(m) Debtors, deposits and prepayments (m) FEUWCBRRR « RERTFAFR
Debtors, deposits and prepayments are initially FEWRERR - MERFBENFTIRAR
recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at BEBER  HEZBHERAR
amortised cost using the effective interest method, R BR R E BT 18 (R M & 2(k)()
less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts SRR I EEEWTEKNE
(see note 2(k)(i)), except where the receivables WFES IR M TR A T FRE
are interest-free loans made to related parties EEFHzREERBRI - £
without any fixed repayment terms or the effect of ZERT > EWFHREEIER AR
discounting would be immaterial. In such cases, I 8RR E B 18 (R M & 2(k)())
the debtors, deposits and prepayments are stated HIBR o

at cost less impairment losses for doubtful debts
(see note 2(k)(i)).

mIE(FES)BRAA
TE—=FFER



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAfEsR =Mzt

For the year ended 30 June 2013
EFE2013F6 30 HILFE

2. Significant Accounting Policies 2. EEEitB¥E «)

(continued)

(n) Interest-bearing borrowings (n) PMIEER
Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially MEBREAARBREMLR SR
at fair value less attributable transaction costs. KRB HER - DIRERE A
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing LU AN GIBE - MAIIRHE
borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any REFHBOEBEZEMZE
difference between the amount initially recognised HUEBFZ AR ERARER
and redemption value being recognised in profit or EAEMFNERERERERE
loss over the period of the borrowings, together o

with any interest and fees payable, using the
effective interest method.

(o) Creditors, deposits received and accruals (o) FEFERR - ElWix& RES
&H
Creditors, deposits received and accruals EBAERER SRR REFER
are initially recognised at fair value and are BRARBIERER - HBREHE
104 subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the BRAAEE  HEITHESZENTLE
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which K> AR AER ©

case they are stated at cost.

(p) Cash and cash equivalents p) BRERBRELHE

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank RekBEEHERERITERR
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and W~ TR R 1T A H b B 35 4%
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly BEHER REHESRE
liquid investments that are readily convertible into MeRE ZERETEREE
known amounts of cash and which are subject to REHNgECRe MEEESE
an insignificant risk of changes in value, having BERAA WEBABR=EA
been within three months of maturity at acquisition. R EHE -

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited
Annual Report 2013



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAfEsR =Mzt

For the year ended 30 June 2013
EFE2013F6 30 HILFE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(a)

Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

Short term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual
leave, contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans and cost of non-monetary
benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by
employees. Where payment or settlement is
deferred and the effect would be material,
these amounts are stated at their present
values.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee
cost with a corresponding increase in share
option reserve within equity. The fair value
is measured at grant date using the Black-
Scholes model, taking into account the
terms and conditions upon which the share
options were granted. Where the employees
have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the
share options, the total estimated fair value
of the options is spread over the vesting
period, taking into account the probability
that the share options will vest.

2. EEEFHERK®

(a)

EE&EF
() FERIESEFIREEHE
RCBIRE B2 R

(ii)

- FRIEA BEFF
B~ B E TR NG E
ZHBRRFETEBR 2K
AR EERHEBERE
ZEEFRE c ENNIE
EHREER AR EBE
R ZEBEERFHREA
BE o

LR BERZ (15

BETREEZROZBER
RESRIADEERA -
17 FEE 2 PP 9 AR 4D W0 B R £
BB o A RETY
EAMOR — TR
X BROZABERTA
AE WEEBRTRO
RBEZRR - BREEA
555 BH R 7 T AR
HEBZERHADBE -
B ARERBEERBS
RED AR TEZER
NRBERBHRAE -

mIE(FES)BRAA
TE—=FFER
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAfEsR =Mzt

For the year ended 30 June 2013
EFE2013F6 30 HILFE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

() Employee benefits (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Share-based payments (continued)

During the vesting period, the number
of share options that is expected to vest
is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment
to the cumulative fair value recognised
in prior years is charged/credited to the
profit or loss for the year of the review,
unless the original employee expenses
qualify for recognition as an asset, with
a corresponding adjustment to the share
option reserve. On vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to
reflect the actual number of share options
that vest (with a corresponding adjustment
to the share option reserve) except where
forfeiture is only due to not achieving vesting
conditions that relate to the market price of
the Company’s shares. The equity amount
is recognised in the share option reserve
until either the option is exercised (when it is
transferred to the share premium account)
or the option expires (when it is released
directly to retained profits).

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when,
and only when, the Group demonstrably
commits itself to terminate employment or
to provide benefits as a result of voluntary
redundancy by having a detailed formal
plan which is without realistic possibility of
withdrawal.

2. EEEEER®

(a)

ESEF (&)

(ii)

(iii)

LR BERZ (5 (F)

A TRBEROZEREZ
HEAERBHANFELR
e BRFFREEXHTS
EEBRRZER  FAE
EEFRIANBEOAE
ZRABAERNBANZI
BRPHIXFTA LT
J% 40 %0 1 1 1k R 1 AR B
B CDHEIAD/DIHNBE
HMHERBEFELAZE U
[ BRF 4G T IR 10 R AR HE Y
BERHE(BRYRHOR
BREMBEERERAR)
BRETEEFIELLD
B B 1 T (B A B A9 A AR
R ERETEE - &
SETHREROIEER
BER BEEZERAEE
WAT (AR IRE
RFE) HERBREZE
RHA JE o B (B R B A
) e

e T

REEFAGREARRARF
HEREIREFMERX
ZEERBEEFERM
BRI R ER EEEUR
BER TEZBAA
BE o

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited

Annual Report 2013



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAfEsR =Mzt

For the year ended 30 June 2013
EFE2013F6 30 HILFE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(r)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that they related to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax asset also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.

2. EEEFHERK®

(r)

Fia#H

REEFEREBEAERE - E
ERBEEREENEE - BRE
LEHEHEZEREREZEIRN
BEAERCEINKNIER 28
BEBEED B A M2 E RS
FEERDBNEZAIN - EfbR
FEMERELERELEERAE
NEBANEHEER -

RERIE RSB AR ERBLA
RPARGEEHCAERHEE LD
AP RFAE 2 ABEMSE
B WEEENEFERMHRE
B EIAE -

EERIREEMEE D B ME AT H
BRERHEREZRELE MY
RERDEERBBEMBRE
FHRAEEELEERAEN
MRERMECER -

HIR(EB) ERAR
—T=FEH
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAfEsR =Mzt

For the year ended 30 June 2013
EFE2013F6 30 HILFE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(r)

Income tax (continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the asset can be
utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that
may support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of
existing taxable temporary differences, provided
those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse either in the same period as
the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back
or forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if
they related to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in
a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit
can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred
tax assets and liabilities are those temporary
differences arising from goodwill not deductible for
tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profit (provided they are not part of a business
combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in
the case of taxable differences, the Group controls
the timing of the reversal and it is probable that
the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future, or in the case of deductible differences,
unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.

2. EEEEER®

(r)

Fhia® &)

BrE T RRNFRERS - A
EEREEE  URARARATES
FERR T8 R 7 4K S 9 4E B AR A
REEEYTHER - XHEIH
RS EEREERLERS
RMEENARERBENBER
EOEMFENERNERER
MEENHE  EEFEEDNNE
ENAEE-BHEERE -
AHERAER  WEHETE
ERERASEDNE-HMER
EEFFSHREEMELETEIE
B E RO A M A A
WE[E - £RE B A FENER
BERBERREEUSHEAH
R FA B 45 H1 85 48 A0 A5 R 30 P
EENEEFRSHEER T8
AR R EERBEF
—BERERE -ERHERS
B UREEAMERAEAR
F A AR 18 R B AR R R D
HE—HEREE -

BRIELEHRBAEEREBNER
BRIER  BREATHRNEE
FEEMEREZE  URAEE
EREY-EY R EFS
BHZETHNINEERAERS
ZNEER - UREERKE R
AZzREZERBER (RS
ZEME > AASEJEHRD
REREZRNAREREFEER
B HHRAMREEMS @ BIER
FEERTRAREME) o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAfEsR =Mzt

For the year ended 30 June 2013
EFE2013F6 30 HILFE

2. Significant Accounting Policies 2. EEEiEE @)

(continued)

() Income tax (continued) ( Fi@Bi#E)
The amount of deferred tax recognised is BRELEFHENSERREZE
measured based on the expected manner of EERBENREEZAHER
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of HEEIFN BELEERCENM
the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or REEFEEMMBETE - E
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting EREEEREGEHY TR
period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not o
discounted.
The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is AEBREHRREEBENER
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and is FEEREEEWIREE - HEH
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable TEUREEREHNERFEFUE
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to RAEREANENELERIEEE
allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any FUNR - ZERBURELHIBEZH
such reduction is reversed to the extent that it K ER TR B - BIBRIR T
becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will PlggmE o
be available. 109
Additional income taxes that arise from the HEIRREMEENENIER
distribution of dividends are recognised when the NEAFEERENEERELEE
liability to pay the related dividends is recognised. o
Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, AERIBELEMEHREGR R EEE
and movements therein, are presented separated BEESRENR AT FIES -
from each other and are not offset. Current tax EHRELEFEHREEESEER
assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and AEB RN EBELEETHEREUE
deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, MR ERREERMERE
if the Company or the Group has the legally & WAFGUTHERENE
enforceable right to set off current tax assets T FTAUDBIKEE B RIE
against current tax liabilities and the following IEFTBREE

additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and = AEMEHEZHEEE !
liabilities, the Company or the Group RABHAEB G EIRF
intends either to settle on a net basis, or BHEELE  ERER
to realise the asset and settle the liability ZEENEEZERE

simultaneously; or

mIE(FES)BRAA
TE—=FFER



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAfEsR =Mzt

For the year ended 30 June 2013
EFE2013F6 30 HILFE

2. Significant Accounting Policies 2. EEEiEE @)

(continued)
() Income tax (continued) (» FiSB@E)

- in the case of deferred tax assets and = EEMESHEEHESE !
liabilities, if they relate to income taxes levied ELEEHEEXERER
by the same taxation authority on either: — BB AT E AR —

BB AEHER :
= the same taxable entity; or — B —FERTEE
5

= different taxable entities, which, in = FTRMNERMRE
each future period in which significant B ELERTE
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or EHESEESNE
assets are expected to be settled REBIELERMBHRE
or recovered, intend to realise the BEELEG KE
current tax assets and settle the ELEFIEHRERER
current tax liabilities on a net basis or L EIMHEIE A
realise and settle simultaneously. BFEELEEBRE
HMSHEENE
EEMFREHRE
& HEFERZ
EENZEEZE

&

(s) Provisions and contingent liabilities (s) BERIAAE

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain EAEESARATEARDBEN

timing or amount when the Group or the Company EMRELEREESEE BEM

has a legal or constructive obligation arising as FEHAR AT RE BB W& MR -

a result of a past event, it is probable that an ERAEE AT SEMNMEE  RE

outflow of economic benefits will be required to ERAD B EESH LB

settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be FTENEEFRERE BEEK
made. Where the time value of money is material, BEBEAN BREAREHLEE
provisions are stated at the present value of the BEEZXHREAR-
expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of B A A 2 2 T RE M B

economic benefits will be required, or the amount AR B BB R e AE W W SE A 5

cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation B ZEAKEEASREE

is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless TR H A R 55 2 P REME AR AR
the probability of outflow is remote. Possible BROM o EHR —EHRZERRE
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed HZBRERTREMBERRER
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or Ee BT ARBERRAE
more future events are also disclosed as contingent & HERHEER 2 MR

liabilities unless the probability of outflow of ERE BRI
economic benefit is remote.

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAfEsR =Mzt

For the year ended 30 June 2013
EFE2013F6 30 HILFE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

t)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Provided it
is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable,
can be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in

profit or loss as follows:

(i) Sales of goods

Revenue is recognised when goods are
delivered to the customer who has accepted
the goods and the related risks and rewards
of ownership. Revenue excludes value
added tax or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts.

(i) Rental income from operating leases
Rental income receivable under operating
leases is recognised in profit or loss in equal
instalments over the periods covered by the
lease term.

(iii)  Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method.

(iv) Income from management services
Income from management services is

recognised at the time when the services
are provided.

2. EEEFHERK®

t)

L O

WA RIS E W E =R AT W B 2
BETUTE  EEBRBER AR
MAREBE R R Ei T E U
AMBAR  WASRETIE

EEEBAER
() HEELRD

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

BWARENEREFRE
FEaEMRERE A
28 [ B 1 20 R R AR o UK
ABHIRREZ I - T
SRERSEMBER

HEHBZHEKA
RBEEHRE Bl E
SWAESREERIRE
ZHEALEEEREA
R o

FIEHA

MEBMARGEELEREZE
BRFSETER o

EERFMA

EERBRARREHREH
RIS HERD
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAfEsR =Mzt

For the year ended 30 June 2013
EFE2013F6 30 HILFE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(u)

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains
and losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the dates the fair value was determined.

The results of foreign operations are translated into
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) at the exchange rates
approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the dates of the transactions. Statement of
financial position items, including goodwill arising
on consolidation of foreign operations acquired
on or after 1 January 2005, are translated into
HK$ at the closing foreign exchange rates at the
end of reporting period. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the
exchange reserve. Goodwill arising on consolidation
of a foreign operation acquired before 1 January
2005 is translated at the foreign exchange rate
that applied at the date of acquisition of the foreign
operation.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences relating to
that foreign operation is reclassified from equity to
profit or loss when the profit or loss on disposal is
recognised.

2. EEEEER®

(u)

hEIRE

FRZINERGER S A2
ERBRE - LINEREN2EY
BEERBBERIRZIEERER
5 ERBRSERDER -

EERATBZIMEFERE
ENREBERRZ HZINEERR
B o DUOMNEREMI LA BT
RZHEBEERBEREER
REEHZIINBERBRE -

BOINEB 2 RARZFEFHIE
R|ERBT - WEARRKER
(BE-ZZEIF-A—-—HEX
BRUEB BN EBEETERE
EZEE)AEBRZIEER
BERBT MELECELRER
BREAtBZERER B R
EHBSTHNELFBE R=-=F
TRFE-A—HZAWE 28
ERGAMEREEZHEAR
WIBBHNEBRE R 2 INBE R

e
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HEBINER I NI ERIE S
B RZOBNEBEE 2 RTE
RER BEERESEIRHE
o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAfEsR =Mzt

For the year ended 30 June 2013
EFE2013F6 30 HILFE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(v)

(w)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of an
asset which necessarily takes a substantial period
of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in
which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of
the cost of a qualifying asset commences when
expenditure for the asset is being incurred,
borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation
of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
interrupted or complete.

Related parties

(@) A person, or a close member of that
person’s family, is related to the Group if
that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(if) has significant influence over the
Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the
Group’s parent.

2. EEEFHERK®

(v)

(w)

1%

REZAFEBREEAEER
MRS TRARE AR
B2 EAAT LE AL
Oh+ ELAbAE B RSP B HI RS
3 AR o

EEEREENMIREERAE
FIGELR - LR BZEERA
BRERBRENEMEITFEETH
B BB SEERAERL
EREEREERA -1 - B
BEEREERARERRME
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B BERAERCAREFER
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAfEsR =Mzt

For the year ended 30 June 2013

B Z2013% 6530 HIFFE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(w) Related parties (continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)

(i

(ii)

(vi)

(vii)

The entity and the Group are
members of the same Group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a
third party and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in

(a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity or
is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

Close family members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influence by, that person in their
dealings with the entity.

2. EEEFHERK®

(w) HEEAANLEE)

(b) RS T SRR - B
EREAREEHE

(i)

(i)

(vi)

(vii)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAfEsR =Mzt

For the year ended 30 June 2013

BiF 20136 530 H1LFE
2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)
(x) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements,
are identified from the financial information provided
regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance
of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services,
and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually
material may be aggregated if they share a majority
of these criteria.

Possible Impact of Amendments,
New Standards and Interpretations
Issued but not yet effective

for the annual accounting year
ended 30 June 2013

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and new
standards which are not yet effective for the accounting
year ended 30 June 2013 and which have not been
adopted in these financial statements.

2. EEEFHERK®
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REELNTE

EUMBERETE A BBEHEAD
ECEMTIIR=_B—=5A=+H
[ R 4 RR VS BT B2 ¥ 22 BY o AN 5 [ 37 4%
EMBREDRNZSERT - HEAR

EIE(EB)BRAT]
TE—=FFER

115



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAfEsR =Mzt

For the year ended 30 June 2013
EFE2013F6 30 HILFE

I
L]
I
1l
.|:H~

3. Possible Impact of Amendments, 3.
New Standards and Interpretations
Issued but not yet effective
for the annual accounting year
ended 30 June 2013 (continued)

=112
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The Group has not applied any new standard or AEREL R EHMEMD EHEEERE
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current M2 T2 - REEE EFEARX
accounting period. The Group is in the process of making BRABLAZET » MAERRZRER A REY

FEBERNLE BEMS  KAZ
ZBF - HEARZRBRESTEIHEAE
BHEERPBERRABREATE -

an assessment of what the impact of these amendments,
new standards and new interpretations is expected to be
in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded
that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant
impact on the Group’s results of operations and financial

position.
Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on
or after
T 5 LS 5t EAR
FYA X
HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial EBMBRELEANE TR 75 1 January 2013
statements B —E—=%—A—H
HKFRS 11, Joint arrangements BERMBRELENE+ 5% HELZH 1 January 2013
—E—=%—A—H
HKFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other ~&HEMERELNE 2% REHE 1 January 2013
entities BoiEmHE —E-=%—HF—H
HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement EBUBREEANE+=5 ALE 1 January 2013
& —F¥-=%-A-H
HKAS 27, Separate financial statements EBETTENE=T LN BHHHK 1 January 2013
(2011) #Hk(=F——F) =F-=%—-A—H
HKAS 28, Investments in associates and EREFENE-FT\SE  BELTR 1 January 2013
joint ventures (2011) BERAHRE(ZF——1F) —E—=%—A—H
Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2009 — ERMBREEN —ZETNE_E—— 1 January 2013
2011 cycle FrFEEMRE —E-=%—HF—H
Amendments to HKAS 36, Impairment of RS ENE=F]EUSETA) » 1 January 2014
assets BERE —E-FE—HF—H
HKFRS 9, Financial instruments EBUBMEERNENS  £HTA 1 January 2015
—E-HF¥—HA—H
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For the year ended 30 June 2013

BiZ 20134 6 530 AL FE
4. Accounting Estimates and

Judgement

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting

policies, management makes various estimates based on

past experiences, expectations of the future and other

information. The key sources of estimation uncertainty

that may significantly affect the amounts recognised in the

financial statements are disclosed below:

(a)

(b)

Depreciation of fixed assets

Fixed assets are depreciated on a straight line
basis over their estimated useful lives, after taking
into account of their estimated residual value. The
determination of the useful lives and residual value
involve management’s estimation.

The Group assesses annually the residual value
and the useful life of the fixed assets and if the
assessment result differs from the original estimate,
such a difference may impact the depreciation for
the year.

Impairment of fixed assets, goodwill and other
non-current assets

Determining whether fixed assets, goodwill and
other non-current assets are impaired requires
an estimation of the value in use of the cash-
generating units to which the fixed assets, goodwill
and other non-current assets have been allocated.
The calculation of value in use requires the Group
to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise
from the cash-generating units and a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present
value.

If the estimation of value in use is different, any
reversal or further impairment will impact the profits
or losses of the Group.
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(b)

EZEEENE

EEEEENBREMFTRSRER
® LESFERATERFH
STENE - AEAFHRNGE
EHVREY R EE BT

rEBEFHETEEETEEN
RFEERUEAFY - BEHY
MERNEETAE - BEAEZRY
EYERFENE -

EZELE  HE - LIRRMFT
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4. Accounting Estimates and
Judgement (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(c)

Income taxes

The provisions for Hong Kong Profits Tax in
respect of certain entities within the Group were
made based on the directors’ best estimation of
tax liabilities and some of which were related to
tax audit as disclosed in note 12(d). Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences would impact the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

At 30 June 2013, deferred tax assets of
HK$1,635,000 (2012: HK$1,872,000) in relation
to unused tax losses were recognised as set
out in note 13(a). No deferred tax asset was
recognised in respect of the remaining tax losses
of HK$301,676,000 (2012: HK$265,118,000)
and temporary differences of HK$158,792,000
(2012: HK$155,239,000) arising from impairment
of certain fixed assets and leasehold lands due
to the unpredictability of future taxable profit
streams. The realisability of the deferred tax
asset mainly depends on whether sufficient future
profits or taxable temporary differences will be
available in the future. In cases where the future
profits generated are less or more than expected,
a material write down or further recognition of
deferred tax assets may arise, which would be
recognised in the profit or loss for the period in
which such a write down or further recognition
takes place.

EaT e RFVER =)

st RiEE 2 ERRF (&)

(c)

Friz#

TEEBRNETERBLECEBR
SHREDREESREREEIE
BEZHEMETIEL  UR—L&
BBBMBEET TR 12(d) ©
HEER S 2 RAEBHE4EREY
MBS EAE  ABEBERES
HEELHERATHEZRER
RIRFEFL B RS o

R-ZBE—Z=FEXA=+H XA
RIEBE 2 HERRELERBE
EHBE1,635000T(=ZFE—=
;81,872,000 7T) - WEHR
MizEsE 13(a) A ° AR TBETER
RREFBL  HASHBIEEER
7B#301,676,000 T(=ZF— =4 :
75 265,118,000 7T ) R R & T
EEEERBETHBEMEL
785 158,792,000 T (= &F— =4 :
755 155,239,000 7T ) B9 H B 1 2=
EFEER EEMEEEETE
HERESERART AR EHMT
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BiZ 20134 6 530 AL FE
5. Financial Risk Management and

Fair Values

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency

risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s business.

The Group is also exposed to equity risk arising from

its equity investments in other entities. These risks are

limited by the Group’s financial management policies and

practices described below.

(a)

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
debtors, deposits and prepayments. Management
has a credit policy in place and the exposures to
these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing
basis. Credits are offered to customers following
financial assessments and established payment
records where applicable. Credit limits are set
for all customers and these are exceeded only
with the approval of senior company officers.
Customers considered to be with credit risk are
traded on a cash basis. General credit terms are
payment by the end of the month following the
month in which sales took place. Regular review
and follow up actions are carried out on overdue
amounts to minimise the Group’s exposure to
credit risk. Collaterals over properties are obtained
from certain customers. An ageing analysis of
the debtors is prepared on a regular basis and
is closely monitored to minimise any credit risk
associated with these debtors. The Group has no
significant concentrations of credit risk in view of
its large number of customers. The Group does
not provide any guarantee which would expose
the Group to credit risk. Further quantitative
disclosures in respect of the Group’s exposure
to credit risk arising from debtors, deposits and
prepayments are set out in note 24.
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5. Financial Risk Management and
Fair Values (continued)

(b)

Liquidity risk

The Group closely monitors its liquidity and
financial resources to ensure that a healthy
financial position is maintained such that cash
inflows from operating activities together with un-
drawn committed banking facilities are sufficient to
meet the requirements for loan repayments, daily
operational needs, capital expenditure, as well as
potential business expansion and development.

The Group reviews its strategy from time to time
to ensure that cost-efficient funding is available to
cater for the unique operating environment of each
subsidiary.

The following table details the remaining
contractual maturities at the end of the reporting
period of the Group’s and the Company’s non-
derivative financial liabilities, which are based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including
interest payments computed using contractual
rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the
end of the reporting period) and the earliest date
the Group and the Company can be required to
pay:

5. UBEBEERARE

(&)

(b)

BN A & S

REBRYERHLREBES M
HER  MERESRBEROME
MR EREEEXEBNRESW
A BEREABANRITERRE
& REUEMNEEEN AFE
B BARX UREREBH

KAEBTERNEMBERE - B
NEEHEAERFAYENRER
B OEBMBLREINEE

5 -

TREINAKERARRETE
EREENRHRZRNBREHEH
B RBeNIBANnReNE
FRESREEENAYER
RR(FE)EEE HERNF
KA EZMNENF)URAEH
EARRAATRERARZHKER
HIET & -
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BiZ 20134 6 530 AL FE
5. Financial Risk Management and 5. HMEEBEERAAE
Fair Values (continued) (#&)
(b)  Liquidity risk (continued) (b) HBESEDEE)
Group
%58
018 2012
“§-zf o3-IE

Total Within ~~ Morethan ~ More than Total Within More than Morg than

contractual fyear  fyearbut  2years but contractual 1 year Tyearbut — 2yearshut

Carrying  undiscounted oron within within Carying  undiscounted oron witin witin

amount  cash flow demand 2years 5 years amount cash flow demand 2 years 5 years

ANFFR  -ERER -EL ZENE ARAE -EREA -ENE ZENE

FEE ReRESE g0 BoEMh  BEEMR BEE RenEER gEA BEAR EREMR

HKS000 HK$000 HK$1000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000

BT AEFr BEFT BEFT AEFT QLA oA oA i

Bank loans HER 269,000 269,360 269,360 - - 347,000 348,063 348,063 - -

Creditors and accruals EfERRETER 362,568 362,568 362,568 - - 314825 314825 314825 = =

Amount dug to a jointly controlled entiy EfiLERHAEE Qm Qm Qm - 37659 37,659 37,659 = =

Obligations under fiance leases HEREER 2 2 154 52 - 453 453 25 148 49

674,365 674,925 674873 5 - 699,087 701,000 700,803 148 4

Company
3 121
2013 2012
I S

Total Within ~~ Morethan ~ More than Total Within More than Morg than

contractual fyear  fyearbut  2yearshbut contractual 1 year Tyearbut  2yearshut

Carrying  undiscounted or on within within Camying  undiscounted oron within within

amount cash flow demand 2 years 5 years amount cash flow demand 2years 5 years

AHFFRE  -EhER -EiL ZEIE AMFTE -FAEA -EiE “EiE

FEE ReREsE g0 BcEMR  BEENR FEE ReNEsE g0 BER EIEMR

HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS/000 HKS /000 HKS/000 HKS /000 HK§ 000

BT T T B BT A A A oA

Creaitors and accruals EfEHREHER 11,588 11,588 11,588 - - 18322 18322 18322 - -
The amounts due to subsidiaries amounted to NEEENHB AT RIE LB

HK$1,555,278,000 (2012: HK$1,557,550,000) 1,555,278,000 7T (=B — — 4 :
have no fixed term of repayment and will not be B 1 557,550,000 75) * LFIE
settled within one year. REEEERHRTITER—FR

BE-

mIE(ES)BRAR]
—E-=FFR
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5. Financial Risk Managementand 5. HEERBREERAAE

Fair Values (continued) (&)
(c) Interest rate risk (c) FI=REE
The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from REBNFZRERETERBEIRIT
bank loans and bank deposits. BERRIBITER ©
(i) Interest rate profile (i) FIERR
The following table details the interest rate TREVAREHRARE
profile of the Group’s and the Company’s BRAQAEEEERT
interest earning financial assets and interest EEEMNFIER

bearing financial liabilities at the end of the
reporting period:

Group
FRE
2013 2012
—E—=f —E-CF
122 Effective Effective

interest Carrying interest Carrying
rate p.a. amount rate p.a. amount
BREMNZE IREE SRS M E{E
% HK$’000 % HK$’000
EEFT BT

Fixed rate financial TEEMEEE :

assets:

Time deposits EHF K 3.92 258,125 2.52 226,130
Variable rate FRMBEE

financial assets/ (BfHE):

(liabilities):

Cash at banks IRITIFRK 1.03 232,092 0.84 224,987

Bank loans IRITER 1.57  (269,000) 1.85 (347,000)

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited
Annual Report 2013
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5. Financial Risk Management and

Fair Values (continued)

(c)

Interest rate risk (continued)

(i)

(i)

Interest rate profile (continued)

Effective

rate p.a.

HIRFER =

Variable rate FEUBEE
financial assets
Cash at banks IRITIFR
(Note) (M)

Note: Effective interest rate of cash at banks is

minimal.

Sensitivity analysis

At 30 June 2013, it is estimated that general
increase/decrease ranging from 5 to 13
basis points (2012: 12 to 56 basis points)
in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, would have decreased/increased
the Group’s profit after tax and revenue
reserve by approximately HK$3,000 (2012:
increased/decreased the Group’s loss
after tax and decreased/increased revenue
reserve by approximately HK$353,000).

interest

5. UBEBEERARE

(&)
(c) FIZEEPEE)

(i)  FIEHEX (E)

Company
AAE
2013 2012
—F-=f —EB-=F
Effective
Carrying interest Carrying
amount rate p.a. amount
IREE ik tREE
% HK$’000 % HK$’000
BT BETFT
0.00 800 0.00 522

BiaE - ERITERNERF
RIBHD o

(i) HEEST

R-ZZBE-—=HxXA=+
H EEfE2ELHA
S THRASEIRYEF (=
—ZE 12E56%F)
EHMFEEE#IETE
HERT  ARBEZBRB
B R W FESRD
/B INAY B 3,000 7T (=
E—_F . XEEZKRH
#“EBEZIE M, HD R
wREESRE D nE
353,000 7T) ©

EIE(EB)BRAT]
TE—=FFER
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5. Financial Risk Management and
Fair Values (continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (continued)

(i)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s profit/
(loss) after tax (and revenue reserve) and
other components of consolidated equity
that would arise assuming that the change in
interest rates had occurred at the reporting
period and had been applied to re-measure
those financial instruments held by the
Group which expose the Group to fair value
interest rate risk at the end of the reporting
period. In respect of the exposure to cash
flow interest rate risk arising from floating
rate non-derivative instruments held by the
Group at the end of the reporting period, the
impact on the Group’s profit/(loss) after tax
(and revenue reserve) and other components
of consolidated equity is estimated as an
annualised impact on interest expense or
income of such a change in interest rates.
The analysis is performed on the same basis
for 2012.

(d) Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily

through sales,

purchases, deposits, and

borrowings that are denominated in a currency

other than the functional currency of the operations

in which they relate. The currencies giving rise to

this risk are primarily United States dollars (“USD”),
Renminbi (“RMB”) and Hong Kong dollars (‘HK$”).

5. UBEBEERARE

(#)
(c) FIZ=mE g )
(i) BEEST(E)

BLEZHRBERERRER
RN HERLEBE
240 Y A 5 [ BR B R TR A
(518 (S R ) L
RizaanARIneg
HRZ S E2 8 - WER
REFABARERRE
HRBFEERYQAEF
ZEBzEMTA - A
SERBERRBEEEZ
BARETESHMIAE
E2REREFNRER
AEBBRBEER (8
18) (70 o 8 ) BA R &R
ARESNARBND zEE
BAR 832 5 A R 42 i
BURAERFELLET
LU st o 2T RUERZ-F
——FARZEEET -

(d) EEERERE

AEEAEHUAREEBEQTRNY
REEBLUMNEWIHENHE - &
B ROUERREENIIER
Mo MERBEERBET - A
KRB -
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5. Financial Risk Managementand 5. HEERBREERAAE

Fair Values (continueq) (4)
(d) Currency risk (continued) (d) EERKE)
(i) Exposure to currency risk (i) EEZIMNEREPE

The following table details the Group’s TREAE BRI RLLAE
exposure at the end of the reporting period AR EEE ¥ LN E B
to currency risk arising from recognised FTENERREESE
assets or liabilities denominated in a BT AT 2 HNE R B 1E
currency other than the functional currency HEAD e A2 AR
of the entity to which they relate. The —E-—=ZERZ-ZE-—C
Company has no exposure to currency risk EXB=1+THBRENE
as at 30 June 2013 and 2012. R B o

Group (Expressed in original currency)

FRE(MRERTH)
2012
—B-CF
HK$ RMB UsD 125
‘000 ‘000 ‘000

BRTr AREFZ  Exfx

Debtors, deposits and R ZER

prepayments BEAR - - - 60 = 226
Cash and cash BEeRBEEH

equivalents 1,839 7 375 13,637 8 4,239
Creditors, deposits RS EK

received and e RE

accruals R (145) - (3,030) (109) = (710)
Amounts due (to)/from () /Fel

group companies EEAT (746,315) 140,393 - (872,150 140,393 -

EIE(EB)BRAT]
TE—=FFER
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5. Financial Risk Management and 5. HAEREERAME

Fair Values (continued) ()
(d) Currency risk (continued) (d) EGERMEE)
(i)  Sensitivity analysis (i) HEEDNT

The following table indicates the TRIEERHREAEER
approximate changes in the Group’s profit/ BEAREENNEERE
(loss) after tax (and revenue reserve) in RBE RN
response to reasonably possible changes EEZRBEEERN (F
in the foreign exchange rates to which the B)(RRmEE) BEE
Group has significant exposure at the end of A EE o

the reporting period.

Group
FEE
2013 2012
—E-=f —E-CF
Increase/
126 (decrease) Decrease/
in profit (increase) in
after loss after
Increase tax and Increase tax and
in foreign increase in foreign increase
exchange in revenue exchange in revenue
rates reserve rates reserve
BRBiE
Br#iizi Al EERED
SpEE I GED) SNE  (420) R W
R it EXEH (EXCEE
% HK$°000 % HK$'000
BT BEFT
UsD 0.17 (26) 0.57 124
RMB 1.45 2,575 3.69 6,445
HK$ 1.45 (8,097) 3.69 (28,760)
Decrease in foreign exchange rate with the SNEERTRAERE S RSB
same percentage will result in effect on profit BRI ERR KA EEa4E
or loss after tax and revenue reserve with BRI LENER L

the same magnitude but different direction.

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited
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5. Financial Risk Management and
Fair Values (continued)

(d)

(e)

Currency risk (continued)

(ii)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

Results of the analysis as presented in
the above table represent an aggregation
of the instantaneous effects on each of
the group entities’ profit or loss after tax
and equity measured in the respective
functional currencies, translated into HK$ at
the exchange rate ruling at the end of the
reporting date for presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the
change in foreign exchange rates had
been applied to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group which expose
the Group to foreign currency risk at the
end of the reporting date. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2012.

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price changes

arising from investments in equity securities. As the

carrying amount of such investments is insignificant

compared to the total assets of the Group, the

management considers the exposure to equity

price risk to be insignificant.

5. UBEBEERARE
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5. Financial Risk Management and
Fair Values (continued)

() Fair value

(i)

Financial instruments carried at fair
value

The following table presents the carrying
value of financial instruments measured at
fair value at the end of the reporting period
across the three levels of the fair value
hierarchy defined in HKFRS 7, Financial
Instruments: Disclosures, with the fair value
of each financial instrument categorised
in its entirety based on the lowest level of
input that is significant to that fair value
measurement. The levels are defined as
follows:

— Level 1 (highest level): fair values
measure using quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for
identical financial instruments

— Level 2: fair values measured using
quoted prices in active markets
for similar financial instruments, or
using valuation techniques in which
all significant inputs are directly or
indirectly based on observable market
data

— Level 3 (lowest level): fair values
measured using valuation techniques
in which any significant input is not
based on observable market data

As at 30 June 2013 and 2012, the financial
instruments of the Group carried at fair value
were listed and fall into level 1 of the fair
value hierarchy described above.
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BiZ 20134 6 530 AL FE
5. Financial Risk Management and

Fair Values (continued)
() Fair value (continued)

(i) Financial instruments carried at other
than fair value

Apart from non-trade balances with
subsidiaries, all other significant financial
assets and liabilities are carried at amounts
not materially different from their fair values
as at 30 June 2013 and 2012. The carrying
amounts of non-trade balances with a jointly
controlled entity approximate the fair values
due to the relatively short-term maturity of
these financial assets and liabilities. It is not
meaningful to disclose the fair value of non-
trade balances with subsidiaries because
there is no fixed term of repayment.

Segment Reporting

The Group’s businesses are presented in the following
segments in a manner consistent with the way in which
information is reported internally to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of

resource allocation and performance assessment.

Food: the manufacture and sale of a broad range of food
products including flour and edible oil.

Detergent: the manufacture and sale of household and

institutional cleaning products.

5. UBEBEERARE
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6. Segment Reporting (continueq)

(a)

Segments results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources between
segments, the Group’s most senior executive
management monitors the results, assets and
liabilities attributable to each reportable segment
on the following bases:

The measure used for reporting segment profit is
“profit from operations”. To arrive at “profit from
operations”, the Group’s earnings are further
adjusted for items not specifically attributed
to individual segments, such as head office or
corporate administration costs.

Segment assets include all tangible assets,
intangible assets, tax recoverables and current
assets with the exception of interest in a jointly
controlled entity, deferred tax assets and other
corporate assets. Segment liabilities include
tax payables, all trade creditors and accruals
attributable to the manufacturing and sales
activities of the individual segments, bank loans
managed directly by the segments, and other
current liabilities with the exception of amount due
to a jointly controlled entity and other corporate
liabilities.

6. DEBEFE =)

(a)
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EFE2013F6 30 HILFE
6. Segment Reporting (ontinueq 6. DEBEFE =)
(a) Segments results, assets and liabilities (a) SEELE BERERHE)
(continued)
Information regarding the Group’s reportable BRSEBITHREEASREZSE
segments as provided to the Group’s most senior 1EREDBERMOT :

executive management is set out below.

2013 2012
—E-Zf &
Segment Segment
Food Detergent Total Food Detergent Total
Rm ERRAE o Bm  BRAm DA
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BHETE  EHETE  ERTT B i A

Revenue from external BVREF 2

customers WA 3,155,514 456,057 3,611,571 2,506,067 375,718 2,881,785
Reportable segment  EfFRE D 2
profit/(loss) from ok <S-pinv
operations /(E8) 135,113 70,051 205,164 (9,394) 30,904 21,510
131
Interest income FIEWA 3,540 2,927 6,467 3,905 1,164 5,069
Finance costs A& A (5,550) - (5,550) (3,634) (16) (3,650)

Depreciation and rEERER
amortisation for the — #i4
year (54,982) (1,967) (56,949) (52,793) (1,947) (54,740)

Other material profit ~ HttEBERZ

or loss items: HH
— Exchange gain — ER W& 16,858 541 17,399 8,137 433 8,570
— Charge for - REER
doubtful debts i @) (20) (23) (233) @) (236)
Income tax charge BIEXH (13,492) (16,837) (30,329) (1,236) (7,238) (8,474)

Reportable segment  EFRE D 2

assets ZEE 1,894,350 281,707 2,176,057 1,918,596 222,221 2,140,817
Reportable segment ~ EEHRED 2

liabilties pA-Y (601,782)  (71,679)  (673461)  (702,526)  (57,206)  (759,752)
Additions to non- FREMH

current segment ABFERD

assets during the EE

year 57,429 1,144 58,573 108,968 499 109,467

EIE(EB)BRAT]
TE—=FFER
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BE2013F 6430 HILFE
6. Segment Reporting continued) 6. TEER @

(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment (b) FTEHREDEBUAN- B
revenue, profit or loss, assets and BEREBEZAGNER
liabilities

2012
- = —E—_F
HK$’000 HK$’000
EBEFr BT T
Revenue PN
Reportable segment revenue EEREDB2WA 3,611,571 2,881,785
Service and rental income RS RIS UWA 5,992 6,872
Consolidated turnover mEEER 3,617,563 2,888,657
Profit i F
Reportable segment profit from — FEER & 5 2 & & R
operations 205,164 21,510
Share of (loss)/profit of a jointly — FE4L B4 4{E L #Y
controlled entity (B518), &R (9,158) 571
Finance costs BE AN (5,550) (3,650)
Unallocated exchange loss KO E R EE (76) (37)
Gain on disposal of an industrial & T ¥ Rz
132 property 28,626 =
Unallocated head office and ROBZBATRLXER
corporate expenses (53,348) (45,017)
Consolidated profit/(loss) before  #R& BRI ALER (EE)
taxation 165,658 (26,623)
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets EEREDB2EE 2,176,057 2,140,817
Elimination of inter-segment 53 B ] FE R 2 3K 8
receivables (35,561) (101,763)
2,140,496 2,039,054
Interest in a jointly controlled HEEZEHIEEE R
entity 43,510 52,668
Deferred tax assets BEERIEEE 50 346
Unallocated head office and AOBMZBRATREEEE
corporate assets 74,212 53,824
Consolidated total assets REHREE 2,258,268 2,145,892
Liabilities Bf&
Reportable segment liabilities FEHRESB2BE (673,461) (7569,752)
Elimination of inter-segment D EBREE R 2 K 8
payables 35,561 101,763
(637,900) (657,989)
Amount due to a jointly FEA H E R 4IE R =Rl
controlled entity (42,771) (37,659)
Unallocated head office and AoBzR AR REEERE
corporate liabilities (31,892) (32,176)
Consolidated total liabilities memas (712,563) (727,824)

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited
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6. DEBEFE =)

6. Segment Reporting (continued)

(c) Geographical information (c) HEEH#H
The following table sets out information about TRE|D IR Y B EREIE ()
the geographical location of (i) the reportable EERELSTEIREE > IR
segment’s revenue from external customers A RiVAEEEEEE - HE
and (i) the Group’s fixed assets, leasehold land, T MEEE - HE R EE
intangible assets, interest in a jointly controlled EERETESERMR(ETE
entity and prepayments of fixed assets (“specified AREEE]) c EENFBHET
non-current assets”). The geographical location of AR B PR G (i o 1 W IE 3R > B
customers is based on the location at which the TR BREE - HELHE
services were provided or the goods delivered. The B EREA RGBSR
geographical location of the fixed assets, leasehold - .
land and prepayments of fixed assets is based on ii;:i:g;%gzif\;zi
the physical location of the assets, in the case of O BT R o 5 A
intangible assets and goodwill, the location of the iL A © R e
operation to which they are allocated, in the case fmﬁﬁgi&@%ﬁﬁ%ﬁi&%ﬁ
of interest in a jointly controlled entity, the location =
of operations.
133
2012
—E2-CF
Hong Hong
Kong Kong
and Mainland and Mainland
Macau China Total Macau China Total
EFER EBR
B hEXRE &3 B REAE CHS
[ LEX0 RN [ C X0 [ B HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BETE ERTT EETT Wi i xe . i ke
Reportable segment’s  EfEHE 2 IE
revenue from AREFZIBA
external customers 745,489 2,866,082 3,611,571 643,216 2,238,569 2,881,785
Specified non-current  EEFFHEE
assets 73,394 754,348 827,742 76,531 742,012 818,543
(d) Information about major customers (d FBENEEERZEH

During the years ended 30 June 2013 and 2012,
there was no single external customer that
contributed 10% or more of the Group’s total
revenue from external customers.

BE-_ZE—=F~A=+HM=
E-——EXA=1tRHLEE K
SEEMEESEHENRIARE
EENREFABBANED 2T
WE—FF o
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—E 3]
ARAR-MEERRAT  HWEA

principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out on pages ANEEXEBFIINE 185 EEHE 187
185 to 187. B o

7. Turnover 7.

The Company is an investment holding company and the

EXFARETHINEFNERNESR
FREMBRBREASWA - REEBNEE
BOMUWT :

Turnover represents the net invoiced value of goods
supplied to external customers as well as service and
rental income. An analysis of the Group’s turnover is set

out below:

2013 2012
—E—=% —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BHEF T
Sales of goods HEER 3,611,571 2,881,785
Service and rental income RERESWA 5,992 6,872
3,617,563 2,888,657
134
8. Other Revenue and Other Net 8. Hi )\ RHih;FWES
Income
2013 2012
—EB—=% —T-_F
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT BT
Management fee income EEBIA = 1,345
Sales of scrapped materials HERER 1,756 2,068
Net gain on disposal of available- ~ HE R HE 2 815
for-sale financial assets EEBERZE 3,720 =
Net loss on disposal of fixed assets HEREEEEFER (1,224) (1,498)
Interest income FEWA 6,467 5,069
Net exchange gain SNEEEE 5 R s 17,323 8,533
Write back of long overdue other i1 £ 180 HA FE A R
payables - 1,470
Gain on disposal of an industrial HETXAMERS
property (Note) (H1EE) 28,626 =
Miscellaneous Hity 1,102 566
57,770 17,553

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited
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8. Other Revenue and Other Net 8. HMWAREMFWKEE

Income (continued) (&)

Note: The amount represents a one-off gain from disposal of Fiat . WEBERRHEEIEZERYEN XM
industrial property to an independent third party. The Wi o WERZSENRREEEBRE
amount recognised represents an estimate made by BEERFELENMGE - ERESHEE
management based on currently available information. ZEEEENRENES -

The actual settlement amount is subject to verification

and acceptance by the Group.

9. Finance Costs 9. FEIZERE
2013 2012
—E'—=5 —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT T
Interest on bank loans wholly RAFREEER ZRIT
repayable within five years ERHFIE 5,550 3,650
The Group’s average borrowing interest rate was REAEENFHEHEEFEERE1.80% 135
approximately 1.80% (2012: 1.23%) per annum during the (ZEBE——F :1.283%) °
year.

EIE(EB)BRAT]
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- = bl &, — =
10. Profit/(Loss) Before Taxation 10. BR¥LEIERF,(E5HE)
2013 2012
—E—=%F —E——fF
HK$°000 HK$’000
BETIT JBEF T
Profit/(loss) before taxation MBS AR F, (E518)
is arrived at after charging/ 2R (5T A) ¢
(crediting):
Staff costs (including directors’ BRI (BREESHS
remuneration — note 17) — ME 1)
— Wages, salaries and — I8 HelkEl
allowances 219,104 215,483
— Reversal of equity settled — BEZBREREEN
share-based payment B0 BEE AR
expenses (note 32) B/ (M 32) (798) (1,770)
— Defined contribution retirement  — EXEMFGRRETE
plans 16,345 17,976
234,651 231,689
136 Auditors’ remuneration REEMI £
— Audit services — ZEBRE 1,655 1,491
— Tax and other services — B R EHAMR 788 1,714
2,443 3,205
Depreciation of fixed assets EEEERE 57,454 54,929
Amortisation of leasehold land FHE Lty 2,657 2,648
Amortisation of intangible assets B EE#E 350 113
Net exchange gain TEIMNEE H U (17,323) (8,533)
Charge for doubtful debts RITIRER 23 236
Operating lease rental of properties &E&EHEEYENELER 3,135 4,835
Cost of inventories (note 23(b)) BE R (M3 23(b)) 3,041,447 2,499,073
Net proceeds from disposal of fixed H €& E & & #1578
assets (691) (765)
Less: Carrying value of fixed assets & - EE&E EREE 1,915 2,263
Net loss on disposal of fixed assets HERETEEEFEIR 1,224 1,498

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited
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10. BRBLRIERR] (REHR) o

10. Profit/(Loss) Before Taxation

(continued)

The Group participates in pension schemes organised
by the PRC government whereby the Group is required
to pay annual contributions at rates ranging from 12%
to 28% (2012: 10% to 28%) of the standard wages
determined by the relevant authorities in the PRC during
the year ended 30 June 2013.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance and an
Occupational Retirement Scheme Ordinance Scheme (the
“ORSO Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Occupational
Retirement Scheme Ordinance for employees employed
under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance. The MPF scheme and ORSO scheme are
defined contribution retirement schemes administered
by independent trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, the
Group and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employees’
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant
income of HK$25,000 (2012: HK$20,000). Under the
ORSO Scheme, the Group and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the scheme at 10%
and 5% of the employees’ relevant income respectively.
Contributions to the schemes vest immediately. Save
for the above schemes, the Group has no other material
obligation for payment of retirement benefits beyond the
contributions.

AEESHETEBFAESNERSS
2Bt AEERBE=T—=FX
B=+HLEFERNERPEEBKEFT
BEEEEIERE%E  B12%ZE28%
(ZZE—ZF 1 10% £28%) WL Fl1E
FERRSMHIA -

REBTRBEEFBCEFIE LB GH)
FCHE 2R NG BHR B B IR IBE S BUE
BRGIDBAEETREAZEER LA
MAESTE(EESTE D) MBER
Rt 8l - BIESTE B —EREMHKER
hEsts BBLZETATE - R
BESHE AEEREESBEMNZ
FEMEEEERNEE BB A% 2 1#
= MBBRWALRAS BB 25,000
T(ZZF——F : #B%20,0007T) ° [@
STEMEHNETEERERE - RIBRE
RIAGHE > AEEREESFISEED
ZitEMEEAEENMEEBBWKA 10%
5% Z MR o R EMEHBIS  NEBH
B2 S HRUINNNE M F KR KER

REE -

mIE(FES)BRAA
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11. Directors’ and Senior 1. EERERITHAS
Executives’ Emoluments Bl &
(a)  The directors’ emoluments of the Company and its (a REFBEH2AKHIE—TF
subsidiaries calculated in accordance with Section AT —BRAEZARATRENEB
161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance are NENESHESERBEOT
as follows:

Basic

salaries/
Directors’ Retirement
fees Bonuses schemes

(Note (ix)) (Note (x) contributions

e/
Exng fedl BAERH

(Wit (i) (M) AR -F-=f
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$000
BT ERFT ERFT BRFT

138

Executive director BITEE

LEUNG Joseph 271 2,913 500 15 3,428
Non-executive directors EHTEE

WHANG Sun Tze LT 200 - - 200
KWEK Leng Hai (Note (j) B/ ) - - - =
TAN Lim Heng (Note (i) BARE () - - - -
TSANG Cho Tai (Note (j) SRR (M) - - - -
DING Wai Chuen (Note (i) TEE W) 78 - - 78

Independent non-executive directors BIFH{TES

LO Kwong Chi, Clement BES 310 - - 310
LO Kai Yiu, Anthony BRR 280 - - 280
AU Chee Ming B/ 240 - - 240
Year ended 30 June 2013 BIE—Z-=ExA=tHLEE 4,021 500 15 4,536

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited
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11. Directors’ and Senior

Executives’ Emoluments (continueq) (&)
(a) (continued) (@ (#&)
Group
A58
Basic
salaries/ Housing
Directors’ Retirement benefits  Share-based
fees Bonuses schemes and payments
(Note (ix)) (Note (x)) contributions ~allowances (Note (xij) 2012
e/ NG RER
Ezhe izl RIEH EBRA PATES
(i) Wiy R Rk (Hepi) —F-2F
HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFr  BRFr BRTr BRTn BRTn BRTx
Executive directors HiTEs
LEUNG Wai Fung (Note (i) 2B (HE(i)) 2,160 174 191 687 (839) 2373
LEUNG Joseph (Note (iv) RLBHE ) 453 = 2 = = 455
Non-executive directors ~ JH{TES
WHANG Sun Tze B 200 - - - - 200
KWEK Leng Hai (Note (v)) BB 263 = = = = 263
TAN Lim Heng R 200 - - - = 200
TSANG Cho Tai EEEES 260 - - - - 260
DING Wai Chuen (Note (i)~ THE&(#2/)) 200 - - - - 200
Independent non-executive  BIFHITES

directors
LO Kwong Chi, Clement BEE (W)

(Note (v]) 303 = = = - 303
LO Kai Yiu, Anthony (Note (vi))  EEUR(AE (1) 265 = = = = 265
AU Chee Ming (Note (vii) BRI i) 225 = = = = 225
Yearended 30 June 2012 BEZF-ERAZTALEE 4,509 174 198 667 (839) 4,744

EIE(EB)BRAT]
TE—=FFER
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11. Directors’ and Senior
Executives’ Emoluments (continueq)

(@) (continued)

Notes:

(i)

(i

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

No directors’ fees be payable to any salaried
directors employed by group companies of Hong
Leong Company (Malaysia) Berhad (“HLCM”), the
Company’s ultimate holding company for the year
ended 30 June 2013.

Mr. DING Wai Chuen resigned as non-executive
director after the conclusion of 2012 annual
general meeting on 20 November 2012.

Mr. LEUNG Wai Fung resigned as group
managing director and executive director of the
Company on 1 March 2012.

Mr. LEUNG Joseph was appointed as group
managing director and executive director of the
Company on 2 May 2012.

Mr. KWEK Leng Hai was appointed as chairman
of the Board Nomination Committee (“BNC”) with
effect from 1 April 2012. Mr. Kwek was acting as
chairman of the Board Remuneration Committee
(“BRC”) from 1 July 2011 to 31 March 2012 and
acting as member of the BRC with effect from 1
April 2012.

Mr. LO Kwong Chi, Clement was acting as
member of the BRC from 1 July 2011 to 31
March 2012 and acting as chairman of the BRC
with effect from 1 April 2012.

1. EERSRITHAE

(4

e

(i

(ii)

(iv)

(vi)

BE-F-=FxHA=+1+H
FELHBEESHERIN
FREAQPAZHERERA
A Hong Leong Company
(Malaysia) Berhad ([HLCM )
EERARMEANZHES -

TEZEENR=-FT-—ZF
T-B=THHNRRBEE
EEREREFATES -

REEBEER-_ZT—-F=
BE—BREAQIAEEHES
METBRHITES -

B-REEEAAADEE
ESREERUITES -

NS BEEEZARESS
REZES(REZEET))
FE BZE-—_FWA-—
HEEAER - BEER-F
——FtA-—-BE=ZF—=
F=ZHA=+-BHBEIERE
EEyMEES((FMEE
gl) EF BHE-F-—-F
MA—BRETFHZES
BE °

BEEXAEEB-_ZT——F+t
BE—BZ=-&E—=-®#=A8
=St+t—HHBEEEFMES
EHE UBA-FT—-F@Q
A—HEERFMZEESE
B o
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11. Directors’ and Senior

. ’ . .
Executives’ Emoluments (ontinueq) (&)
(a) (continued) (@ (#&)
(vii) Mr. LO Kai Yiu, Anthony was appointed as Vi) ERRBRAER-Z--FM@
member of the BNC on 1 April 2012. BE—REZXARBZEES
KB -
(vi)  Mr. AU Chee Ming was appointed as member of Vi) BEPBAER-Z-—-FM@
the BNC on 1 April 2012. A—BEZIAREEZES
B o
(i) Basic salaries/directors’ fees — The amounts paid (ix) B/ EizEHe EEH
and payable to non-executive directors were ® — FPITESUEEHS
directors’ fees. The amount paid and payable to FRKE - HITESUH S
executive directors was basic salaries. F 2 ER ©
(x) Bonuses paid/payable for the year were (x) REECEM EAREAD
performance related. REBETE ©
(xi) There was no arrangement under which a director (xi) WEITLEERESRERK
had waived or agreed to waive any emoluments. ZWHREM S ZHE -
(xi)  These represent the estimated value of share (xii) EHERBRERATRHAR

options granted to the director under the BRETEARTEE2REN
Company’s share option scheme. The value of HatE > ZEREEEDIR
these share options is measured according to BREERRDHBER 2

the Group’s accounting policies for share-based
payment transactions as set out in note 2(q)
(i) and, in accordance with that policy, include
adjustments to reverse amounts accrued in
previous years where grants of equity instruments
are forfeited prior to vesting.

The details of these benefits in kind, including the
principal terms and number of options granted
are disclosed under note 32.

MR 5 (BB EE2(q)(i)
M) BT HIE B & EUR AT
. BEERBACTEHEN
BRETE  REZREMmME
BlARTEETHRNEHE -

ZEFTBRANRBEEITER
RERHRODBE 2FHBER
MiFE32 AfEHIRE -

mEIE(FES)BRAT
TE—=FFER
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For the year ended 30 June 2013
EFE2013F6 30 HILFE

= = - - —é— A= =
11. Directors’ and Senior 1M1. EERBRITHAE
Executives’ Emoluments (ontinueq) B £ 1)
(b) The five highest paid individuals (b) HABEREKANES
The five highest paid individuals included one IEEeRANESEEBE—RE
(2012: one) director, details of whose remuneration E(ZE——-F:—2R) MMEHN
are set out above. The remaining employees’ HBEEIRLEX - B TEENH
emoluments are analysed as follows: SFBWT
2013 2012
—F-=f5 —E——fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
EETiT BT T
Salaries, housing benefits and e BEEEAMREU
share-based payments IR0 BEE 2K 6,785 7,244
Discretionary bonuses BIEIEAL 860 503
Retirement schemes contributions Bk &5t 2I4t5% 169 172
7,814 7,919
The number of employees whose remuneration fell MEeBTYIEENEEHBE N
within the following bands was: T
2013 2012
HK$ ERIT —E—-=f —E——fF
1,500,001 — 2,000,000 1,500,001 — 2,000,000 2
2,000,001 — 2,500,000 2,000,001 — 2,500,000 2
4 4
12. Taxation 12. $il8
(a) Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at (a) TEBEEBLENEEATZNES
the rate of 16.5% (2012: 16.5%) on the respective S THAR IR O R (L BT E R B %
estimated assessable profits of the companies MR E165% (ZFE——F :
within the Group operating in Hong Kong during 16.5%) 58 o
the year.

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited
Annual Report 2013
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For the year ended 30 June 2013
EFE2013F6 30 HILFE

12. Taxation (continued)

(a)

(b)

(continued)

Taxation outside Hong Kong represents income
tax charge on the estimated taxable profits of
certain subsidiaries operating in Mainland China
and Macau, calculated at the rates prevailing in the
respective regions.

All enterprises engaged in the primary processing
of agricultural products are exempted from PRC
corporate income tax. As a result, the profits
from flour mill operations are exempted from PRC
corporate income tax for the years ended 30 June
2013 and 2012.

Other subsidiaries operating in Mainland China are
subject to income tax rates of 25% (2012: ranging
from 24% to 25%).

The income tax charge represents the sum of the
tax currently payable and deferred taxation charges
as follows:

(a)

(b)

12. #IE =)

(4&)

BB LN IR 15 A h B R BE AR
FEEcETHEORMMEE
ABBENRZBER ZHERGE
HIBIIESH o

FrEERBEREELEEZRAMN
IZhEERROEMER -
E It - L% 5 AT BREL 2% R 7]
RIE—=ZFN_FT——_FEH
GBI KEZSEFRER o

RABEKRELE 2 HEMHE L
A FRABHRMER25% (=
ZE-——_F HAEBHRENF
24% B 25% &) o

Frig it X AR R A I RIEFE
BIARVARM - AR :

2013 2012
—g-=f5 —E-——fF
HK$°000 HK$’000
EETIT B F T
Current tax: ERIE
Hong Kong taxation EAHIE 1,366 1,837
Under/(over)-provision in respect UAIEEZTRR
of prior years (H2R)B1E 4,138 (33)
5,504 1,804
Taxation outside Hong Kong BEBLUINIE 28,353 7,260
Under-provision in respect of LAIFEZTRE
prior years BiE 390 568
28,743 7,828
Deferred taxation (note 13(a)): EIERL IR
(Ktz 13(a) :
Origination and reversal of TIRFEENEER
_ tmmgorayy Cieiences | k.. S S, -1
34,543 9,405

mEIE(FES)BRAT
TE—=FFER
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For the year ended 30 June 2013
EFE2013F6 30 HILFE

12. Taxation (continued)

12. #IE =)

SREBRBERPBRBADER, (8

(c) The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to

the profit/(loss) before taxation per consolidated

(c)

B)EAFE ZBET H AW

income statement as follows: T
2013 2012
—T-=% —E-=F
HK$°000 HK$’000
BETIT BT
Profit/(loss) before taxation MRES AR R, (E518) 165,658 (26,623)
Notional tax on profit/(loss) before  &ZE AR
taxation, calculated at the rates =it B R 5T ERR T AT
applicable to profits in the tax BRI (ER) 288
jurisdictions concerned 45,960 1,086
Tax effect of non-deductible B LA THRNEX
expenses ZHEE 3,039 490
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue  EEZRF U A NS
=7 (6,610) (2,266)
Tax effect of tax losses not RFURRNBIEEE
recognised ZHEE 6,951 18,789
Tax effect of utilisation of unused FRRUBIEERT U
tax losses not previously BREKEE 2RI
recognised 24 (659) (396)
Effect of tax concessions BEERZTE (19,931) (9,144)
Tax effect of loss/(profit) FE{E £ E = SIEEE
attributable to a jointly controlled BB CER) 2B 15
entity EZ 1,511 (94)
Under-provision in prior years UBIFEzTRRE 4,528 535
Others Hith (246) 405
Tax charge for the year REERBHXH 34,543 9,405

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited
Annual Report 2013



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAfEsR =Mzt

For the year ended 30 June 2013
BiF 20136 530 H1LFE

12. Taxation (continued)

(d)

(e)

The Inland Revenue Department of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region (the “IRD”) has
initiated a tax audit on certain group companies.
Up to 30 June 2013, the Group had paid a total of
HK$16,608,000 (2012: HK$10,908,000) to the IRD
under the protective assessments against certain
subsidiaries for the years of assessment from
2002/03 to 2006/07 pending the outcome of the
tax audit.

After taking professional advice from its tax adviser,
the Group has made appropriate provision in the
financial statements.

Current taxation in the statement of financial
position represents:

12. #IE =)

(d)

(e)

Group
350

2013
%-=F
HK$'000
ERFT

BEERBERIBRE NDHAEER
ETAREMHREEE -BEZ
E—=FX~A=1+8 EBKE
BEEZERUR AEEHR=-ZFZ
Z/EB=EEBENELE
ZRBRFENRESETERBB
AT B 16,608,000 (=&
— 4% : 7%10,908,0007T) °

KEZEHBEBANERERE
FEBEMBREPCHEEEN
B o

EHBERRRPOAEHRER
%o

Company
345

2012 2012
“E-CF “E-CF
HK$:000 HK$'000

ERTFT ERTFR

Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for ~ AEEEBHERHE
the year 1,366 1,837 - -
Balance of Profits Tax provision relating ~ MATEE 2 BB R L
to prior years 8,784 4,872 - -
10,150 6,709 - =
Provision for taxation outside Hong Kong & B UUMAIE B 9,940 1,602 = -
20,090 8,311 - =

EIE(EB)BRAT]
TE—=FFER
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For the year ended 30 June 2013
EFE2013F6 30 HILFE

12. Taxation (continued)
(e) (continued)

Reconciliation to the statement of financial position:

12. #lH =)

(e) (#&)

B RS AR R 2 FRED -
Group Company
350 VNG|

2013 2012 2012
=g-=5 [t Bt —g--f
HK$'000 [CSX000 HK$000
EEFT BETT V-t

Tax recoverable HERE 3,098 3,098 = =
Tax payable FEf3 5178 23,188 11,409 = =
20,090 8,311 = =

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited
Annual Report 2013
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For the year ended 30 June 2013
EFE2013F6 30 HILFE

13. Deferred Taxation 13. BEHBLIE
(@) Group (@ #*F&RE
The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities EEAUEMRTRPERWIEL
recognised in the consolidated statement of BMEBEEE) EBERENKEE
financial position and the movements thereon RUBIEE2SB0T :

during the current and prior years are as follows:

Accelerated

tax Tax
depreciation Provisions losses Total
mEHHHE B HBEE CH

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BETT BT

At 1 July 2011 W=2-—F+A-A 470 (119 (470) (119)
Charged/(credited) to income statement ~ RUE &A1k / (Gt A)

(note 12(b) (Wit 121) 1,402 027) (1,40 027)
At 30 June 2012 R=®-—%#B=+H 1,872 (346) (1872) (346) 147
At 1 July 2012 —£-Z%tf-H 1,872 (346) (1,872) (346)
(Credited)/charged to income statement ~ RUERA(HA) /MK

(note 12(b)) (B 120) (184) 243 237 296
At 30 June 2013 RZF-Z£7A=1H 1,688 (103) (1,635) (50)
Reconciliation to the statements of financial B F& AR OR 3= 2 JRER
position

2013 2012
—EB-=% —E-—F

HK$°000 HK$’000

BHFIT BEF T

Deferred tax liabilities BEREESE = -
Deferred tax assets BEEFRIEEE 50 346

50 346

EIE(EB)BRAT]
TE—=FFER
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For the year ended 30 June 2013
EFE2013F6 30 HILFE

13. Deferred Taxation (continued)

(a)

Group (continued)

The Group is liable to withholding tax on dividends
to be distributed from subsidiaries in the Mainland
China in respect of their profits generated on or
after 1 January 2008. At 30 June 2013, temporary
differences relating to the undistributed profits
of the Group’s subsidiaries in the Mainland
China amounted to HK$417,306,000 (2012:
HK$278,397,000). Deferred tax liabilities have not
been recognised in respect of the tax that would
be payable on the distribution of these retained
profits as the Company controls the dividend policy
of these subsidiaries and it has been determined
that it is probable that profits will not be distributed
by these subsidiaries in the foreseeable future.

At 30 June 2013, the Group had unused tax losses
of HK$311,591,000 (2012: HK$276,466,000)
available for offset against future taxable profits. A
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect
of tax losses of $9,915,000 (2012: HK$11,348,000)
for such losses. No deferred tax assets have
been recognised in respect of the remaining
HK$301,676,000 (2012: HK$265,118,000) due to
the unpredictability of future taxable profit streams.
Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses of
HK$43,400,000 (2012: HK$59,326,000) that will
expire within five years. Other losses can be carried
forward indefinitely.

At 30 June 2013, the Group had temporary
differences of HK$158,792,000 (2012:
HK$155,239,000) arising from impairment of
certain fixed assets and leasehold lands provided
in prior years. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of these temporary
differences due to the unpredictability of taxable
profits streams against which the deductible
temporary differences can be utilised in the
foreseeable future.

(a)

13. BEBIIE &)

*&RE#)

AEBEFHEEALE ZHMBEL
AERIPIK=—ZEENFEF—H—
BB R EHA M-
R=ZZ—=H5XB=+H ' EH
AEBRTEERNZHED TR
PEWMABHREEEERBYE
417,306,000 t(= & — = & :
78 %5278,397,000 7T ) © B R A
A AT ZE M B A F 8RS
Fo WERERARKRRZEM
BARRAESETEDIRKF -
(A L 3 R B 5 K 5% 55 R B B FE A
ZHARBERELHESS -

R=ZFE-—Z=ZHFEXA=1+8"
AEEE B 311,591,000
(ZZ——%F : %% 276,466,000
70 ) 9 AT A R I R SR FE R B %
FMWBEEBE - EFRZER
BT 89915000 (=&
— Z £ : % % 11,348,000 7T )
WIEERIEEE - RN B
301,676,000 C(= & — = & :
78 # 265,118,000 7T ) #Y AT 3K 40
BE BARREANNTITER
Mo AR EBRBIELR
HEE B RERNHRBEE
B A B ¥ 43,400,000 L(= &
— 4 : #%59326,0007T) K
BEENRAFREEN - HithEie
A LASE PR B it AE B A 1 o

AEBRUNFEEAE TEEE
EREE L ERERE  ZZ
BER-ZE—=FXA=TH
A& B E £ B 158,792,000 7T
(ZZ=——%F : % 155,239,000
T)NEREEZRE - BB RTE
FPARAFERM  FrAERZ
ERBRELEHIEEE o

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAfEsR =Mzt

For the year ended 30 June 2013
EFE2013F6 30 HILFE

13. Deferred Taxation (continueq) 13. BIEMHIE =)

(@) Group (continued) (a) AEEEBE#E)
Temporary difference arising in connection with a SEHARZEFEEEENERMTEE
jointly controlled entity is insignificant. BEWAREK °

(b) Company (b) FATF
The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities EHBRRFEPRERIELERIB
recognised in the statement of financial position (BE) BERERFER U
and the movements thereon during the current and FEWNESBHUOT :

prior years are as follows:

Accelerated

tax
depreciation Tax losses Total
MEBFEINE BiEsESE &t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T BT T
149
At 1 July 2011 R=Z——5tA—H 111 (111 -
Charged/(credited) to R RAZE,
income statement (5t A) 78 (78) —
At 30 June 2012 R-T'——%,;A=1+H 189 (189) —
At 1 July 2012 —E-——FtA—H 189 (189) -
Charged/(credited) to Rz RAZE
income statement (5t A) - - -
At 30 June 2013 N-F—=%7;A=+H 189 (189) -
14. Profit/(Loss) Attributable to 14. XS Em i REG @
Equity Shareholders of the #l,(E518)
Company
The consolidated profit/(loss) attributable to equity ARABEEBRREGESER,(EE)
shareholders of the Company included a loss of EEEFTERETAABBERERABE
HK$3,522,000 (2012: HK$6,357,000) which has been 3,622,000 BB (= —=F : BHiEB
dealt with in the financial statements of the Company (note #£6,357,000 7t ) (FfIaE 33)

33).

EIE(EB)BRAT]
TE—=FFER
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For the year ended 30 June 2013
EiF 20136 530 H1LFE

15. Dividends

(@)

Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the
company (excluding the amount paid to shares held
by the Group under the ESOP reserve) attributable
to the year

Interim dividend declared and paid " HEIRE SRR X

15. I8

(@ FABRFERIFRRRKRE G
ENFAEERETROZER
FEBETHFEZRONEEE)

2013 2012
—E—=% —E——F
HK$°000 HK$’000
BETIT BETFTT

of HK$0.06 per ordinary share BRE¥0.06 T
(2012: HK$NIil) (ZB——%F : #|) 14,302 =
Final dividend proposed after BRIk 3% 2 R HA
the end of the reporting period RESRBEO0.12
of HK$0.12 per ordinary share TT(ZE——F:
(2012: HK$0.08 per share) SRE¥0.087T) 28,603 19,069
42,905 19,069

The final dividend proposed after the end of the
reporting period has not been recognised as
liabilities at the end of the reporting period.

Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the
company (excluding the amount paid to shares held
by the Group under the ESOP reserve) attributable
to the previous financial year, approved and paid
during the year

Final dividend in respect of the BEA—EMBEE
previous financial year, approved EEIRRZFHR
and paid during the year, of HRE - BB
HK$0.08 per share (2012: 0.08T(=ZF——%F:
HK$0.10 per share) ERB¥0.107T)

HIRKREIRE 2 RBRE - IR
ERBRIIBEEEE -

b)  HAREHR XA — B B EF
ERMADARRRKE(HNRX
NFAREETEIRDRBES
ERBTEEZRONERE)

2013 2012
—E'—=%5 —E——F
HK$°000 HK$’000
EBETFIT BETFT

19,069 23,836

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited
Annual Report 2013
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For the year ended 30 June 2013

BiZ 20134 6 530 AL FE
- L =40
16. Earnings/(Loss) Per Share 16. BIREZF,(&E)
(a) Basic earnings/(loss) per share (a) EBEREXZEN (EFHE)
The calculation of basic earnings/(loss) per share BEXBAN(BE) IR
is based on the profit attributable to equity BADARREN SR B
shareholders of the Company of HK$131,115,000 131,115,000 (=& —ZF : &
(2012: loss of HK$36,028,000) for the year and the 1B B 36,028,000 7T ) R A AN &
weighted average number of 238,360,000 ordinary ERERITEER ZMETIH
shares (2012: 239,260,000 ordinary shares) in 238,360,000 R (= & — — &F :
issue during the year. 239,260,000 f%) °
2012
—E——F
000
;
Issued ordinary shares at beginning F#REXRS 1T
and end of year B 243,354 243,354
Effect of shares repurchased in DRI EEE 2 E @R 151
prior years (note 31(a)) VB (I 31(3)) (4,994) (1,3993)
Effect of shares repurchased in AEEEE2EBR
current year (note 31(a)) VB (L 31(3)) - (2,701)
Weighted average number of FEZEBRINE
ordinary shares for the year T8 238,360 239,260
(b) Diluted earnings/(loss) per share (b) SREFERN (F5BE)
Diluted earnings/(loss) per share equals to basic HRBETEBRAREEME
earnings/(loss) per share for the years ended it R=—ZF—=R=-ZE—-F
30 June 2013 and 2012 because the potential E2EREERR(BR)ESE
ordinary shares outstanding were anti-dilutive. RERERER (FHE) -

EIE(EB)BRAT]
TE—=FFER
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For the year ended 30 June 2013
EiF 20136 530 H1LFE

17. Fixed Assets

17. BEIEEE

(a)  Group (a) F%ME
Medium term
leasehold Medium term
buildings leasehold Plant,
in Hong Kong buildings equipment,
and leasehold outside Construction furniture and
improvements Hong Kong in progress motor vehicles Total
FHmEY MY BE &
BeREE b £ #RIR fRHRRE At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000
TR EEFT BEFT Vi EEFT
Cost: BAfE:
At 1 July 2012 RZE-Z%5+f-H 62,384 769,313 97,999 765,181 1,694,877
Exchange adjustments ER@% - 19,151 3,490 23,276 45917
Additions 5 - 981 68,939 4,609 74,529
Transferred from construction in ERHBIE
progress - 30,846 (65,849) 35,003 -
Disposals HE - (391) - (4,316) (4,707)
At 30 June 2013 RZZ-Z£7A=TH 62,384 819,900 104,579 823,753 1,810,616
Accumulated depreciation: 2itiE:
At 1 July 2012 RZE-Z%5+B-H 19,500 350,248 - 491,723 861,561
Exchange adjustments ER@% - 13,495 - 13,824 27,319
Charge for the year REERE 1,510 24,021 - 31,917 57,454
Written back on disposals HELRE - (329) - (2,463) 2,792
At 30 June 2013 RZZ-Z£7A=TH 21,100 387,441 - 535,001 943,542
Impairment; i
At 1 July 2012 and RZF-ZFtA-BR
30 June 2013 —%-=£xA=tH 33,112 142,082 - - 175,194
Net book value: TREE -
At 30 June 2013 RZB-Z£7A=TH 8,172 290,377 104,579 288,752 691,880

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited
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EFE2013F6 30 HILFE

17. BE&EE =

17. Fixed Assets (continued)

(a) Group (continued) (a) AEE#E)
Medium term
leasehold Medium term
buldings leasehold Plant,
in Hong Kong buildings equipment,
and leasehold outside Construction furniture and
improvements Hong Kong in progress motor vehicles Total
FEGEAY  BRUME BE %
ETREE fnes FRIE FRRAE &t
HK$ 000 HKS:000 HK$'000 HK$ 1000 HK$:000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
Cost: BAfE:
At 1 July 2011 RZE--F+B-H 62,384 760,080 22,654 744,036 1,589,154
Exchange adjustments ERAR = 6,646 313 8,861 15,820
Additions g5 - 2,667 81,626 11,983 96,276
Transferred from construction in ERREIR
progress - 21 (6,594) 6,678 -
Disposals HE = (101) = (6.272) 6,373)
At 30 June 2012 R=F-—&xA=+H 62,384 769,313 97999 765,181 1,694,877
Accumulated depreciation: BiiE:
At 1 July 2011 RZE--F+B-H 18,069 323,159 = 460,167 801,385
Exchange adjustments ERAZ = 4523 = 4834 9357
Charge for the year P 1,531 22,590 = 30,808 54,929
Written back on disposals EREREIR = (24) = (4,086) (4,110)
At 30 June 2012 R=F-—&xA=+H 19,590 350248 = 191,723 861,561
Impairment: HE:
At 1 July 2011 and R=F--5tB-Bk
30 June 2012 —§-Z&#xB=+H 33,112 142,082 = = 175,194
Net book value: REFE:
At 30 June 2012 R=F-—&xA=+H 9,682 276,983 97999 273458 658,122

At 30 June 2013, the net book value of fixed
assets held under finance leases amounted to
HK$647,000 (2012: HK$901,000).

R=ZZE—=FXA=+H U@
EHNEBENBEEEEREF
BEABHe47,000T(=ZF — =
& : % 901,0007T) °

EIE(EB)BRAT]
TE—=FFER
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17. BIEEE @

17. Fixed Assets (continued)

(b) Company (b) &EAF
Office
equipment,
furniture and
motor vehicles
WAERME
R RAE
HK$’000
BT
Cost: A 1E :
At 1 July 2012 R-_E——_—F=+tH—H 10,495
Additions IR 815
At 30 June 2013 NR-E—=%#5;A=1+H 11,310
Accumulated depreciation: HETiREE -
At 1 July 2012 R-_E—_—F=+tH—H 9,032
154 Charge for the year KEERE 858
__At30June20t3 R-¥—=%xA=+H 9,890
Net book value: BRTEF(E
At 30 June 2013 N=T—=%,A=+H 1,420
Cost: RAE :
At 1 July 2011 R-E——FtHA—H 10,495
Additions R 919
Disposals HE (919)
At 30 June 2012 N='B—=—%,A=+1+H 10,495
Accumulated depreciation: FEHIRE -
At 1 July 2011 R-ZE——F+tHA—H 9,462
Charge for the year REERE 489
Write back on disposals HEZED (919)
__At30June2012 R-T¥—Z—-%%xA=+H 9,032
Net book value: BREF(E
At 30 June 2012 N-®T——-%#5;A=1+H 1,463

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited
Annual Report 2013
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BiZ 20134 6 530 AL FE
=
18. Leasehold Land 18. HHE 1 ih
Group
XEE
2013 2012
—B—=% —E-——F
HK$’000 HK$°000
BEFr BEF T
At beginning of year F4 91,929 91,109
Exchange adjustments ERAE 2,742 1,108
Additions IR - 2,360
Amortisation K| (2,657) (2,648)
At end of year FR 92,014 91,929
Current portion (included RENET D (B
in debtors, deposits and FBWER - ZER
prepayments — note 24) AR — M 24) (2,657) (2,648)
155

Non-current portion ERE M D 89,357 89,281

The Group’s leasehold land held under medium-term AEEZPEHBEYAE T hEIE

lease comprises:

Group
AEE
2013 2012
—E—=% —EB-CF
HK$°000 HK$’000
EETIiT BT T
Leasehold land in Hong Kong BEEZHEELH 12,787 13,166
Leasehold land outside Hong Kong &E U ZHEE 1 79,227 78,763
92,014 91,929

EIE(EB)BRAT]
TE—=FFER
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For the year ended 30 June 2013

B ZE2013F 6 H30 HILFE
19. Intangible Assets 19. ML & E
Group
XEE
Goodwill Trademarks Total
e g &t
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BEFIT BT BETFIT
Cost: BRAE :
At 1 July 2012 and N=FT—=-ftHA—BX
,,,,, 30June2013 —B-=FRA=YH s 40,262 54,996
Accumulated FaTies -
amortisation:
At 1 July 2012 R-ZE——F+tHA—H - 39,112 39,112
Charge for the year REEHE - 350 350
156 At30June2013  R-¥-=#xA=tE = 39,462 39,462
Impairment: BE :
At 1 July 2012 and 30 R-ZE-——FtHA—-HK
~.June2013 . —T-=%XA=tH 12589 - 12,539
Net book value: BRERE :
At 30 June 2013 NR-FE—=%7-A=+H 2,175 820 2,995

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited
Annual Report 2013
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EFE2013F6 30 HILFE

9. BILEE =)

19. Intangible Assets (continued)

Group
AEE
Goodwill Trademarks Total
S [EE e &5t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T BT T
Cost: RA(E :
At 1 July 2011 RZZ——FtH—H 14,714 39,332 54,046
Additions R — 950 950
At 30 June 2012 R=F—=%;A=+H 14,714 40,282 54,996
Accumulated Zstigsy -
amortisation:

At 1 July 2011 R-ZE——FtH—H — 38,999 38,999
Charge for the year REE — 113 113
_At30June2012  R-¥-—=#xA=+EB o 89,112 89,112
Impairment: W : 157

At 1 July 2011 and R-¥——#tA—HBR
~ 30June2012 —¥-=#xA=+E 12589 =] 12,589
Net book value: BREE(E :

At 30 June 2012 R=-T——%5-A=1+H 2,175 1,170 3,345

The amortisation charge for the year is included in
administrative expenses in the consolidated income
statement.

Impairment test for cash-generating units
containing goodwill

The carrying amount of goodwill is allocated to edible
oil operations. The recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (“CGU”) is determined based on value-
in-use calculations. These calculations use cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a four-year period. Cash flows
beyond the four-year period are extrapolated using an
estimated weighted average growth rate of 3% (2012:
3%) which does not exceed the long-term average growth
rate for the business in which the CGU operates. The
cash flows are discounted using a pre-tax discount rate of
19.9% (2012: 16.1%) which reflects specific risks relating
to the relevant CGU.

FEEZHHEBERACEETRESRER
ENTHRERAR -

BEMEBZRSELEMZRE
A

BECZROSERER A - HER
SELEBENNIRKRSERRIEFERE
BEFfE ZEEFAZEESREENR
RREEEMZNNESEBETE -
BN FNESREMERANTEST M
R R R3% (2012 : 3%) F BB
REeELBENREEBNRBFHER
R WL RBEABRKATITRE19.9%
(2012 : 16.1%)#THR MR EBRE
EEBNNEERE -

mIE(FES)BRAA
TE—=FFER
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20. Interest in Subsidiaries

20. B A S HExE

Company
AT

2013 2012
—B—=%5 —E--F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT B F T
Unlisted shares, at cost Fk EmRMRAE 1,435,432 1,436,068
Impairment loss RIEE R (181,636) (181,636)
Investment in subsidiaries KB A BIRE 1,253,796 1,254,432
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE U Bt B 2 R R IE 1,283,699 1,323,383
2,637,495 2,577,815
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEASHI B~ B FE (1,555,278) (1,557,550)
982,217 1,020,265

The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are interest-free,
unsecured, have no fixed terms of repayment and will not
be settled within one year.

Details of the subsidiaries are listed on pages 185 to 187.

Y EAMBLABRBLHARE - &
BR - REEEEERRARFTER—F

EMBATNERFEINNREISSEESE
187 H °

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited
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21. Interest in a Jointly Controlled 21. HEEHIEE#ER

Entity
Group Company
AATF
2013 2013
—E—=%F = —_ —E—=F
HK$°000 HK$’000
EETIT EETiT
Share of net assets EiEEE 43,510 52,668 - =
Amount due (to)/from a (FEY) /FEWR H R
jointly controlled entity H{E R FRIE (42,771) (37,659) 114 2,023
The amount due (to)/from the jointly controlled entity is () EWERRSEEREER
interest-free, unsecured and repayable on demand. B SR EREREIEEE .
Details of the jointly controlled entity are as follows: HEEEEENS BT
159
Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ equity holding Principal
Name of company operation indirectly activities
AT &8 s By BREFAESE FEER
Evergreen Oils & Fats Limited* (“Evergreen”) Cayman Islands/ Hong Kong 50 Dormant”
RERBBRARTRED HEers & [ERCNIE— 8
* Company not audited by KPMG * ZEQNTFHEFTHETMEENE
2
! On 30 September 2011, the Group and the joint venture i R-E——FNA=1+H AEEH
partner entered into a mutual agreement to terminate BELENFEITREERLEE R
the Joint Venture Agreement effective 1 April 2012. FOUYR—E-——FOA-—HEM
Upon termination of the Joint Venture Agreement, a BRIEEERHRZ  ~EEZ2EHE
wholly owned subsidiary of the Group, namely Lam Soon NE BEEREEEB)AERA
Products Supply (Hong Kong) Company Limited, took up A BEHRBEERBRZEME
the business in relation to the sales of products of the =

Group previously carried out by Evergreen.

EIE(EB)BRAT]
TE—=FFER
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21. X EIEFHIERELR =)

21. Interest in a Jointly Controlled
Entlty (continued)

FERAEEzHARZEFERE 2 HEE
HRE - AEECERERS !

Summarised financial information on the jointly controlled

entity — Group’s effective interest:

Financial position

BAE5IR AL

2013 2012

—F-=f5 —E-——fF

HK$’000 HK$’000

BEETFIT BT T

Non-current assets ERBEE - 3,692

Current assets REEE 55,699 49,858

Total assets HEE 55,699 53,550

Current liabilities BEII=NE (12,189) (882)

160 N

Total ligbilities wa& (12189) (882

Net assets HEE 43,510 52,668

Results E3

2013 2012

—B-=% —E-=fF

HK$’000 HK$’000

BEFor BT

Income WA 3,760 291,415

Expenses ] (12,918) (290,844)

(Loss)/profit for the year REE(BE) 57 (9,158) 571

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited
Annual Report 2013
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22. Available-for-sale Financial
Assets

22, O ENMBEE

Group Company
F%HE A2E

2013 2012 2013 2012
TE-C=F gl — T ks
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BETT WEEerE E%TT Wi

Listed equity securities, thEHETHE
at market value
— in Hong Kong — BB 16 16 16 16
Others, at cost Hib A 342 787 - =
Impairment loss BEEE (165) (280) — =
eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeemeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeereeeeeeeeeeetesesesaeeee I ] 507 T
193 523 16 16
- 1
23. Inventories 23. 58
(@) Inventories in consolidated statement of (@ NEEUMBRARZEES
financial position comprise: 4
Group
AEH
2013 2012
—B—=%5 —E——F
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT BT
Raw materials FEare 329,539 361,405
Work in progress S 3 82,268 95,042
Finished goods SR 108,621 96,596
Inventories in transit EEEm 24,809 16,181
Packing materials R 12,496 14,608
Spare parts B 320 689
558,053 584,521

EIE(EB)BRAT]
TE—=FFER
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23. Inventories (continued)

The analysis of amount of inventories
recognised as an expense is as follows:

(b)

23. 585w

EZAXHZEEEBASH
mF :

(b)

2013 2012
—g—=% —z-—&
HK$’000 HK$’000
EETIT BT T
Carrying amount of EHFEZREE
inventories sold 3,039,895 2,505,994
Write-down/(back) of FERME(BE)
inventories 1,552 (6,921)
3,041,447 2,499,073

24. Debtors, Deposits and
Prepayments

All of the debtors, deposits and prepayments are
expected to be recovered within one year.

24. B%EI&EE%’\ ERERER

FBERWERN - RERAMREGRBAE

—FRKE
Group Company
AEE AAT

2013 2012 2013 2012

=t L T F b — T f
HK$°000 LK HK$000 WEEELEX00Y
BT Wikl EFTT Wik

Total trade debtors EWE 5 IR AR 257,355 221,970 - =
Less: Allowance for doubtful & - RIBBRAEHR
debts (note 24(b)) (BtaE24(b)) (16) (675) - =
257,339 221,295 — —
Other debtors, deposits and EAEIREER » RER
prepayments SECREN 118,919 63,708 243 644
Current portion of leasehold &+t — FREH1EIRH
land (note 18) (Kiat 18) 2,657 2,648 - —
378,915 287,651 243 644

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited
Annual Report 2013
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24. Debtors, Deposits and 24,

Prepayments (continued)
(@) Aging Analysis

The aging of trade debtors (based on the invoice
date and net of allowance for doubtful debts) as of

AR « & R

;X&)
(a) BRESDHT

W E ZRR(RIEEZ R A
MBERIFRER) REIR 2RI

the end of the reporting period is as follows: DI
Group Company
ARE FAT

HK$'000
EBETFT

2012 2012
—E—_F = —E-——F
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BEFT Wik BEFT

0 - 3 months EZE={@A 253,452 219,568 - =
4 — 6 months DAY = 3,887 1,727 - =
Total trade debtors EWE 5 ERF AR 257,339 221,295 = =

The Group’s credit policy is set out in note 5(a).
(b) Impairment of trade debtors

Impairment losses in respect of trade debtors are
recorded using an allowance account unless the
Group is satisfied that recovery of the amount
is remote, in which case the impairment loss is
written off against trade debtors directly (see note

2(K)(@))-

The movements in the allowance for doubtful

REEZ FERRERMIEES(@) ©
(b) FEWE ZARM 2 H{ERE

FEWE 2 BRRAVRERRE - — KR
SEBREREBDE - HAE
ERARSHEITUENEEY
o EREBRT - HEREEE
SEHEPRERE S RA(RKH
7T 2(K)() ©

RNEEEBERERBEAND

debts during the year, including both specific and DHRBREEEHOT
collective loss components, are as follows:
Group Company
AEH AATH

2013
—E—=%F
HK$°000
BT

2012 2013 2012

ZE-—F [Eegici s T — 6

HK$'000 BRELEXN  HK$'000
BETT WAl 2% TT

At beginning of year  £%] (675) (464) — =
Recognition of R EEE

impairment loss (23) (236) - —
Uncollectible amounts  fifi$# A~ A Ui [@ £ 58

written off 689 25 - =
Exchange fE M A%

adjustments (7) — - —
At end of year FR (16) (675) - —

At 30 June 2013, specific allowance for doubtful
debt amounted to HK$16,000 (2012: HK$675,000).

R=ZBE—=FEXA=1+H #<E
RERBESIES B 16,000
TT(ZFE— ZF . B ¥675,000
JT) °

EIE(EB)BRAT]
TE—=FFER
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24. Debtors, Deposits and 24. FEUTHRER « e R TEfT

Prepayments (continued) )
(c) Trade debtors that are not impaired (c) REEREBEZEWRES
b

T EER N EREBHEIRBE
HEEBERE SRR AR

impaired are as follows: DT :

The aging analysis of trade debtors that are neither
individually nor collectively considered to be

Group Company
FEHE AT
2013 2012 2013 2012
i o B — T kot — T — 4
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
EBETT LR EETrT WL

Neither past due nor  FRZ|H & RERE

impaired i} 241,483 208,776 - —
164 Past due for less than BHEIDRHER
3 months ={@AB 15,186 12,346 - —

Past due for more BHZA=EAE
than 3 months but PR+ Z@EA
less than 12 months 670 173 — —

257,339 221,295 - =

Trade debtors that were neither past due nor
impaired relate to a wide range of customers for
whom there was no recent history of default.

Trade debtors that were past due but not impaired
relate to a number of independent customers that
have a good track record with the Group. Based
on past experience, management believes that no
impairment allowance is necessary in respect of
these balances as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and the balances are
still considered fully recoverable. Collaterals over
properties are obtained from certain customers.

REIE R T RE R 2 MR
SEN - HREEREHER
RROES -

BHETEREZEZERES
R BRZBEAKEARY
BREBNBEIES - BUAK
B BHRAEFEERIESZAN
X% EEEMEEEIMELR
HEHRERE  TRRELSE
RREAZHWE - AEBEHE
ETEFEGMERR -

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited
Annual Report 2013
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25. Derivative Financial 25.
Instruments

The Group has entered into various commodity derivative
contracts to manage its price exposures on soybean oil
and wheat as at 30 June 2012. There was no derivative
contract entered by the Group as at 30 June 2013.

TSI A

MRZB—-FEXA=+H  A&EECH
VEZBEERTEIAESGR  UWEEBR
BEETRANEEAEYNESRR
e RZEBE—=FEXA=+H £@K
B APTETASBR -

26. Cash and Cash Equivalents 26. IR&RINSEEE
Group Company
FEH FAF

2013
=%
HK$’000
EETTT

2012 2013 2012
ZE——F kil — T —
HK$'000 F G LEH el HK$ 000
Vit-aoll E5TFor WGL R

Cash on hand and at banks R&REITER 232,092 224,987 800 522
Time deposits EHFR 258,125 226,130 — =
490,217 451,117 800 522

Cash at banks carries interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposits rates. Time deposits are matured
within three months and earn interest at the respective
short term deposit rates.

RITERBBERBARTEARRRTE
ZEBAERRFE - EHERIR=
BRAEE  WiEEE2EBFERA =R
BREXFIE. o

27. Bank Loans 27. IRITER
Group Company
AEH AAT

2013
—E—=%F
HK$’000
BT

RITERK

269,000

Bank loans

2012 2013 2012
ZE——F il T —
HK$'000 B LGl  HK$ 000
BT WiaeaN BT

347,000 = =

The Group’s bank loans are denominated in HKS,
unsecured and repayable on demand or within one year.

The Group’s bank loans carry variable rate of interest of
Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate (HIBOR) plus 1.2% to
1.75% (2012: HIBOR plus 1.2% to 2.0%) per annum.

FBEAEEZRITERELUBREE
BIEAREERS—FRE-

TEEZRITERABIBANEER &
NFHEBRITALFEMENEH1.2%
B175% (= ——F : EBRITEE
FEMEREZE1.2%E2.0%)5T8

EIE(EB)BRAT]
TE—=FFER
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28. Creditors, Deposits Received 28. FEfTERFN » EWtiRE R

and Accruals fEsT& A
The aging analysis of trade creditors (based on the invoice ENESRER(REZXZRE) oMM
date) is as follows: T

Group Company

AEH EAT

2013 2012 2013 2012
TER-SF il — TS kit
LLC N HK$'000 EELEY M  HK$'000
ot EX T Wi E¥TT

0 - 3 months SEZE={EH 216,639 202,595 - =
4 — 6 months P92 < {E B 1,203 696 — —
Total trade creditors B E SR EEE 217,842 203,291 - =
Deposits received BWizE 14,810 16,478 - =
166 Other creditors and accruals  E fth FE{SBR 7R &% FE=T
EH 144,746 111,534 11,588 13,322
377,398 331,303 11,588 13,322
- agm - : E
29. Other Current Liabilities 29. HivFiEEE
Group Company
XEH AAT
2013 2012 2013 2012
TS il —E— = bRt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT T BT BT T
Obligations under REHENEE
finance leases 154 256 - —

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited
Annual Report 2013
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30. Other Non-current Liabilities

30. HihEREAR

Group
AEE

2013

—E—=%
HK$’000
BE-Fir

Company
FAT

2012 2013 2012
—E—-—fF
HK$’000
BT T

- L R — A
HK$°000 HK$°000
BETT WL

Obligations under finance MEHENEE
leases
— After one year but — —FEREWMEFER
within two years &z 52 148 - =
— After two years but — MERZERFR
within five years EE - 49 - —
52 197 - —

31. Share Capital

31. Ig&X

(@) Authorised and issued share capital EEREITIRA
Number
of shares Nominal value
RkrE=E B EE
‘000 HK$’000
Fh& BT
Authorised: EERE :
At 30 June 2012 and at AZE-——FXA=Z+HRE
30 June 2013, ordinary “E—=FXA=1+A8 "
shares of HK$1 each BREBERAEE 1T 300,000 300,000
Issued and fully paid: EETREHERAE :
At 30 June 2012 and at RIE—Z-FXA=1+HRK
30 June 2013, ordinary —E-—Z=FXA=1+A8 "
shares of HK$1 each BREBREBYEI T 243,354 243,354

During the year ended 30 June 2012, the Group
repurchased 3,601,000 ordinary shares at a
consideration of HK$15,553,000 on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited for the purpose
of satisfying the exercise of share options granted
to directors and eligible employees. There was no
share repurchased during the year ended 30 June
2013. As at 30 June 2013, there were 4,994,000
(2012: 4,994,000) ordinary shares acquired and
held by the Group under the ESOP reserve.

BE-ZE-——-—HX-A=1THLE
EHE BREERTROIAE
R WATENRYG » NEBEZRRK
HREETEEBEESTBES
R 5 P 8 E 8 B 3,601,000
B & {8 % ¥ 15,553,000 T °
NZBE-—=FEXA=Z+H0HH-
AEESEEERD R-F
—=FX~"A=1+H AEERE
IRPREBREARBETIRES
PR 4,994,000 R(=ZF— =% :
4,994,000 f%)

EIE(EB)BRAT]
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31. Share Capltal (continued)

(b)

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can
continue to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products
and services commensurately with the level of risk
and by securing access to finance at a reasonable
cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain a balance
between the higher shareholder returns that might
be possible with higher levels of borrowings and
the advantages and security afforded by a sound
capital position, and makes adjustments to the
capital structure in light of changes in economic
conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure by
reviewing its equity-debt ratio and cashflow
requirements, taking into account of its future
financial obligations and commitments. For this
purpose, the Group defines equity-debt ratio as the
ratio of the equity attributable to shareholders of
the Company to net debt. Net debt comprises total
bank borrowings less cash and short term funds.

31. & @

(b)

BEXxER

AEEEREANEERRR
RESEREHTRERESE  BBD
7= i 2 AR 7% B E B AL Bk P AR A
MEE UREBRASERAE
SREXMERDRREH-D R
R BEMFISERE FREE

AEBEBRERHERERR
MRERER  MEBRSKRRD
HERT TREFE2ESEEK
FHRHEFNERNRRTRNES
RREzEMEVE  LEEE
BRENSCHERERBELR
o

AEBUEAEFBLE - RER
ERREZRERNTBER BERE
REHEREREARE - ER
o AEEKEFERLRRE
RERTARREEEZEFEE
MR- FREEEBERR X
RerEHES -

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited
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31. & @)

EXEE@®)

31. Share Capltal (continued)
(b) Capital management (continued) (b)

The equity-debt ratios at 30 June 2013 and 2012 R-ZZE—=R=-ZE—-FXA

are as follows: =tAZEXRERBLZRAT:
Group Company
AEE EAT

2013 2012 2013 2012
—g-=5 EESLH-g-=¢ B IR
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
#rrr ikl %77 i

Bank loans repayable —FREENRIT

within 1 year BEX 269,000 347,000 - —
Less: Cash and cash BBEERES

equivalents £8 (490,217)  (451,117) (800) (522)

Net liquid funds FREBES (221,217) (104,117) (800) (522) 169
Equity attributable to NN

shareholders of the s

Company 1,534,854 1,407,217 973,222 1,011,611
Equity-debt ratio EXRABLE 100:0 100:0 100:0 100:0

EIE(EB)BRAT]
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32. Equity Settled Share-based

170

Transactions

A share option scheme (the “2003 Share Option Scheme”)
was adopted by the shareholders on 23 May 2003 and
amended and approved by the shareholders at the
extraordinary general meeting on 18 April 2006 (“Date
of Approval”’). The amendment to the rules of the 2003
Share Option Scheme on the Date of Approval by the
shareholders was to, among other, allow grant of options
over newly issued shares and/or transfer of existing shares
by a trust of the 2003 Share Option Scheme (the “Trust”)
which established between the Company and a trustee of
the Trust, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group, and to
align the rules under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

The 2003 Share Option Scheme expired on 23 May 2013
and a New Executive Share Option Scheme 2013 (the
“ESOS 20183”) was approved by the shareholders of the
Company at the extraordinary general meeting held on
23 April 2013 and took effect on 25 April 2013. Upon
expiration of the 2003 Share Option Scheme, no further
option can be granted under 2003 Share Option Scheme,
but all options granted thereunder will remain exercisable
in accordance with the terms of the 2003 Share Option
Scheme.

There were 14,600,000 options granted under the ESOS
2013, in which there were 5,000,000 options granted
to Group Managing Director and the grant of options in
respect of 2,570,000 options is conditional upon approval
of shareholders of the Company in coming general
meeting as required under the Listing Rules and the terms
of ESOS 2013. The terms of the 12,030,000 options
granted are disclosed in note 32(a). The terms of the
remaining 2,570,000 options conditional upon approval of
shareholders of the Company in coming general meeting
are similar to those disclosed in note 32(a).

Options granted under the 2003 Share Option Scheme
and ESOS 2013 are subject to achievement of
performance-based vesting condition. The option shall
lapse on the date the grantee ceased to be an employee
of the Group or the performance-based condition is
not satisfied. Each option gives the holder the right to
subscribe for one ordinary share in the Company and is
settled gross in shares.

— AR AR B RERT8([2003 10 R ERE
SFENDR-ZZT=FRA-T=RER
RHERR-ZZFRFOATNB(#
FEEBMDRRRER RS LR R
HEAERT o AL /E B 8 - 32003 R 10 3
BRETARACZRETCERR 241t
"E HARBERRESRARTHME

TROR,RBEBHERDAEEE S
E’M.:. (EEDUEEDARDAEER
ZERRZZTARRYL  MEZFEAR
AEEZ2ENBLAREZRERN
ZRBE URRE EHRAE17TEY
HAMELAEET ©

2003 M RBEBENR=_ZE—=F4
A-t+=HER - —=FTHA
ERMDRBETE(2013K 1R IEE
FENDER-E—=FTNA-_+=0%
BREAE TR-ZE—=FNMA=-+H
HAEM o 2003k 1R E R
% NN E N EERA 2003 IR 17 52 BB RE AT
B TRTFEARERE  BEMEERT
I B 19 52 B #E {3 1] 4R $5 2003 R 17 3R B8
FEST B 2R AR G T1TfE -

RIBE2013R M RBEESTE XA FH
& H & $£14,600,0008% K& 17 2 2 8B
B HPhmAAREEESAKER
i 5,000,000 & B 19 2 REEHE - RIE £
MR A K 2013 17 R B RS B 2 &R
FriRE » 2,570,000 R R 19 2 SR BB RE Th
BERGRY AHEALATARRARRE
REftE FOEE - XAAFAREZ
12,030,000 A% B 17 =2 58 i FE 9% TR FO AR 44
AMEES2(e) FIEE - M T HEIRGEEZ
2,570,000 f% B% 19 = 52 B8 FE (9 158 3% A 15
B8R 1 3E 32(a) R T IR R RV AL -

RIBE 2003 BT EIM2013 RO

BB REcRBEZEBIRED

ERNMBEXBEEEREMBEE -

RORBENREARAFLAXEERZE

TZHSREEINRREERAN - &

ﬁﬂxfﬁ BREBRTHEEARBAQF -
BIREVRER
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32. Equity Settled Share-based

Transactions (continued)

(@) The terms and conditions of the grants (a)

are as follows:

2003 Share Option Scheme:

32.1§ﬂ§ZF§E§i‘IJﬁ§ﬁﬁ§%
EEBEMNRZ S @
B ZIERFEEFNT :
2003 8 (RIS B -

Number of Contractual life of
instruments Exercisable period options
REEEYEB TI{TERRE REEESOH
Options granted to
a former director:
RBERTF—BES
—26 August 2010 2,430,000 (i) 40%— Within 6 months 3.85 years
—RA=E-ZFNA=+H from vesting date on  3.854F

30 June 2014
E-ZE—NMFERA=TH

WEBAEBAEAR
(i) 40%— Within 6 months  4.85 years
from vesting date on  4.85%

30 June 2015
E=ZE—HFANA=1H

WEBRENERAR
(i) 20% —Within 6 months  5.85 years
from vesting date on ~ 5.85%

30 June 2016
E=B-AFRA=+A
HEBAENEAR

EIE(EB)BRAT]
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32. Equity Settled Share-based 32. RAEFHLIRG A
Transactions (continued) BB 5=
(a) The terms and conditions of the grants (a) RHZERFESEDOT : (&)

are as follows: (continued)

Number of Contractual life of
instruments Exercisable period options
RREERE ST RRBEE N
—16 November 2010 3,170,000 () 40%— Within 6 months 3.62 years
—-R=ZE—ZF+—-A+XH from vesting date on ~ 3.62 4

30 June 2014
E-B-MEXB=TA
KB BN E AR

(i) 40%— Within 6 months  4.62 years
from vesting date on  4.62 %
30 June 2015
E-Z—HFRA=1H
WEBHENERAR

172 (i) 20%— Within 6 months  5.62 years
from vesting date on  5.62 %
30 June 2016
E-—E—R"EARA=T1H
HEBRAEREAR

Options granted to employees:
EMEETET :
—26 August 2010 18,400,000 () 40%— Within 6 months  3.85 years
—RZZE-FFENA=+H from vesting date on ~ 3.85%
30 June 2014
E-Z2-EFARA=TH
WEEE B ERERAR

(i) 40%— Within 6 months  4.85 years
from vesting date on ~ 4.85%F
30 June 2015
E=E-AFA<A=TH
HEBBENEAR

(i) 20% — Within 6 months  5.85 years
from vesting date on ~ 5.85%
30 June 2016
EZZE-XRFRA=TH
WEEE B ERERAR

Total share options granted 19,000,000
ROZDERERTEH

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited
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BiF 20136 530 H1LFE

32. Equity Settled Share-based

Transactions (continued)

(@) The terms and conditions of the grants (a)
are as follows: (continued)

32. REAGHBN UGB B
HEBRNX S =)

Rz IR GIOT - ()

ESOS 2013: THRAERODRBET 2013 :
Number of Contractual life of
instruments Exercisable period options
REEEYEB TI{TERRE REBES
Options granted to a director:
RBERTES
—28 June 2013 (Batch 1) 607,500 () 40%— Within 6 months 1 year
—RZZEB-—=FxA=+)\H from vesting date on 1%
(k3% 1) 30 June 2014
E-E-NFEARB=TH
HEBRAEREAR
(i) 40%— Within 6 months 2 years
from vesting date on 2%
30 June 2015
E-—E-HRFEASA=T+H
HEBRAEREAR
(i) 20%— Within 6 months 3 years
from vesting date on 3%
30 June 2016
E=—E—R"EARA=TH
HEBRAEREAR
—28 June 2013 (Batch 2) 1,822,500 () 40%— Within 6 months 4 years

—RZB—=FXA=1N\H
(#t5%2)

from vesting date on 4 £
30 June 2017
E-ZE—tFEXA=1AH
ERE AR NEA R

(i) 40%— Within 6 months 5 years
from vesting date on 5%
30 June 2018
E=—E-N\EXA=t+H
HEEBEENERAR

(i) 20%— Within 6 months 6 years
from vesting date on 64
30 June 2019
E=E-—NFARA=TH
HEEBBENERAR

EIE(EB)BRAT]
TE—=FFER
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BiZ 20136 530 AL FE

32. Equity Settled Share-based 32. RAEFHLIRG A
Transactions (continued) BB 5=
(a) The terms and conditions of the grants (a) RHZERFESEDOT : (&)

are as follows: (continued)

Number of Contractual life of
instruments Exercisable period options
WEEEHEB SI{TERRE REEES O
Options granted to eligible
executives:
REBERTEERITHAE
—28 June 2013 (Batch 1) 2,400,000 (i) 40%— Within 6 months 1 year
—RZZE-—=FxA=1+)\H from vesting date on 1%
(5% 1) 30 June 2014
E-E2-mFEA<A=TH
WEBAEBSEAR
(i) 40%— Within 6 months 2 years
from vesting date on 2%
30 June 2015
E=—Z-—HFRA=TH
174 WEBABSEAR
(i) 20%— Within 6 months 3 years
from vesting date on 3%
30 June 2016
E-Z—R"EXRA=TH
WEBAEBSEAR
—28 June 2013 (Batch 2) 7,200,000 (i) 40%— Within 6 months 4 years
—R=ZZE—-=FxA=1+)\H from vesting date on 4 £
(#t55%2) 30 June 2017
E=2-—tFX<A=T1H
WEBABSEAR
(i) 40%— Within 6 months 5 years
from vesting date on 5%
30 June 2018
E=E-NFRA=1+H
WEBABSEAR
(i) 20% — Within 6 months 6 years
from vesting date on 6%
30 June 2019
E=E-NAFRA=TH
WEBAEBSEAR
Total share options granted 12,030,000

ROZBBER TR

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited
Annual Report 2013
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For the year ended 30 June 2013

BiZ 20134 6 530 AL FE
32. Equity Settled Share-based 32. RAEFHLIRG A
Transactions (continued) BRI 5@
(b) The number and weighted average (b) PBxip:R Eﬁ*&ﬂ'}ﬁﬁ&ﬂu*&qz
exercise prices of share options are as WITEENT
follows:
2003 Share Option Scheme: 2003 R 10 RRBERERT 8 -
2013 2012
—E-=% —T-CF
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number of exercise Number
price options price  of options
IHEE SOREHE iR REEE
1T{E(E Eof = | I8 #H
HK$ ’000 HK$ 000
BT F BT +
o 175
Outstanding at the REAERFITHE
beginning of the year 6.86 10,150 6.86 18,150
Granted during the year REREH - - = =
Lapsed during the year ~ RERKXMK 6.86 (3,700) 6.86 (8,000)
Outstanding at the end ~ PAFELE B R
of the year 1IfE 6.86 6,450 6.86 10,150

Exercisable at the end of RE 4 B A47{E
the year = - — —

mIE(ES)BRAR]
—E-=FFR
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EiF 20136 530 H1LFE
32. Equity Settled Share-based 32. ARG EH LI A
Transactions (continueq) BRI 5@
(b) The number and weighted average (b) BRHZEBENSEEMES
exercise prices of share options are as WITEENT : (&)

follows: (continued)

ESOS 2013: THRABRMDABETE 2013 :

2013
—E—=%F
Weighted
average Number of

exercise price options
MEFHITEE RREHEEE
HK$ ’000

BT

Outstanding at the beginning AEDEREITHE

176 of the year = -
Granted during the year REARRH 4.62 12,030
Lapsed during the year RERKM - =
Outstanding at the end REL B ERWTHE

of the year 4.62 12,030
Exercisable at the end RELEBITE

of the year = -
The options outstanding at 30 June 2013 under RZE—=F~B=+H %%
the 2003 Share Option Scheme and ESOS 2013 2003 R R BB RESH 8I % 201317
had exercise price of HK$6.86 (2012: HK$6.86) HAERMDDERETEIG - HE
and HK$4.62 (2012: Not applicable) and weighted TENRDABRETEEDBA
average remaining contractual life of 1.8 years BESRAT(ZE——F : Hu
(2012: 2.8 years) and 4.05 years (2012: Not 6.8670) B 462t (ZF—=
applicable) respectively. F . RER) K MEEF G &k

EHEA B A1I18E(ZE—=
F28F)RA40BF(=ZE—=
FREA) -

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited
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For the year ended 30 June 2013
EFE2013F6 30 HILFE

32. Equity Settled Share-based
Transactions (continued)

(c) Fair value of share options and
assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for
share options granted is measured by reference
to the fair value of share options granted. The
estimate of the fair value of the share options
granted is measured based on Black-Scholes
model. The contractual life of the share option is
used as an input into this model.

Fair value of share options and assumptions of
2003 Share Option Scheme:

Fair value at measurement date REERZARE

Share price RE

Exercise price 1T1EE

Expected volatility TR DR R

Option life B R

Expected dividend yield FEERE =

Risk free rate (based on Exchange @ = (R
Fund Note) HNEESEIE)

Fair value of share options and assumptions of

(c) HxirsBREHEN AR EFRE

BERRETROIDBEERMARE
NMARERSERRTHEND
REFE EREROIABELD
ARENEFRREMENR - &F
T A - AR O RBEN
BRNHRAEZEENE AZ

8-

B 7 SR BB RE D o B K 2003 iR 19
BT EIRR -

2013 2012
—EB—=%5 =

HK$ ~##£0.055- HK$ /38 0.009-

HK$ ~#%0.157 HK$ /7845 0.563
HK$ #%5 4.58 HK$ /351 3.9
HK$ #% 6.86 HK$ 85 6.86

27.20% - 30.26%  24.97% - 37.16%

1 year - 3 years 2 years — 4 years
15 - 3% 2F - A%
3.5% 2.4%

0.24% — 0.56% 0.78% — 1.30%

B REEDAEBEKR20131TH

ESOS 2013: AERDRBRERE
2013
—Eg-=F
Fair value at measurement date RETEAZARE HK$ &#£ 0.456-
HK$ /7% 1.060
Share price BRE HK$ /7% 4.58
Exercise price 1TfEE HK$ /B 4.62
Expected volatility LN 27.20% - 35.99%
Option life 0. 1 F B 1 year — 6 years
16 -64F
Expected dividend yield FRHRE R 3.5%

Risk free rate (based on Exchange {ERE\kFI= (15

Fund Note) INEESEE) 0.24%— 1.37%

mEIE(FES)BRAT
TE—=FFER
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EFE2013F6 30 HILFE

32. Equity Settled Share-based
Transactions (continued)

(c)

Fair value of share options and
assumptions (continued)

The expected volatility is based on the historic
volatility (calculated based on the weighted average
remaining life of the share options), adjusted for
any expected changes to future volatility based on
publicly available information. Expected dividends
are based on historical dividends. Changes in the
subjective input assumptions could materially affect

the fair value estimate.

The Company estimated that the performance-
based vesting condition of the 2003 Share Option
Scheme would not be achieved and hence the
amount recognised as cost for services received
from the grantees in previous years was reversed
during the year ended 30 June 2013. In addition,
no amortisation of the cost of services in respect
of the share options granted under the ESOS
2013 was recognised during the year ended 30
June 2013 as these options were granted near
the year end date and the Company estimated the
amortisation effects is minimal.

R 63 Bz 63 s BB 4E R 2 FE (B F0
fRa% (&)

AHRERIDREBEKEMETE
(FHETIRE R0 R B R b0
FHNEGH)  TRELMEM
BB RAR IR TR R E
A EHREDRBEBER
EMEE - EX@WABEERRA
HRAREGTEREATLE -

A8 B 4 5 2R 88 2 2 2003 IR 15
REBRFTENRBIEEEBIK
BB EEROGIABEND
RETRERAERERORE
BENE T ZRBEEA - B H
2013 ARBREEMIRE 2
RERVBEAHRFLBEME
oARQABRGHERE—=F
ARA=THLEFE#HEZRBERK
REBME - 2R RN
RS B AR 2 8 o
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33. &

33. Reserves

Company AAT
Investment Share
Share  revaluation option General Revenue
premium reserve reserve reserve reserve Total
Bt
BihEE REAERERE iR ~RfiE Wiiiite L]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK8'000 HK8'000 HK$'000
BRI BRI BRI BRI BRI BRI
At 1 July 2011 RZE--FtfB-H 429,423 18 2,568 50,000 318,721 800,736
Change in fair value of avallable-for- ~ TRHENSHEEEZ
sale financial assets INDIEL £ - (17) - - = (17)
Equity settled share-based BRAEEHNRDBER
fransactions B = = (1,770 - = (1,770
s e 179
Loss for the year (note 14) REEERHE 1) - = = = (6,357) (6,357)
2010/11 final dvidend proposed ~~ BERREN-E-%/
and paid ——ERERE - = = = (24,335) (24,335)
At 30 June 2012 RZE-ZEXR=1H 429,423 1 798 50,000 288,035 768,257
A1 Juy 2012 W=%-=FtA-A 429428 1 7% 50000 28805 768257
Equity settled share-based RRAZENURDAEE
fransactions p% - - (798) - - (798)
Loss for the year (note 14) REEERMEH 14) - - - - (3,522) (3522)
2011/12 final dividend proposed ~~ BERRZHZE--/
and paid —ZERERE - - - - (19,468) (19,468)
Current year interim dividend BERRXAREETHRE
declared and paid - - - - (14,601) (14,601)
At 30 June 2013 RZF-Z%7A=1H 429,423 1 - 50,000 250,444 729,868

EIE(EB)BRAT]
TE—=FFER
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EFE2013F6 30 HILFE

33. Reserves (continued)

Nature and purpose of reserves:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Share premium

The application of the share premium account
is governed by Sections 48B of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Surplus reserves

Surplus reserves include statutory surplus reserve
and statutory public welfare fund.

In accordance with Accounting Regulations
for Business Enterprises, foreign investment
enterprises in Mainland China are required to
transfer at least 10% of their profit after taxation, as
determined under accounting principles generally
accepted in the PRC (“PRC GAAP”) to the statutory
surplus reserve until the balance of the reserve is
equal to 50% of their registered capital.

Investment revaluation reserve

The investment revaluation reserve comprises
the cumulative net change in the fair value of the
available-for-sale financial assets held at the end of
the reporting period and is dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policies in note 2(f).

ESOP reserve

The ESOP reserve represents the purchase
consideration for issued shares of the Company
acquired for the purpose of satisfying the exercise
of share options granted under the Company’s
Share Option Scheme. The application of the ESOP
reserve is governed by Section 49H of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

33. =

REZHERAR
(i) MtimfE

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

BROBERZERADZEBRR
RMRDGI)EE 48BIRFTEEE ©

mER(HE

BR#ERBEEIERGLEER

EEREE e

RIB(EESTAHE) - EHEK
BEHIBRECEIAERIR
10% (P EARLNBEES
QD FTE B BRB R EFBAE
EESBLES  HEZRENES
BREEREMEARR50% B 1L o

REAEMGHE

REEMREEERBEREEN
AHEENMBEEEZ A AESE
BHNREFE ARBEME2)
P&z et BERMmERE -

ETROZEESRMHEE

EIROABELSRBEARS
MEREMBTITREEROAE
BRIFRTHRDZBERBA
ZEADREBRITRONBER
B ZRBZEAZEB(QF
1R )EE AOH IR FREE®E ©
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33. Reserves (continued)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

Share option reserve

Share option reserve comprises the fair value of
equity settled share based transactions and is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policies in
note 2(q)(ii).

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of foreign operations.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in note 2(u).

General reserve

The general reserve has been set up by transfer
of revenue reserve according to resolutions of the
Board of directors.

Revenue reserve

The distributable reserve of the Company at 30
June 2013 amounted to HK$250,444,000 (2012:
HK$288,035,000). After the end of the reporting
period, the directors proposed a final dividend of
HK$0.12 per ordinary share (2012: HK$0.08 per
ordinary share), amounting to HK$29,202,000
(2012: HK$19,468,000). The dividend has not been
recognised as a liability at the end of the reporting
period.

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

33. =

Ry B AR S

RiORBEFREEERTEIZ
BROBBENAAME  ZHBR
15 B 5 2()(il) P 8 2 S 5T BUE
BRIE o

BE R it

E R #ERERTERIIERN
BB EMEEELEZRHE - Z
EERBHE2(u) 8 2 S5
RMEE -

— it

—RFBERESERUAFER
EZ W EEERA -

W 2 o

ARAAR-_ZF—Z=F5XA
ST HEzZUhERERBE
250,444,000t (= —=—F : B
#£288,085,0007t) - REAKR#% -
BEEERRBCARAEREASR
LTERBEI2T(ZE—ZF ¢
BRETERBEO8T) B
2 A B ¥20,202,000T(= &
—— & . B #¥19,468,0007T ) °
ZRFARAARERRESE -

mEIE(FES)BRAT
TE—=FFER
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EiF 20136 530 H1LFE
34. Capital Commitments 34. %iEIEH
(@)  The Group had the following commitments not @ AEEREREUTHEEEBR
provided for in the financial statements at the end T BRRPIELRE

of the reporting period:

Group

AEH
2013 2012
—E-=F —E-CfF
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT BETT

Authorised capital expenditure ~ B#LEIEFT N 2 E R
and contracted for B 25,216 74,429

Authorised capital expenditure ~ BHtEERFT N 2 EAR

but not contracted for B 90,938 88,478
182 (b) At 30 June 2013, the Group had several non- b) RZE—Z=ZFxXAB=+H'X
cancellable purchase orders for raw materials with SEEMERE L ERT A E
its suppliers with an amount of HK$136,380,000 EHRBIE 2EABK
(2012: HK$274,425,000). 136,380,000 (=& — = : B

274,425,000 7T) °

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited
Annual Report 2013
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35. Related Party Transactions 35. EAHEFRIE 5

The Group had the following material transactions with its
related parties during the year:

Related party Nature of transactions
3] X5ME
Evergreen Purchases of small package oil
RrE BE/NEERME

Sales of aroma oll

BEWRHEE

Bottling and refinery income for
small package oil

NERRBRERBRBA

Management fee income

EEEBWA

Royalties received for the use
of trademarks

AR AR B A

Sales of cleaning products

BRERmMEE

Purchases of fixed assets and
intangible assets

BEETEEREBENEE

GOMC/GGMC Management fee expenses (Note)
EEBRH

Hong Leong Insurance (Asia) Ltd. Insurance fee expenses

LERECGMNBRAF REREXH

Other related party transactions are also disclosed in
notes 11 and 21.

Note:

A master service agreement was entered into between the
Company and GuoLine Group Management Co. Limited
(“GGMC”) together with GOMC Limited (“GOMC”) (collectively
known as the “Service Providers”), subsidiaries of HLCM, the
Company’s ultimate holding company, on 30 June 2011 for the
provision of management services to the Group by the Service
Providers for a term of three years from 1 July 2011.

AEEAEBEUTERNBEBRAR
5

2013 2012
—F-=f5 —E-——fF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BEFIT BT T
- 81,251

- 20,224
36,663

- 1,000

- 7,145

- 25

- 3,301

5,570 600
609 763

Mz 11 K21 NEREEMER LTS -

BifeE -

R-ZZT——FXA=+H AQFHR
KHLCM# Ff B 2 7 Guoline Group
Management Co. Limited ((GGMCJ) &
GOMC Limited ([GOMC) (&#E[ BRIGHLFE
ml) REFEHESK=-Z——FtHE—H
BAEAEEREAN="FEERE » T2
— 1B IRIS = o

mEIE(FES)BRAT
TE—=FFER

183



184

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAfEsR =Mzt

For the year ended 30 June 2013
EFE2013F6 30 HILFE

36. Immediate and Ultimate
Holding Company

At 30 June 2013, the directors consider the immediate
holding company to be Guoline International Limited,
which is incorporated in Bermuda and ultimate holding
company of the Group to be HLCM, which is incorporated
in Malaysia. These entities do not produce financial
statements available for public use.

36. EERRZRIERAT

BEEERAR-E—Z=FX<AB=TH
BE R A T 5 Guoline International
Limited » —ERABREZEZME L 22
A MAKERLKEZERQFTR/HLCM
—ERERATTMRILZAT o EL
BB BERERAMARER -

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited
Annual Report 2013



SUBSIDIARIES MBSl

At 30 June 2013
R2013%F6 H30H
The following list contains particulars of principal subsidiaries at R-IE-—=FA=THEETENBLARARE
30 June 2013: I
Place of
incorporation/ Effective
Issued and fully establishment percentage of
Name of company paid up capital and operation equity holding Principal activity Notes
ATEH ERTRYEZRE AR RESHE RiERFEML  IEER Wi
Group  Company
158 x4
Asian Dragon Limited HK$2 Hong Kong 100 — Licensee of factory canteen
BT BB IRREYRER
Gladko Industries Limited HK$2 Hong Kong 100 — Investment holding
EREXARAF BT B REER
Global Flour Trader Limited HK$10,000 Hong Kong 100 — Trading of commodity derivatives
RHERESERAA 7B#10,000 7T B BmiEES
Guangzhou Lam Soon Homecare  HK$21,000,000 The People’s Republic 100 — Manufacturing and trading of N1
Products Limited 721,000,000 7 of China cleaning products
ENEEEZRRERAR hEARANE BRERLERES
Hong Kong Flour Mills Limited Ordinary shares Hong Kong 100 — Trading of bran, provision of
BEEREERAT HK$100,000 BB trucks rental service and
Deferred shares investment holding
HK$10,000,000 ERES  EEHERRE
EERE 100,000 2R
IR B 10,000,000 7T
Jiangsu Lam Soon Flour Mills US$5,000,000 The People’s Republic 100 — Manufacturing and trading of N1
Company Limited 5,000,000 %7 of China flour products
THEIEENERAF hE ARANE BRERLERES
Jiangsu Lam Soon Food US$10,000,000 The People’s Republic 100 — Manufacturing and trading of N1
Company Limited 10,000,000 % ¢ of China flour products
LHEIERRARAR hEARLAE BREREERES
L S Food Investments Limited HK$2 Hong Kong 100 — Investment holding
BT B REER
Lam Soon (China) Holdings US$1 British Virgin Islands/ 100 — Investment holding
Company Limited 1%% Hong Kong RERR
AREBRRE/BE
Lam Soon Cleaning & Caring HK$2 Hong Kong 100 — Trading of cleaning products
Laboratories (Hong Kong) BT BA BEEMES
Company Limited
BIEE 2R (BE)ERAR
Lam Soon Edible Qils Company ~ US$1 British Virgin Islands 100 —  Investment holding
Limited 1%7 ABERRES REER

mEIE(FES)BRAT
TE—=FFER
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SUBSIDIARIES MBSl

At 30 June 2013
R2013F6 H30H
Place of
incorporation/ Effective
Issued and fully establishment percentage of
Name of company paid up capital and operation equity holding Principal activity Notes
AEER ERTRATZRE A REEHE RiEgEESt  EEER i+
Group  Company
155 x4q
Lam Soon Food Industries (BY)) ~ HK$11,858,415 British Virgin Islands 100 —  Investment holding
Limited ¥ 11,858 415 7T ABERRES REZR
Lam Soon Food Industries Ordinary shares Bermuda/Hong Kong 100 100 Investment holding
Limited HK$83,228,315 BRE/ER REZR
Convertible preference
shares HK$25,000,000
LA B 83,228,315
naRELR
¥ 25,000,000
Lam Soon Food Supply (Macau) — MOP$25,000 Macau 100 — Trading of flour, edible oils and
Company Limited BPI# 25,000 7 il cleaning products
HIERRME(RM)ERAR B RRAREZERES
Lam Soon International Limited ~ US$1 British Virgin Islands 100 — Investment holding
127 ABEERNS REER
Lam Soon (Pan Yu) Industries HK$2 Hong Kong 100 — Investment holding
Company Limited BT BE RERR
HEE(EE) IE£ERAF
Lam Soon Products Supply HK$1,000,000 Hong Kong 100 —  Trading of flour and edible oils
(Hong Kong) Company 71,000,000 78 BE products
Limited BRRRANERES
HIEERMLE(EE)ERAR
Lam Soon Realty Limited HK$2 Hong Kong 100 —  Property holding
BIELERRAF BT B NEEE
Lam Soon (Shandong) Food US$10,113,100 The People’s Republic 100 — Manufacturing and trading of N1
Company Limited 10,113,100 % ¢ of China flour products
BIE(LR) RRERAR PEARLAE BREREERES
Lam Soon (Sichuan) Food US$7,000,000 The People’s Republic 100 — Manufacturing and trading of N1
Company Limited 7,000,000% 7 of China flour products
BIE(I) RAERAR hEARLNE BRERLERES
Lam Soon Silos Investments HK$2 Hong Kong 100 — Investment holding
Limited B2 0 REER

HEERRARRAT

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited
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SUBSIDIARIES MBSl

At 30 June 2013
R2013%F6 H30H
Place of
incorporation/ Effective
Issued and fully establishment percentage of
Name of company paid up capital and operation equity holding Principal activity Notes
AEER ERTRATZRE A REEHE RiEgEEIt  EEER i+
Group  Company
155 x4q
Lam Soon Systems Limited HK$2 Hong Kong 100 —  Provision of intemnet marketing
BIERAERAF BT i services
REBRETERERS
Lam Soon Trademark Limited US$2 Cook Islands/Hong Kong 100 —  Trademark holding
2R NRHE/ BB BEEE
LS Golden Oils & Fats Limited “A” ordinary shares British Virgin Islands 100 — Investment holding
HK$185,000,000 ABERRES REER
“B” ordinary shares
HK$9,900,000
“C” ordinary shares
HK$5,100,000
[ATEER
78%#185,000,000 7
[BIERER
789,900,000 7
[CIEER
785,100,000
Richly Choice Development US$1 British Virgin Islands 100 100 Provision of trustee services
(PTC) Limited 127 ABEERNS REETERS
Shekou Lam Soon Flour Mills US$27,500,000 The People’s Republic 100 — Manufacturing and trading of N1
Company Limited 27,500,000 %7 of China flour products
EOREEHERLE REARLAE BRERLERES
Shekou Lam Soon Silo US$9,500,000 The People’s Republic 100 —  Provision of silo facilities N1
Company Limited 9,500,000% 7t of China REEERE
BOBEERERAR hEARLNE
Shenzhen Lam Soon Edible Oils ~ US$12,000,000 The People’s Republic 100 — Manufacturing and trading of N1
Company, Limited 12,000,000 % 7 of China edible oils
R ERA hEARLAE RABEERES
Swamex Food Service Limited HK$400,000 Hong Kong 100 100  Trading of edible oils products
BXRmARLT 7% 400,000 7 A RAMERES
Note: Miat -
N1 The subsidiaries are registered as wholly-owned-foreign N1 ZEMBATIRTEAREMBE LR UG

companies under PRC Laws.

BE AR EHRZEM -

HIR(EB) ERAR
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5-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY A IEHE

At 30 June 2013
R-ZE-ZFAA=+H

The summaries of results, assets and liabilities of the Group and AEEBTHEFREENEE BEENERE
equity attributable to shareholders of the Company for the last RAEAATRREGERBZNT ¢
five financial years are as follows:

2011 2010 2009
—E-——F —T-TF —TTNF
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M

BEHET BEEET BEEET

Results E3

Turnover B 3,618 2,889 2,510 2,193 2,072

Operating profit before RMBRELZH

interest, taxation, HE - FER
depreciation and RS
amortisation gl 234 29 167 185 133
Profit/(loss) ViN/NET) S
attributable to equity FEAESER,
188 shareholders of the (E518)
Company 131 (36) 91 122 79

Assets and liabilities BERER

Non-current assets FRBEE 828 819 757 733 634
Net current assets FREBEE 718 599 729 667 674
Non-current liabilities ERBERE - = (1) (1) (1)
Non-controlling IR ERE

interests (11) (11) (11) (11) (11)
Equity attributable to KA E]

shareholders of the PR R

Company P 1,535 1,407 1,474 1,388 1,296

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited
Annual Report 2013
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